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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Good morning,

          3  everyone. It's a beautiful day out today. It's a

          4  little rainy. But rain brings flowers and beautiful

          5  sunny weather in the future. But good morning, and

          6  welcome to today's joint hearing on School Safety by

          7  the Education, Public Safety and Juvenile Justice

          8  Committees.

          9                 I just want to make a few opening

         10  remarks and then we'll move on to opening statements

         11  from my colleagues, Peter Vallone, Jr., the Chair of

         12  the Public Safety Committee, and Sara Gonzalez,

         13  Chair of the Juvenile Justice Committee.

         14                 Everyone is concerned about safety in

         15  schools for students and staff alike. We've all read

         16  stories and seen reports of violence in schools,

         17  committed by students against other students, or

         18  committed by or against school staff.

         19                 Or even sometimes perpetrated by

         20  outsiders. Let me be clear, any violent act in a

         21  school is one too many. Having said that, it is

         22  still true that schools are some of the safest

         23  places in the country, far safer than the streets

         24  and sometimes safer than at home. With that in mind,

         25  it is incumbent upon us to ensure that schools
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          2  remain environments that are conducive to teaching

          3  and learning, not institutions that feel like

          4  prisons. In the opening paragraph of its Discipline

          5  Code, the Department of Education states that it is

          6  "...committed to ensuring that our schools are

          7  safe, secure and orderly environments in which

          8  teaching and learning take place each day."

          9                 It goes on to say that "...safe,

         10  supportive school environments depends on students,

         11  staff and parents demonstrating mutual respect.

         12                 Unfortunately, we have heard reports

         13  that in many schools this atmosphere of mutual

         14  respect is sorely lacking and we need to remedy

         15  that.

         16                 We are here today to examine how well

         17  the safety personnel, policies and procedures

         18  jointly administered by the Department of Education

         19  and New York Police Department are working to keep

         20  students and staff safe and maintain schools as

         21  healthy learning environments.

         22                 I'm concerned about the reports from

         23  advocates and students that in too many cases

         24  schools have become repressive and feel jail like,

         25  due to the presence of police and the use of metal
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          2  detectors, bag searches and other law enforcement

          3  tactics.

          4                 I'm concerned that this aggressive

          5  approach causes tension and conflict in schools, and

          6  has a negative impact on the learning environment

          7  and subsequently on student achievement.

          8                 I'm concerned that we're not using

          9  enough proactive strategies, like conflict

         10  resolution and mediation programs and other methods

         11  of teaching students how to resolve disputes

         12  non-violently, to prevent violence from occurring in

         13  schools in the first place.

         14                 I worry that we're allowing

         15  sensationalist headlines when an incident does occur

         16  to shape policies that are punitive, that may serve

         17  to criminalize too many of our youth and have a

         18  negative impact on all students.

         19                 Instead, we need policies that are

         20  balanced between protecting students, and nurturing

         21  them, to ensure that all New York City public school

         22  children are able to enjoy the safe and supportive

         23  learning environment to which they are entitled.

         24                 Hopefully, today we will get answers

         25  to some important questions, as well as hear ideas
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          2  on how to improve both safety and support in our

          3  school learning environments.

          4                 Because we have members from three

          5  Committees, Education, Public Safety and Juvenile

          6  Justice, and two agencies, the Department of

          7  Education and the New York Police Department, to

          8  question, I ask my colleagues to limit their

          9  questioning to no more than five minutes total.

         10                 I would now like to turn the floor

         11  over to Peter Vallone, Jr., to make his opening

         12  statement. Peter Vallone, Jr. of Queens.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you, Chair

         14  Jackson. It's a pleasure to work with you and Chair

         15  Gonzalez today. I will be brief.

         16                 My concerns are mostly regarding who

         17  is in charge at our public schools. You know, it

         18  wasn't too long ago that the NYPD and our emergency

         19  responders did not have a CIMS protocol as to who is

         20  in charge of emergency situations. It was the

         21  Council that introduced a bill that mandated that

         22  happen and rather than go forward on that bill, the

         23  NYPD and OEM and everyone else worked together and

         24  came up with a protocol. It is still rather

         25  confusing when it comes to a hazardous situation,
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          2  but one is out there. It doesn't appear to be that

          3  situation when it comes to our NYPD, and the DOE, as

          4  to who is in charge. And as we saw as recently as

          5  last night, there is still a great deal of confusion

          6  as to how has the final say of discipline in our

          7  public schools. And that's one of the main reasons

          8  we're having this hearing today, which was scheduled

          9  a long time ago, by the way. The Committees, we

         10  haven't had a hearing like this since 2005 when we

         11  did pass a package of legislation regarding school

         12  safety, including two bills I introduced. One was

         13  that the DOE install security cameras in schools

         14  where they deemed appropriate, the other, which

         15  mandated certain information be released to the

         16  public and to the City Council on its website and in

         17  other ways which we've determined has not been

         18  released in the entirety and that's another set of

         19  questions I need to ask of the DOE. We'd like to

         20  hear about trends and incidents and crime rates,

         21  including types of incidents in crimes of school;

         22  how the DOE and NYPD are coordinating. What we're

         23  most interested, though, is the current state of

         24  governance. There was an MOU, which was executed in

         25  memorandum of understanding, executed in 1998,
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          2  between the NYPD and the DOE, which transferred

          3  authority to the NYPD, for an initial four-year

          4  period. This MOU was characterized at the time by

          5  the papers as murky at best. We don't know today

          6  whether that MOU has been extended. It was supposed

          7  to be appraised by a joint committee made up of NYPD

          8  and DOE personnel, which we're also told has been

          9  dormant for some time, again it was expired in four

         10  years, an we don't know what the situation was with

         11  that MOU, so we'll be looking into that.

         12                 Again, it's our job to do oversight,

         13  that's what we're going to do today regarding who is

         14  in charge of our schools when it comes to

         15  discipline, how to make that system better.

         16                 I look forward to working with

         17  everyone. I will end because there are time

         18  constraints, and turn it over to our Chair of our

         19  Juvenile Justice Committee, Sara Gonzalez.

         20                 Let me just introduce some of our

         21  Council members before I do that. We have just been

         22  joined by Oliver Koppell, Simcha Felder, Jessica

         23  Lappin, Dan Garodnick, John Liu, Helen Foster and

         24  our Minority Leader James Oddo, who will hopefully

         25  be staying for the hearing and not storming out at
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          2  any time. We will try to behave.

          3                 Council Member Gonzalez.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GONZALEZ: Thank you,

          5  council Member Vallone. And thank you, Council

          6  Member Jackson. Thank you to all of my colleagues

          7  that are here today.

          8                 I am Sara Gonzalez, the Chair of the

          9  Juvenile Justice Committee, and I also would like to

         10  welcome you all here today.

         11                 I will keep my remarks short, as I

         12  understand we have many witnesses to get to. The

         13  issue of school safety is inextricably linked with

         14  juvenile justice. Many of our City's students are or

         15  have been involved in the justice system, and

         16  increasing numbers of youth are arrested and

         17  detained for what is arguably, quote/unquote, normal

         18  teenage behavior in and around schools.

         19                 In addition, increases in the use of

         20  school suspension may cause already struggling

         21  students to get even further behind, and become more

         22  detached from school, which increases the likelihood

         23  that a youth will drop out of school and engage in

         24  delinquent behavior.

         25                 There is no question that minority
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          2  and low-income students are disproportionately

          3  affected by the criminalization of school

          4  discipline. Schools with permanent metal detectors

          5  are populated with students who are predominantly

          6  poor African American and Latino. Research shows

          7  that students of color are more likely to receive

          8  higher penalties such as suspension for minor

          9  infractions, and are disproportionately targeted for

         10  punishment.

         11                 This disparate impact is reflected in

         12  the fact that 95 percent of the youth entering the

         13  City Department of Juvenile Justice Detention

         14  Facilities are African-American and Latino.

         15                 For all of these reasons, I am deeply

         16  concerned about the way the safety and discipline

         17  are handled in our City's schools, and look forward

         18  to hearing from all our panels today.

         19                 With that, I will turn the floor back

         20  to Council Member Jackson, who will introduce our

         21  first panel. Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         23                 Let me just say we've been joined by

         24  youth from Minds Matter. We have approximately six

         25  or seven students that are on this hearing today.
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          2  They were downstairs in the members' lounge in the

          3  preliminary briefing, with myself and members of our

          4  Committee, and their group leaders are Lisa and

          5  Martha. So, welcome Minds Matter. And Joe Addabbo

          6  from Queens has joined us, and I have asked my

          7  colleagues to limit their questions and responses in

          8  total for no more than five minutes. And also we've

          9  asked the agencies up front to please limit their

         10  comments to no more than 15 to 20 minutes total.

         11                 I know we have some detailed

         12  testimony and all written testimony will be included

         13  in the record. So, you don't have to read it, but if

         14  you want to, you're entitled to. I'm going to limit

         15  your comments to no more than 15 or 20 minutes. We

         16  will have the clock going. The clock will indicate

         17  that 15 minutes is up and you will have about two to

         18  three minutes to summarize any other comments that

         19  you have.

         20                 With that, we're going to turn to our

         21  first witnesses. My understanding, we have Deputy

         22  Chancellor Kathleen Grimm, from the Department of

         23  Education, Elayna Konstan, the Chief Executive

         24  Officer for the Office of School and Youth

         25  Development, Chief Douglas Zeigler, the Chief of
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          2  Community Affairs for the New York Police

          3  Department, and Assistant Chief James Secreto,

          4  Commanding Officer for the School Safety Division.

          5                 There are other individuals with the

          6  New York Police Department that are present, I'm

          7  just going to ask every one of the witnesses to

          8  please identify themselves for the record, starting

          9  with Kathleen Grimm, if you don't mind.

         10                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: I'm Kathleen

         11  Grimm, Deputy Chancellor for Finance and

         12  Administration at New York City Department of

         13  Education.

         14                 MS. KONSTAN: Elayna Konstan, the

         15  Chief Executive Officer for the Office of School and

         16  Youth Development for the New York City Department

         17  of Education.

         18                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: Assistant

         19  Chief James Secreto, Commanding Officer, School

         20  Safety Division.

         21                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: Chief Doug Zeigler,

         22  the Chief of Community Affairs Bureau.

         23                 MR. GARCIA: Ramon Garcia, Director of

         24  Patrol Operations, School Safety Division.

         25                 MR. COOGAN: Inspector Vincent Coogan
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          2  (phonetic), Executive Officer of School Safety

          3  Division.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: With that, I

          5  believe Kathleen Grimm, are you giving testimony

          6  first? Who is going first?

          7                 Did you agree on who is going first?

          8                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: Yes, I'm

          9  going first, Chairman.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay, please. My

         11  pleasure.

         12                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: Chairman

         13  Jackson, Chairman Vallone, Jr., Chairwoman Gonzalez,

         14  I'm Assistant Chief, again, James Secreto,

         15  Commanding Officer, School Safety Division, and with

         16  me is Chief Zeigler from Community Affairs.

         17                 On behalf of Commissioner Ray Kelly,

         18  I'd like to thank you for this opportunity to come

         19  before you this morning to discuss the state of

         20  public safety in New York City schools.

         21                 I'd like to first explain the

         22  relationship between Community Affairs Bureau and

         23  School Safety Division. As you may be aware, the

         24  School Safety Division was formerly a command within

         25  the Department Patrol Services Bureau; however, last
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          2  year Community Affairs was reorganized under Chief

          3  Zeigler and the responsibilities were greatly

          4  expanded. And among other significant changes,

          5  Commissioner Kelly transferred the School Safety

          6  Division into the Community Affairs Bureau,

          7  increasing the opportunity an the resources directly

          8  available for reaching out to young people in New

          9  York City.

         10                 In this way the Department is able to

         11  maximize the impact of the Community Affairs

         12  Bureau's youth initiatives, such as the PAL, law

         13  enforcement explorers, summer youth police academy,

         14  internship programs in the Police Department, among

         15  other programs to the common command structure

         16  within the School Safety Division.

         17                 The Department's commitment to

         18  reaching out to young people has been greatly

         19  assisted by this realignment, and we're continually

         20  looking for ways to improve this participation in

         21  our programs through our daily contact with young

         22  people in the City schools.

         23                 It's been almost nine years since the

         24  functions of the Board of Ed were transferred over

         25  to the Police Department. Given the Police
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          2  Department responsibility for managing school

          3  security personnel and designating School Safety

          4  Agents, otherwise known as SSAs, to be employees of

          5  the Police Department. And it might be useful at

          6  this point to step back and briefly recall the

          7  reasons for that change.

          8                 Prior to '98, authority and

          9  accountability for school safety rested primarily

         10  with the individual principals of the City's public

         11  schools, with the assistance of Board of Ed School

         12  Safety, which employed the School Safety Officers.

         13                 This relatively decentralized

         14  authority led to inconsistent implementation of

         15  policies regarding the enforcement of Discipline

         16  Code, or the protocol for reporting criminal

         17  incidents to the NYPD.

         18                 It is therefore difficult to reliably

         19  estimate the level of crime in the schools and

         20  safety and security in the schools were generally

         21  perceived as dangerously compromised.

         22                 The goal of the MOU that you

         23  discussed earlier executed in '98 between the City

         24  and Board of Education was to enhance the

         25  educational mission of the schools by providing the
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          2  highest level of security as safety for students and

          3  school personnel by utilizing the Department's

          4  expertise, experience and resources in reducing

          5  crime and disorder in the schools.

          6                 It was also intended to mirror the

          7  Department's success in reducing crime and incidents

          8  and to make improvements in all aspects of school

          9  safety administration that of hiring, training,

         10  professionalism and effective deployment of our

         11  staff. And it's our belief that the goals of the MOU

         12  have more than been met and that the Department's

         13  partnership with the now DOE has resulted in

         14  striking improvement in the safety of our schools,

         15  in the increased professionalism of the schools

         16  safety cadre, and a more accurate reporting of crime

         17  in the schools, and significantly higher level of

         18  confidence in the security of our schools among

         19  students, educators and parents.

         20                 From '99 and 2000 school year, to

         21  2006 and '07 school year, total crime in the schools

         22  decreased by almost 14 percent. Violent crime in

         23  schools decreased nearly 20 percent. The seven major

         24  index felonies decreased by 35 percent.

         25                 Further, non-criminal incidents, such
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          2  as harassment, disorderly conduct, trespassing,

          3  which can seriously disrupt the tone of a school, as

          4  you may know, dropped 21.3 percent, and possession

          5  of weapons and dangerous instruments dropped 51 and

          6  a half percent.

          7                 Note also that because of the

          8  reporting of crime in schools is more consistent

          9  than in the past, due to the presence of School

         10  Safety Agents and a clear mandate to make such

         11  reports to the Police Department, there is a greater

         12  level of confidence in that data, and it's also

         13  reported to DOE's website.

         14                 These dramatic decreases in crime and

         15  non-criminal incidents are attributable to the heart

         16  of many people - in management personnel of both the

         17  Police Department and the DOE, who design and

         18  implement school safety programs and policies, to

         19  School Safety Agents and school-based personnel take

         20  front line responsibility for keeping the schools

         21  safe, and for the students themselves, who have

         22  responded with energy and cooperation to change the

         23  climate of their schools from disorderly to orderly.

         24                 But there are also some very specific

         25  factors which have contributed to overall
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          2  improvement in school safety, and I'd like to go

          3  into those in some detail.

          4                 School Safety Agents, who are the

          5  backbone of security, as you know, at the time of

          6  the transfer there were 3,041 SSAs. There are

          7  currently 4,899. That's a 61 percent increase. To

          8  put this increase into context, there is well over

          9  1,300 facilities in the system and more are being

         10  added every year.

         11                 We deploy these agents according to a

         12  quantitative personnel staffing model, school safety

         13  allocation model, which takes into consideration

         14  variables such as student population, the physical

         15  layout of the facility, use of magnetometers, the

         16  tone or climate of the school and crime levels.

         17                 This model was developed in close

         18  collaboration with the DOE. This model also suggests

         19  an optimal number of SSAs required to secure a

         20  facility. And this close collaboration review

         21  produces an analytical root for number of agents

         22  needed for the system, the entire system. And at

         23  least one SSA is deployed in each elementary school.

         24  Middle and high schools have at least one

         25  supervisor, anywhere from three to eight SSAs, and
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          2  we review this plan on a regular basis, and we

          3  adjust based on needs or based on specific requests

          4  from the DOE.

          5                 The SSAs are responsible for

          6  patrolling designated areas in the schools, and

          7  immediate vicinity and to maintain order, and if

          8  necessary, also further the educational process.

          9                 This may include challenging

         10  unauthorized visitors, removing unruly students,

         11  taking enforcement action when violations of law

         12  occur.

         13                 The position of School Safety Agent

         14  was formerly a non-competitive title, with

         15  applications made by submitting a resume, but at the

         16  Police Department's request, the Department of

         17  Citywide Administrative Services established

         18  disposition as a competitive civil service title,

         19  and applications now made through an open

         20  competitive exam, hiring in this manner goes a long

         21  way in professionalizing disposition of School

         22  Safety Agents.

         23                 The requirements otherwise are

         24  virtually unchanged, high school diploma are

         25  equivalent, the ability to meet the qualification
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          2  for appointment as a special patrolman within 90

          3  days, you must be over 21, a US citizen and a City

          4  resident.

          5                 Candidates must also pass a

          6  psychological and medical assessment, including drug

          7  screening and a qualifying physical test, and an

          8  extensive background investigation. Their salary is

          9  $26,041, goes up to $29,432 after two years.

         10                 I'd like to talk about training. An

         11  additional step to professionalizing the position

         12  has been an increase in the entry level training

         13  allotted to our agents.

         14                 At the time of the merge, agents

         15  received nine weeks training. That training has now

         16  been increased to 14 weeks. Further, the agents who

         17  conduct training are certified by New York State as

         18  general topics instructors and are qualified to

         19  teach at any New York State police facility.

         20                 In addition, Police Officers and

         21  Sergeants from the Police Academy provide

         22  instruction in areas of law, police science,

         23  behavioral science, physical education and tactics.

         24                 Because SSAs have limited peace

         25  officer powers through their designation as Special
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          2  Patrolmen, the course is designed as a basic course

          3  for peace officers without firearms.

          4                 Topics addressed in the Law

          5  curriculum, include the law of arrest, probable

          6  cause, reasonable suspicion, the use of force and

          7  laws of evidence.

          8                 Police Science includes instruction

          9  in radio communications, reporting writing,

         10  discipline, weapons protection and visitor control

         11  procedures.

         12                 Behavioral Science focuses on the

         13  human interactions that you alluded and social

         14  psychology, in both routine and crisis situations.

         15  Topics include cultural diversity, hate crimes,

         16  verbal judo, and crisis intervention. Physical

         17  Training and Tactics curriculum teaches the newly

         18  hired agents self-defense skills, handcuffing, and

         19  first aid and CPR, with an emphasis on their own

         20  cardiovascular fitness.

         21                 However, in order to assist in

         22  preparing School Safety Agents for their special

         23  role as part of the school community, DOE personnel

         24  also participate in the training as instructors and

         25  address specific areas, such as Special Education,
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          2  school administration, school governance, adolescent

          3  suicide, conflict resolution, child abuse and

          4  substance abuse prevention.

          5                 Supplementing this initial training,

          6  the School Safety Division maintains a dynamic

          7  In-Service Training Unit, responsible for enhancing

          8  the performance and knowledge of all of our School

          9  Safety Agents. This Command Level training is

         10  conducted on a daily basis, similar to what's termed

         11  "roll call" training for police officers, and

         12  covers a wide variety of topics tailored for

         13  emerging issues and improved performance.

         14                 Further, In-Service Training takes

         15  advantage of DOE recess breaks and school holidays

         16  in order to provide additional training, both basic

         17  and specialized, as well as promotional training for

         18  School Safety personnel who are promoted to higher

         19  levels of responsibility and supervision.

         20                 Up to now we have focused on the

         21  civilian component of the Department and I'd like to

         22  talk now about the uniformed component.

         23                 Uniformed police personnel have been

         24  interwoven into the School Safety Division's

         25  leadership structure and work closely with DOE
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          2  personnel and NYPD's School Safety personnel.

          3                 There is an NYPD Captain in each

          4  patrol borough, and is designated Patrol Borough

          5  School Safety Coordinator. This Captain reports

          6  directly to the Patrol Borough Commander. The

          7  Captain is responsible for developing interagency

          8  borough level school safety strategies; coordinating

          9  the use of borough resources to address conditions

         10  in and around schools; and conducting regular

         11  meetings with School Safety Division Borough

         12  Managers, Precinct Commanding Officers, School

         13  Safety Sergeants, Precinct Youth Officers and the

         14  Principals.

         15                 This Captain has got to be aware of

         16  school dismissal times, after school sporting

         17  events, gang activities in and around the schools,

         18  and inter-school rivalries and the like. This

         19  knowledge enables this Captain to anticipate

         20  potential problems, inform local precincts of the

         21  concerns, and if appropriate, apply additional

         22  patrol resources.

         23                 There is also a Sergeant in each

         24  patrol precinct and he is designated School Safety

         25  Sergeant. He works under the Precinct Special
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          2  Operations Lieutenant. The Sergeants are responsible

          3  for developing precinct level school safety

          4  strategies, coordinating activities of truancy

          5  units, directing the use of precinct resources to

          6  address conditions and around the schools. They

          7  interact directly with the Patrol Borough School

          8  Safety Captain, School Safety Supervisors, and

          9  locally, the Principals or Assistant Principals of

         10  the schools in their precincts. This interaction

         11  ensures that information necessary for appropriate

         12  deployment strategy is shared with all the

         13  stakeholders.

         14                 There are currently 127

         15  precinct-based Police Officers assigned to schools

         16  throughout the City. This concept is not new. There

         17  were actually 150 Police Officers assigned to

         18  schools throughout the City prior to the merge, and

         19  deploying Police Officers in this way is not just

         20  local. In fact, it's been in effect for many years

         21  nationwide, as evidenced by the federal grants

         22  routinely awarded to law enforcement agencies under

         23  the COPS in Schools grants, which provide funding

         24  for salaries of police officers assigned to schools.

         25                 I will note that the US Department of
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          2  Justice awarded the NYPD a COPS in Schools grant for

          3  a four-year period, the first three years of which

          4  were funded by the DOJ. The final year is funded by

          5  the Police Department. This program provided the

          6  Police Department with six and a quarter million

          7  dollars over a three-year period, and it funded the

          8  salaries of 50 Police Officers who are now on the

          9  Uniformed Task Force of the School Safety Division.

         10  These officers receive special training from the US

         11  Department of Justice, as resource officers where

         12  they learn the complexities of dealing in a

         13  sensitive school environment.

         14                 As of September 30th of this year,

         15  the School Safety Division is staffed with a total

         16  of 181 uniformed officers, ranging from myself to

         17  148 members in the rank of Police Officer. They

         18  receive regular In-Service Training addressing

         19  topics such as bullying, conflict resolution,

         20  discipline in the schools. The majority of these

         21  officers are assigned to the Division's Uniformed

         22  Task Force. This is that Citywide unit that is able

         23  to deploy rapidly, either for planned operations or

         24  in response to an emergency. They focus their

         25  efforts on problem schools where criminal incidents,
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          2  gang activity and truancy issues may exist.

          3                 Mindful of the unique needs and

          4  conditions in schools, a substantial number of these

          5  Task Force members have youth and school-related

          6  experience in prior assignments. They work both in

          7  and outside the schools with particular attention to

          8  hot spots, and heavily used dismissal routes, and

          9  they also serve as a liaison between School

         10  Community and Crime Prevention, Citywide Vandals,

         11  Transit Bureau and the like.

         12                 During the summer months, Uniformed

         13  Task Force assigns personnel to the Summer Youth

         14  Police Academy. They work key play streets as well

         15  as patrolling summer school programs.

         16                 I would also like to note that School

         17  Safety Division has a Counter-Terrorism Unit. This

         18  Unit is led by a Captain and serves as liaison to

         19  other Department units, focuses on

         20  counter-terrorism, works in conjunction with DOE and

         21  other agencies, such as Office of Emergency

         22  Management, School Construction Authority. This

         23  Counter-Terrorism Unit is responsible for training

         24  and equipping School Safety Division personnel to

         25  respond to terrorist threats.
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          2                 I also would like to talk about

          3  impact. One of the most important elements of the

          4  Department's success in reducing school crime is a

          5  collaborative effort initiative called "Impact for

          6  Schools."

          7                 The initiative is fashioned on the

          8  successful precinct-based Operation Impact, in which

          9  the Department pinpoints hot spots in the community,

         10  and focuses additional resources where the crime is

         11  occurring.

         12                 As in Operation Impact, Impact for

         13  Schools utilizes proven crime-fighting measures to

         14  address school safety issues, mainly by adapting our

         15  analysis-driven application of resources to problem

         16  schools, similar to the COMSTAT process.

         17                 This program began in January of '04,

         18  and initially focused on 12 schools, identified has

         19  having serious incidents of crime or disorder.

         20  Security assessments were conducted in each school

         21  in cooperation with DOE and based on these

         22  assessments, we made changes in how security was

         23  managed in these facilities.

         24                 We designed Impact with the goal of

         25  having sustainable improvements made in each school.
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          2  We increased the number of agents assigned to each

          3  school, increased the Uniformed Task Force patrols,

          4  instituted rigorous school safety plans, and

          5  carefully monitored each school's progress via

          6  weekly crime stats and thorough assessments. As

          7  conditions improve, schools were either added or

          8  removed from Impact status.

          9                 Since the inception of this program,

         10  26 schools have been identified as Impact Schools

         11  and 17 schools have made significant enough

         12  improvement to be removed from the list.

         13                 There currently are nine Impact

         14  schools, and they have seen a 21.6 percent decrease

         15  in the seven major index crimes from '05/'06 school

         16  year, to the '06/'07 school year, and a

         17  corresponding 17 and a half percent decrease in

         18  violent crime. Weapons and dangerous instruments

         19  have decreased 18.2 percent.

         20                 As for sustainable improvements, we

         21  note that the 17 Impact schools which are no longer

         22  in the program also continue to improve, with five

         23  percent decrease in the seven major index crimes,

         24  and a 10.3 decrease in violent crime. Sixteen

         25  percent decrease in total crimes, and a seven
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          2  percent decrease in non-criminal incidents. 33.2

          3  percent decrease in weapons and dangerous

          4  instruments when you compare '05/'06 to the '06/'07

          5  school year.

          6                 Beyond the Impact Program, we monitor

          7  conditions in all the schools closely and assess the

          8  situations in each, and we make adjustments as

          9  needed.

         10                 I'm sure you'd like to talk about

         11  scanning. Use of scanning in schools was begun in

         12  1988 by the Board of Education School Safety. The

         13  program has been significantly expanded and improved

         14  since NYPD undertook this responsibility. There is

         15  currently 73 sites at intermediate high schools that

         16  have full-time scanning, and eight schools which

         17  have part-time or random scanning, and all schools

         18  are subject to unannounced scanning. And each day

         19  over 100,000 kids are scanned in a 90-minute period.

         20                 We also do events, scan at events

         21  such as PAL athletic events, Shea Stadium, KeySpan,

         22  Madison Square Garden.

         23                 Unannounced scanning is based on a

         24  variety of quantitative and qualitative factors, the

         25  focus being to prevent weapons-related violence. And
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          2  we deploy based on intelligence received, patterns

          3  of incidents, maybe a serious single incident,

          4  trends and offense types, relatively few instances

          5  we'll randomly select a school for random scanning.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Chief, could you

          7  just wrap up, please.

          8                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: Okay.

          9                 All right, I just would like to talk

         10  about some of the -- I'm wrapping up, talking about

         11  some of the items that have been confiscated at

         12  scanning. Six-hundred and seventy-nine items

         13  actually removed at scanning. Two-hundred and

         14  sixty-seven knives, 148 box-cutters, and 264 other

         15  dangerous items, such as Mace, laser pointers.

         16  Again, since we overtook the responsibility for

         17  school safety, weapons and dangerous instruments in

         18  the schools has decreased by over 50 percent.

         19                 Last year we confiscated over 24

         20  guns, 1114 bee-bee guns and that compared to 20 guns

         21  and 51 bee-bee guns the prior year. So, clearly

         22  we're still taking in weapons at City schools.

         23                 And in closing, I'd just like to say

         24  that since the Police Department undertook

         25  responsibility for safety in New York City's public
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          2  schools, there has been a significant improvement in

          3  the quality of services provided. Accompanied by a

          4  striking drop in school crime, and beyond the data

          5  I've presented, and initiatives I've discussed, we'd

          6  like to refer the Council to comprehensive Citywide

          7  public school survey conducted by the DOE, and this

          8  survey revealed that 83 percent of students, 84

          9  percent of teachers feel safe in their schools, and

         10  that 85 percent of parents feel that they're

         11  children are safe in school. And a majority of all

         12  three groups, 68 percent of the students, 83 percent

         13  of the parents and 70 percent of the teachers, also

         14  feel that the School Safety Agents help promote a

         15  safe and respectful environment in their schools.

         16                 The Police Department and School

         17  Safety Division will continue to work in partnership

         18  with the Department of Education to help build upon

         19  these gains that I have mentioned and I'll be

         20  pleased to answer any questions that you have.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         22                 Now we're going to hear from the

         23  Department of Education.

         24                 MS. KONSTAN: Good morning, Chair

         25  Jackson, Chair Vallone, Jr., Chair Gonzalez and
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          2  members of the Education, Public Safety and Juvenile

          3  Justice Committee.

          4                 I am Elayna Konstan, Chief Executive

          5  of the Office of School and Youth Development of the

          6  New York City Department of Education. I am joined

          7  today by Deputy Chancellor Kathleen Grimm.

          8                 We are pleased to be here today to

          9  discuss the progress we have made in assuring that

         10  our schools are safe environments for teaching and

         11  learning.

         12                 Our schools are safer today then when

         13  we presented before you in 2004.

         14                 This is born out in the statistics

         15  and substantiated by families and staff of our

         16  schools. As Assistant Chief Secreto outlined, major

         17  crimes, violent crimes and total crimes in our

         18  schools have steadily fallen over the last several

         19  years.

         20                 My office, the Office of School and

         21  Youth Development, which we call OSYD, works closely

         22  with the New York City Police Department on school

         23  safety.

         24                 In addition to ensuring the safety

         25  and security of our students, we provide the youth
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          2  development supports that are crucial in addressing

          3  students' changing social, physical and educational

          4  needs.

          5                 This includes guidance, prevention

          6  and intervention programs, social and emotional

          7  learning, attendance improvement, crisis

          8  intervention, behavior management and professional

          9  development for staff.

         10                 With 33 years in the public school

         11  system, I firmly believe that safety and youth

         12  development must go hand-in-hand in order to promote

         13  and maintain a positive school climate, and foster

         14  student growth and learning so that students can

         15  achieve academic success.

         16                 By working directly with school

         17  leaders and the New York City Police Department, we

         18  implemented an integrated and coordinated approach

         19  to school safety.

         20                 As Assistant Chief Secreto mentioned,

         21  the impact initiative has been an important part of

         22  our collaboration. It has been three years since the

         23  DOE testified before you on this important subject.

         24  So, I'd like to take the opportunity to update you

         25  on our Impact Schools Initiative, which has been
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          2  very successful.

          3                 My team, in partnership with NYPD,

          4  continues to visit impact schools and conduct

          5  walk-throughs, make recommendations, and monitor

          6  progress.

          7                 OCYD created a comprehensive

          8  assessment tool, the Best Practices standards. To

          9  monitor and evaluate schools on safety and security.

         10  It measures 108 variables and 14 different

         11  categories of school function and school life.

         12                 We use the safety assessment tool and

         13  our comprehensive walk-throughs of Impact schools to

         14  assess school operations and safety protocols.

         15                 In addition to my team's use of the

         16  Best Practices standards, we have trained

         17  borough-based safety administrators in its use so

         18  that they can use it to conduct school assessments

         19  in all schools.

         20                 Of the 26 schools that have been

         21  identified as Impact, 131 assessments have been

         22  conducted to date, and 17 schools, as Assistant

         23  Chief mentioned, have come off of Impact. We have

         24  conducted an additional 108 assessments of other

         25  schools as part of our proactive approach to school
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          2  safety.

          3                 Overall, my office makes over 3,000

          4  school visits a year to monitor safety and support

          5  for all schools. When we go into schools, we examine

          6  its physical condition, entry and exit procedures,

          7  the functionality of security cameras, student

          8  movement throughout the building at entry, between

          9  classes and at dismissal.

         10                 We also look at how the building is

         11  staffed, how staff is deployed for safety-related

         12  assignments and how effective the guidance program

         13  is in providing student support services.

         14                 We look at the level of student

         15  engagement, as well as parent and community

         16  involvement, and how effectively school rules are

         17  disseminated and implemented.

         18                 We use the information we gather at

         19  the walk-through in conjunction with the

         20  quantitative data from police records and our

         21  On-line Occurrence Reporting System, which we call

         22  OORS, to identify schools most in need of the

         23  additional resources that the Impact program

         24  provides.

         25                 The work we have done with Impact
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          2  Schools and the lessons we have learned through that

          3  work continue to frame our safety efforts in all

          4  schools.

          5                 Under No Child Left Behind, our OORS

          6  data is sent to the State Education Department,

          7  which reviews and processes the data and posts it on

          8  the SED website.

          9                 Citywide, since the 2004/'05 school

         10  year, incident reporting in OORS has increased by 40

         11  percent. This increase is substantial and speaks to

         12  the Department's commitment to accurately report

         13  student behavior.

         14                 During this time there has also been

         15  a 32 percent increase in the principal's reporting

         16  and holding students accountable for lower-level

         17  incidents. And at the same time, the most serious

         18  and most egregious incidents have decreased by 11

         19  percent, which validates that addressing lower level

         20  behavioral incidents results in a safer school

         21  environment, and helps to decrease the incidence of

         22  more violent behavior.

         23                 The use of our comprehensive

         24  assessment tool has enabled us to pinpoint for each

         25  assessed school areas in need of improvement that
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          2  have direct impact on school safety, school culture

          3  and climate.

          4                 Assessment reports to the schools

          5  have resulted in expanded youth development

          6  services, improved safety practices and procedures,

          7  greater opportunities for positive student

          8  engagement in school life, increased attention to

          9  low-level incidents and a team approach to school

         10  safety which has helped to prevent the escalation of

         11  major criminal occurrences, and has resulted in

         12  improved school culture.

         13                 We continue to see steady declines in

         14  school crime since the inception of the Impact

         15  Program, and while there is still work to do, we are

         16  encouraged by the results thus far.

         17                 Impact schools remain on the list

         18  until they become stable. We continue to monitor

         19  schools after they come off the Impact list to

         20  ensure that successful strategies remain in place,

         21  and to prevent regress. Staff and Safety Agents are

         22  then redeployed to other schools that need

         23  intervention.

         24                 Professional development is a key

         25  component in both our intervention efforts in impact
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          2  schools and in our prevention efforts to assist

          3  schools in implementing best practices.

          4                 Over the last three years my office,

          5  either directly or in collaboration with partner

          6  community-based organizations has provided

          7  substantial Citywide professional development in a

          8  variety of safety and support-related areas,

          9  including bullying prevention and intervention

         10  strategies, crisis intervention, conflict

         11  resolution, peer mediation, diversity, classroom

         12  management and guided discipline.

         13                 This professional development has

         14  included counselors, teachers, school aids, deans,

         15  teaching fellows, School Safety Agents, aspiring

         16  school leaders and current school administrators.

         17                 This year, with the support from the

         18  City Council, we have launched the Respect For All

         19  Initiative which will provide diversity training to

         20  teams of counselors and teachers from the 769

         21  schools to serve students in grades six to 12.

         22                 As part of our focus on best

         23  practices in school safety, the Department, in

         24  consultation with NYPD, has expanded its use of

         25  security systems in schools, including enhancements
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          2  in the areas of video surveillance, radio

          3  communication, access control and scanning at entry.

          4  The collaboration between DOE and NYPD has become

          5  more extensive over time, even more so since the

          6  start of our Impact Schools initiative. I meet

          7  regularly with Assistant Chief Secreto, and speak

          8  daily either with him or with members of his staff.

          9                 Our use of technology has expanded

         10  during the last three years as well. Since the

         11  2004/'05 school year, we have installed digital

         12  video surveillance in 74 school buildings serving

         13  over 170 schools, and an additional 60 buildings

         14  will get systems during this school year for a total

         15  of 134 buildings. An additional 152 buildings remain

         16  on a high priority list.

         17                 Camera location selection for each

         18  school building depends upon site-specific needs and

         19  physical configurations. My office works closely

         20  with the school principals and building councils,

         21  borough-based safety administrators, New York City

         22  Police Department, school safety supervisors, and

         23  the Division of School Facilities managers to review

         24  the scope of work for each site, to ensure the

         25  camera coverage corresponds with specific site
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          2  priorities.

          3                 Based on individualized assessments

          4  conducted by these teams, cameras may be placed at

          5  often well-known hot spots in schools, such as

          6  entrances and exits, in hallways, stairwells,

          7  cafeterias, auditoriums and/or the building exterior

          8  or school grounds.

          9                 While technology is an important tool

         10  in our efforts to keep our schools safe, the

         11  Citywide standards of Discipline and Intervention

         12  Measures, commonly known as the Discipline Code, is

         13  the foundation upon which we base our prevention and

         14  intervention efforts. Per NY State Education Law, we

         15  review the Discipline Code annually and update it as

         16  needed to ensure clarity and effective

         17  implementation.

         18                 Changes in the code reflect our

         19  commitment to remain responsive to students,

         20  parents, school personnel and others in the

         21  community, while continuing to maintain safe and

         22  secure learning environments.

         23                 Our goal is to make sure the

         24  Discipline Code is fair and understood by students

         25  and school personnel alike so that all members of
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          2  the school community know the behavioral

          3  expectations we have for students and know how

          4  students will be held accountable for their behavior

          5  if they do not live up to these expectations.

          6                 This year, for example, students in a

          7  youth focus group told us that they wanted the Bill

          8  of Student Rights and Responsibilities to be more

          9  prominent in the document, and they requested that

         10  references to the Chancellor's Regulations be

         11  included to help define and clarify the terminology

         12  used. These were thoughtful suggestions that were

         13  included and which we believe will be valuable and

         14  practical.

         15                 In conclusion, we agree our students

         16  should learn and our staff teach in a school

         17  environment that is free from intimidation and

         18  physical harm. The Department is committed to making

         19  our schools safe and supportive for all students.

         20                 Recently, in a survey conducted by

         21  the Department, a majority of students, parents and

         22  teachers told us they feel safe in their schools.

         23  While we are gratified that this is the case, we

         24  know that our work must be ongoing and substantive

         25  if we are to maintain the gains that we have made
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          2  and continue to improve the level of safety in our

          3  schools.

          4                 We appreciate the City Council's

          5  ongoing support and dedication to our efforts to

          6  help our students become responsible and respectful

          7  individuals and to provide a safe and orderly

          8  environment in our schools.

          9                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         10  address you on these important matters.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I would just

         12  like to mention that some more Council members have

         13  joined us. Council Member Koppell and Gerson and

         14  Vacca, Sears, Garodnick, Foster, Arroyo. And I'm

         15  happy to announce that Council Member Oddo is still

         16  here and with his jacket on.

         17                 Simcha, I don't know if I announced

         18  you last time, but Simcha Felder also.

         19                 Chair Jackson.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, thank you.

         21  And let me just thank the officials from the New

         22  York Police Department and Department of Education

         23  for coming in in preparation for this hearing today.

         24                 Unfortunately, as you know, there was

         25  a situation in a school yesterday in the Lower East
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          2  Side in which a student was arrested, a principal

          3  was arrested, a School Safety Officer was injured,

          4  the teacher was injured and the student was injured

          5  and all three went to the hospital.

          6                 Unfortunately, I found out from a

          7  reporter from the New York Times, and my initial

          8  comment was, this is a mess. A mess that, in my

          9  opinion, we should not be in.

         10                 And one of the things that I said,

         11  and my time is up so I'll come to a conclusion, one

         12  of the things that I said is that the focus of

         13  today's hearing is to find out who is accountable,

         14  is there transparency, and is education and training

         15  happening with not only staff but students also, in

         16  order so that we won't have situations like this

         17  where people are being injured, where people are

         18  being arrested. And, so, hopefully we will find out

         19  some answers to specific questions that we have.

         20                 Now let me just ask, can you shed,

         21  either NYPD or DOE, any light on the incident, the

         22  arrest, the injuries, yesterday? I think it was at

         23  the East Side Community High School in the Lower

         24  East Side, can any one of you share some information

         25  with these three Committees, Education, Public
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          2  Safety, and Juvenile Justice?

          3                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: The incident

          4  yesterday, certainly unfortunate in many aspects, is

          5  under investigation, so I don't think any of us are

          6  prepared today to discuss those specifics until we

          7  have completed that investigation.

          8                 I think what we might do, what you

          9  might find helpful, is kind of walk through what our

         10  procedures are for various situations that occur in

         11  a school. Would that be responsive?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Assistant Chief

         13  Secreto?

         14                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: Chairman

         15  Jackson, I think, again, it would be inappropriate

         16  for me to comment on an ongoing case, but as Ms.

         17  Grimm alluded to, in my opinion, we have safety

         18  committee meetings monthly. I think that's the place

         19  where calmer heads should meet and discuss, in the

         20  event that something should occur, what the policy

         21  would be, what the procedure would be.

         22                 I don't think that in the heat of a

         23  battle in a crisis situation is the time to

         24  determine that. And, again, we have a procedure in

         25  place where principals, representatives from UFT,
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          2  United Federation of Teachers, the Precinct, School

          3  Safety, they have a monthly school safety meeting,

          4  and things like procedures, policies should be at

          5  that time, in my opinion.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, then, as

          7  far as I am concerned, the only information that I'm

          8  receiving, when I say I, myself and members of the

          9  public, we're receiving from the New York Times, the

         10  Daily News, the Sun, the Post and what we hear in

         11  the media, as far as television and other sources

         12  like that. And you know what happens is people read

         13  that and they believe all of the information there

         14  is true.

         15                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: Yes, and

         16  that's unfortunate, and that's why we want to make

         17  sure we have gathered all of the facts and the facts

         18  are clear before we make a public statement on it.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, would you

         20  agree, and I'm asking both of you, that the whole

         21  situation as far as people being injured at the

         22  school, and students and principals being arrested,

         23  that that is the type of situation that we should

         24  not be in, would you agree with that in general?

         25                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: I would
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          2  agree that it is unfortunate in any situation to

          3  have any student injured or any person injured in

          4  our schools. That is not a situation that we want.

          5  But until I know what the facts are for a particular

          6  situation, I can't comment on it.

          7                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: Chairman,

          8  Jackson, you know, without commenting about this

          9  specific incident, I mean that is not our intention

         10  to make arrests and to hurt students, that's not our

         11  intention. And I would challenge anyone that thinks

         12  that they're more concerned about the welfare of

         13  students than the School Safety Agents.

         14                 MS. KONSTAN: And I just want to add

         15  something that you talked about in terms of training

         16  of students. We've spend a lot of time every year,

         17  as I mentioned in the testimony, looking at the

         18  Discipline Code and developing lessons for students

         19  that we conduct in classrooms on the changes in the

         20  Discipline Code and what their rights and

         21  responsibilities are.

         22                 So, I mean, I think that it's

         23  important that we also look at the training that

         24  both our students and our school staff receive in

         25  order to be able to help students understand their
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          2  rights and responsibilities.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. We have

          4  been joined by some students from the Future Leaders

          5  Institute Charter School. And that's a middle

          6  school, grades six, seven and eight.

          7                 This question is for either one of

          8  you to answer. What is the current governance

          9  structure for decisions regarding school safety

         10  matters? Can someone explain that to us, as far as

         11  what is the current governance structure with New

         12  York City agencies, which one of you have the

         13  authority over school safety decisions?

         14                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: Well, let me

         15  make this clear. The Department of Education, in the

         16  person of a principal, is in charge of the school

         17  community. That principal is in charge of the

         18  welfare of the children, the safety of the children,

         19  and making sure that the environment is safe,

         20  healthful and conducive to education.

         21                 At the point, however, that a

         22  situation, and any incidents that arise in the

         23  school, the principal is responsible for reporting

         24  those incidents and following all of the procedures

         25  in the disciplinary manual.
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          2                 At the moment a crime is committed,

          3  as in any civil situation, in any institution, be it

          4  a school, be it a hospital, be it this building, if

          5  a crime is committed, the New York City Police

          6  Department takes over.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Assistant Chief?

          8                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: Yes, as Ms.

          9  Grimm stated, the principal is the CEO of that

         10  facility, when it comes to matters of education and

         11  even discipline, but when it comes to crime and

         12  safety, that's the NYPD's call.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: But isn't safety

         14  also the primary concern of the principal?

         15                 I mean, what happens in a situation

         16  where you have, you know, I can understand a

         17  situation where someone has a gun or a knife

         18  situation where they're not supposed to have it, and

         19  I can understand SSAs and Police Officers assigned

         20  to the school addressing that. But you have

         21  situations that may not be related to a crime, and

         22  then is elevated to a crime situation.

         23                 Where is the decision made in a

         24  situation of situations like that?

         25                 What I've read overall when a school
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          2  is open and a student wants to come to school early,

          3  and is told that they cannot come into the school

          4  early by a school safety officer, isn't that a

          5  decision, though, of the principal and

          6  administration, whether or not students can come to

          7  school early or not?

          8                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: Chairman

          9  Jackson, I couldn't agree with you more. That should

         10  be a decision, but not to be decided that day. That

         11  should be something that is a policy, either of the

         12  principal, of school safety that's agreed upon, and

         13  that's, again, where I allude to these school, these

         14  safety meetings, that can be addressed in these

         15  meetings so that a split second decision doesn't

         16  have to be made or have to be made on the spot. This

         17  could be something that's a policy established

         18  between that principal, between school safety.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, as far as,

         20  you talked about I believe, Assistant Chief, you

         21  talked about in your testimony School Safety Agents

         22  assigned to schools and a protocol; which agency has

         23  the authority of determining how many safety agents

         24  and/or police officers are assigned? Is that

         25  strictly an NYPD decision? Or is that a Department
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          2  of Education decision, or is there collaboration

          3  between the two? Who have the final say as far as

          4  the number of school safety agents and/or police

          5  officers assigned to schools?

          6                 And I heard you say that elementary

          7  schools overall have one assigned to, and then

          8  intermediate schools and high schools has a

          9  supervisor and at minimum, I think you said three in

         10  your testimony.

         11                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: Three.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Is a supervisor

         13  a sergeant? What is the rank of a supervisor?

         14                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: The

         15  supervisor would be a Level 3, which is equivalent,

         16  Level 3 in school safety which is equivalent to a

         17  sergeant in the PD and it's a first line supervisor

         18  --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         20                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: Of School

         21  Safety.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And who has the

         23  final say as the total number of agents or officers

         24  assigned to the school?

         25                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: Well, NYPD
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          2  has the data. We have the staffing model, but we

          3  have input from DOE and the principal themselves. Do

          4  they need less, do they need more, and we revisit

          5  that as if there are incidents, or if there are lack

          6  of incidents, we can make adjustments.

          7                 MS. KONSTAN: Just to add to that, as

          8  the Assistant Chief mentioned in his testimony, we

          9  participated in creating a model that could help the

         10  NYPD look at how to deploy and based upon a number

         11  of variables. And also, as Assistant Chief Secreto

         12  said, this is daily conversations that we have with

         13  School Safety Division about deployment and other

         14  issues in schools, so this constant flow of

         15  information and collaboration among, between our two

         16  agencies and among our personnel, so that we can get

         17  the right model for schools.

         18                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: And one of

         19  the most important voices in that conversation is

         20  the voice of the principal.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Now, in

         22  situations, you had indicated, Assistant Chief, that

         23  at intermediate schools and high schools there is a

         24  supervisor assigned and indicated that it's at least

         25  at the level of the School Safety Agent 3, which is
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          2  equivalent to a Sergeant in the NYPD.

          3                 When decisions are made as far as to

          4  initiate criminal process of a student in a high

          5  school, is that decision made by the supervising

          6  officer at the site? Because you do have a

          7  supervisor at the high school; is that decision made

          8  in collaboration with the principal of the school,

          9  or is it done separate and apart?

         10                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: The agents

         11  and the Level 3s, all NYPD, are trained in powers of

         12  arrest, probable cause, reasonable suspicion. And,

         13  again, you're giving me a theoretical situation, but

         14  in a matter involving, like yesterday, they would

         15  make that call themselves, based on probable cause

         16  to make an arrest.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay, you talked

         18  about it in a case like yesterday, what is the

         19  normal protocol, as far as before criminal

         20  processing of students occurred, is there

         21  discussions? I mean, the principals, in my

         22  understanding, most of them have either cell phones

         23  or walkie-talkies as far as communicating on a

         24  continuous basis with staff and school safety, if

         25  the supervisor should have direct contact with the
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          2  principal; is there collaboration and discussions

          3  before an arrest is effected in criminal processing?

          4  I'm talking about in general. You talked

          5  specifically about yesterday, and I'm curious about

          6  yesterday, obviously, but I want to know what is the

          7  general protocol? And I'm asking you, NYPD, and I'm

          8  also asking whether or not that occurs at DOE level,

          9  and if any DOE officially knows whether or not that

         10  occurs?

         11                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: Mr. Chairman, all the

         12  agents are trained in the elements of probable cause

         13  and the elements of what constitutes a crime. Once a

         14  crime is committed, the agent themselves will make

         15  the determination whether to make an arrest. It's

         16  not in cooperation with DOE or anyone else. They

         17  make the arrest. Just like a Police Officer in the

         18  street, if he sees a crime being committed, they're

         19  going to make the arrest, that's what normally

         20  occurs.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: DOE.

         22                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: The process

         23  should be that if the agent determines that an

         24  immediate arrest is required, the agent makes that

         25  determination. If an immediate arrest is not
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          2  required, we would anticipate some discussion with

          3  the principal. And at the very least, in those cases

          4  where an immediate arrest is required, we would

          5  expect the agent to notify the principal so that the

          6  principal is informed.

          7                 MS. KONSTAN: Just to add to that --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: You can pull up

          9  that other mic., it's separate and apart so you

         10  don't have to keep switching back and forth. Just

         11  pull it up a little closer so we can all hear you in

         12  the Chambers.

         13                 MS. KONSTAN: Okay, is it working?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Yes, it's

         15  working.

         16                 MS. KONSTAN: Also, I think it's

         17  important to note we're educators, and to know if

         18  something is a crime and whether something is a

         19  crime, is not something that we have the expertise

         20  on. That is the expertise of the New York City

         21  Police Department, and we need to rely on them with

         22  that expertise.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Now, there are

         24  many situations that occur that may be perceived as

         25  a crime but is not really as a crime, it could be a
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          2  disciplinary matter. And that's where I'm confused,

          3  as to there appears to be, based on advocates saying

          4  and what I'm hearing is that there is lack of

          5  clarity as to whether or not certain incidents could

          6  not be labeled as a crime and are being labeled as a

          7  crime.

          8                 MS. KONSTAN: I really can't answer

          9  that particular piece, but what I can talk to is

         10  that our Discipline Code is very clear on what our

         11  discipline measures and interventions, and that

         12  helps to guide the principals on that.

         13                 If it's a disciplinary issue,

         14  principals have the responsibility to address

         15  discipline in their schools, and the Discipline Code

         16  outlines a range of consequences for each level of

         17  infraction and each infraction as to what principals

         18  can use to support the students who have committed

         19  that infraction.

         20                 When it's a crime, we need to turn

         21  over to the expertise of our external partners, the

         22  Police Department.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: You know, in

         24  your testimony you said that you perform, you and

         25  your staff perform over 3,000 visits per year to
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          2  schools to look at these situations, and overall has

          3  this issue of the lack of clarity and, you know,

          4  things that may not be considered arrests, has that

          5  been communicated by principals and teachers and

          6  other staff in the school?

          7                 MS. KONSTAN: When we come across

          8  that, in terms of the Discipline Code and what our

          9  schools need to pay attention to, as Chief,

         10  Assistant Chief mentioned, we have monthly safety

         11  committee meetings at each school, and we've

         12  actually provided guidance for school staffs on

         13  topics for the School Safety Committee Meetings.

         14  These School Safety Committee Meetings are valuable

         15  tools in terms of ensuring a safe and secure school

         16  community for a building, and it's at those meetings

         17  where these gray areas, as you're talking about, can

         18  be ironed out and worked through.

         19                 Our Discipline Code has ranges of

         20  five levels of infraction. At the upper levels of

         21  infraction, there are crimes that are there and, so,

         22  where there are disagreements, we need to work

         23  through the School Safety Committee meeting and

         24  through the School Safety staff, which include NYPD

         25  and school personnel, so that there aren't any
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          2  confusions about where, who needs to take

          3  responsibility when a crime is committed and when a

          4  discipline issue needs to be enacted.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: But I look at

          6  the situation, and in listening to what you've

          7  testified, the NYPD, and listening to the advocates,

          8  there are situations where there is lack of clarity

          9  as to matters that may not be considered a crime

         10  that are being considered a crime.

         11                 So, for example, students are

         12  fighting in the school and people are arrested.

         13  Under normal situations fights break out all the

         14  time in schools, that's just normal, and people are

         15  being arrested, where they may not be considered a

         16  crime, and you diffuse the situation, find out what

         17  happened, that would normally fall under the

         18  principal's purview.

         19                 In this situation, I don't know whose

         20  purview that is in. Whose purview is that in, in

         21  that situation I just described?

         22                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: Councilman

         23  Jackson, in the situation you described, if you have

         24  a fight amongst kids and there is no injuries, the

         25  principal can make that call, maybe handle it
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          2  in-house, suspensions, what have you. But once you

          3  have an injury, you have a crime, and you know,

          4  assault, it's going to be either third or second

          5  degree, and that's where we're going to make that

          6  call.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: What is an

          8  injury? I mean, an injury could be someone who was

          9  hit in the arm and is bruised and is hurting, or an

         10  injury could be a bloody nose, a busted lip. It

         11  could be a gash in the head; what is an injury, and

         12  whose call is that?

         13                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: It's a

         14  judgment call, but you know, you have a gash in the

         15  head, you have a black eye, that's an injury, sir.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: So, in essence,

         17  in that situation, you know, an arrest can be moved

         18  forward, as students can be arrested because of an

         19  altercation or fight where someone is injured and

         20  there could be a slight injury. Whereas, normally,

         21  in a normal situation that would not occur where a

         22  student would be arrested. So, I'm looking at this

         23  from a holistic point of view, meaning that the most

         24  important things that I've said, even before this

         25  hearing, is that parents want to make sure that when
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          2  kids go to school they're safe and secure and they

          3  come back home just like when they went to school,

          4  and that's the most important thing, number one, is

          5  safety and security. But in situations like this,

          6  you know, where kids are being arrested for assault,

          7  I mean this just blows our mind overall as parents.

          8                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: But, you

          9  know, Chairman Jackson, I think we would be

         10  irresponsible to those parents if their child was

         11  assaulted and we didn't take appropriate action, and

         12  I think they may have some questions when that child

         13  comes home with that gash over his eye and there is

         14  no police report, and there is also the matter of

         15  does that person want to make a complaint? Are they

         16  a complainant? Are we going to refuse to make an

         17  arrest where they want to make a complaint? That's

         18  some issues that we're challenged with.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: By its terms,

         20  the 1998 MOU, Memorandum of Understanding between

         21  the Department of Education and the New York Police

         22  Department appears to terminate after four years,

         23  unless a joint committee comprised of NYPD and DOE

         24  personnel agree to extend it.

         25                 Did the joint committee agree to

                                                            64

          1  EDUCATION, PUBLIC SAFETY AND JUVENILE JUSTICE

          2  extend this Memorandum of Understanding of 1998

          3  between the Department of Education and New York

          4  Police Department?

          5                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: I'd like to

          6  address that.

          7                 To the best of my knowledge there was

          8  no joint committee that met and recommended a

          9  renewal of that MOU.

         10                 To my mind, it fulfilled its purpose

         11  during that four-year period. Let me remind

         12  everybody that was signed in 1998. It was signed

         13  between the New York City Police Department, and the

         14  Board of Education. Four years later, the Board of

         15  Education was replaced by the Department of

         16  Education. And since we have become a mayoral

         17  agency, we are operating certainly with the New York

         18  City Police Department with many, many of our sister

         19  agencies in a very cooperative way without benefit

         20  of MOUs. I mean, I could give you a list of agencies

         21  we work with.

         22                 I am most proud of the way we are

         23  working now with the Police Department in terms of

         24  moving forward the kinds of initiatives that we have

         25  moved forward to assure greater safety in our
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          2  schools, and I think we've heard about them today.

          3  The Impact, School Initiative certainly, the

          4  professional development, both of our staff and the

          5  Police Department staff, the involvement of the

          6  safety agents in the local school community. Elayna

          7  and her colleagues at the Police Department meet

          8  every other week and are in constant daily touch. We

          9  have here I think a terrific example of two City

         10  agencies working together for the greater good of

         11  our children.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: So, you're

         13  telling me that, are you saying a joint committee

         14  never existed, as per the MOU? So, the MOU between

         15  the DOE and the former, NYPD, meaning Board of

         16  Education since the Mayor took over Mayoral control,

         17  basically you're saying that an MOU was thrown out

         18  the window?

         19                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: Well, I

         20  would like to ask legal counsel exactly what he

         21  thinks about the status of that agreement.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: That's what you

         23  basically said to me.

         24                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: What I'm

         25  saying, my personal opinion is, that MOU has
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          2  outlived its usefulness.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I'm sorry, I'm

          4  not asking you your personal opinion. I'm asking you

          5  as the Deputy Chancellor.

          6                 The MOU, you said basically that

          7  there were no joint committee. Was there ever a

          8  joint committee, do you know? I'm not asking you for

          9  your personal opinion. I'm asking you, in your

         10  position as the Deputy Chancellor or Assistant

         11  Chief, somebody answer me whether or not a joint

         12  committee was ever established in order to deal with

         13  conflict in situations in order to resolve matters

         14  between DOE or the Board of Education and NYPD.

         15                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: I would have

         16  to say I assume so. I was not here during that

         17  four-year period.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: So you do not

         19  know?

         20                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: I do not

         21  know.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. Why do you

         23  assume so?

         24                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: Because I

         25  assume that the Board of Education and the Police
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          2  Department were working together. What I am

          3  addressing, I mean you asked has the MOU been

          4  renewed? It has not been renewed, and I'm saying I

          5  think it's outlived its usefulness because the level

          6  of cooperation and collaboration that we have today

          7  between the Department of Education and New York

          8  City Police Department is incredible, and I think

          9  something that wasn't even envisioned in that MOU.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay, let me ask

         11  the Assistant Chief or the Chief.

         12                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: I have to

         13  agree. The MOU that you're referring to was signed

         14  by at that time Rudy Giuliani, who was the Mayor at

         15  the time. Not the Police Department, it was between

         16  the Mayor's Office and the Board of Education. So,

         17  we really didn't have too much say in that. So, I

         18  don't know of any type of meetings that we've had

         19  subsequent to that with respect to that MOU. So, I

         20  have to agree with DOE in terms of our knowledge of

         21  that particular MOU.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. Then what

         23  legal document, if any, or legal structure,

         24  currently exists in governing the relationship

         25  between the Department of Education and the New York
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          2  Police Department?

          3                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: Well, as

          4  with many agencies, there is no written MOU. We

          5  worked with several sister agencies and worked very

          6  collaboratively.

          7                 What happens is, if we don't the

          8  Mayor is the ultimate governance focus here, and

          9  we're all responsible to him to make sure that it

         10  works.

         11                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: Exactly. The

         12  Mayor is our boss. The Mayor is the boss of the

         13  Police Commissioner and he is the boss of the

         14  Department of Education. And as a result of that, we

         15  were working together. And I have to say, I have to

         16  concur, what's being said here is the level of

         17  cooperation that's occurring between the two

         18  agencies is fantastic.

         19                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: And I think

         20  we have to rely on the data. Look at the data, the

         21  improvement in the safety of our schools.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Then what, if

         23  you're saying that no legal document exists, if

         24  you're saying the MOU has outlived its usefulness,

         25  so it's basically sunsetted. That's what I'm
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          2  gathering from your testimony, then what policy

          3  procedure manual that deals with the relationship

          4  between NYPD and DOE? Do you have a procedures

          5  manual within NYPD or DOE? Do you have a policy

          6  manual? How does individuals in your rank as Chief

          7  and your rank as Assistant Chief, Head of School

          8  Division, the Deputy Chancellor or the Chief in the

          9  Department of Education, you can be gone tomorrow

         10  and somebody else can take your place, where is the

         11  policies and procedures manual for someone else to

         12  come in, be able to review that and determine what

         13  the relationship is between the two agencies?

         14                 MS. KONSTAN: We do have Chancellor's

         15  regulations that address the issue of the joint

         16  relationship between the DOE and NYPD.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: What is that?

         18                 MS. KONSTAN: In Chancellor's

         19  Regulations?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Yes. What is it?

         21                 MS. KONSTAN: It talks about when

         22  crimes occur, who is responsible for that. It's in

         23  Chancellor's Regulation, I believe it's A-412.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: A-412.

         25                 MS. KONSTAN: I believe that's so.

                                                            70

          1  EDUCATION, PUBLIC SAFETY AND JUVENILE JUSTICE

          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: In NYPD?

          3                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: We have our

          4  Patrol Guide and the School Safety Agents have their

          5  rules and procedures.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: That Patrol

          7  Guide is a general guide, and SSA is their normal

          8  procedure. I'm talking about the relationship

          9  between DOE and NYPD, what we were referring to; is

         10  there any policy or procedure manual that you have

         11  within community affairs?

         12                 Because Chief, you're responsible,

         13  you supervise the Assistant Chief, is that correct?

         14                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: That's correct.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Do you have a

         16  manual or a policy and procedures manual for all of

         17  your top brass and/or your directors and borough

         18  commanders and what have you and so forth as far as

         19  this relationship between NYPD and DOE?

         20                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: No.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: You do not,

         22  okay.

         23                 Other than the Mayor, is there any

         24  other oversight body that's looking at this

         25  situation overall, to the best of your knowledge, as
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          2  far as the relationship, working relationship

          3  between NYPD and DOE as far as school safety?

          4                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: Well, the

          5  Mayor is a pretty big oversight for us, of course,

          6  and we have this hearing.

          7                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: I concur.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Let me turn to

          9  Peter Vallone, Jr., the Chair of the Public Safety

         10  Committee.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: As much as I

         12  like the Mayor, he's a busy man and I don't think

         13  the oversight of something like this is something

         14  that he does on a daily basis.

         15                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: Certainly

         16  not. But please remember, we have the Commissioner,

         17  we have the Chancellor, and we have all of us who

         18  are all working on this on a daily basis.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I realize that,

         20  and I have the greatest respect for all of you, and

         21  I'll get into that. But our teachers, our

         22  principals, our NYPD officers, School Safety Agents,

         23  can't rely on your opinions and your working

         24  relationships. They need something in writing to

         25  tell them how to act. They're the ones that are
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          2  brought up on charges or not based on how they act.

          3  And that can't be something that fluctuates based on

          4  daily meetings. That has to be in writing and there

          5  has to be some sort of formal written agreement.

          6  There was one, it wasn't extended for some reason.

          7                 This is the exact same situation that

          8  existed six years ago with our emergency responders,

          9  when they were showing up on scenes and no one knew

         10  who was in control. The City Council put in

         11  legislation mandating that a written agreement was

         12  made up, and rather than hear that legislation, the

         13  Mayor worked with us and came up with a great CIMS

         14  protocol so that now everyone knows who is in

         15  charge, although there are still some improvements

         16  to be made.

         17                 You know, this sounds like that

         18  situation where you have two agencies, co-equal, who

         19  don't have a written protocol as to how to interact

         20  with each other.

         21                 You know, for example, you said, Ms.

         22  Grimm, that the principal was in charge of safety

         23  until the crime was committed, which then changed to

         24  an immediate arrest is required, and then Chief

         25  Secreto said an injury makes a crime, which is not
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          2  true. There is attempted assaults, there are also

          3  all sorts of crimes that are not injuries, so right

          4  here we've got a lot of confusing going on in this

          5  antiseptic atmosphere of a chambers. I can imagine

          6  what happens when there is an assault in a crowded

          7  hallway of a school.

          8                 (Applause).

          9                 Thanks for that, but we really can't

         10  have any outbursts here.

         11                 So, again, hypothetically, there is

         12  an altercation between students, an assault may or

         13  may not have occurred, the School Safety Agent

         14  believes it has occurred. No injury. School Safety

         15  Agent believes it has occurred and believes an

         16  arrest should be made. The principal disagrees. What

         17  happens?

         18                 Chief Secreto, let's start with you.

         19                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: I'm still

         20  trying to go over the part about the injury where

         21  it's not a crime in the event of a fight.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: No, an injury is

         23  absolutely a crime, but you don't need an injury to

         24  make it a crime. An attempted assault is a crime

         25  with no injury. Graffiti is a crime with no injury.
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          2  So, we can't have that as the basis as to when an

          3  arrest is immediate and when the School Safety

          4  Officer is in charge.

          5                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: Well, I

          6  mean, I'm not disagreeing with you. Certainly in the

          7  case of an injury it's a crime. I didn't mean that

          8  to be all inclusive.

          9                 But, again, there are immediate

         10  situations, as Ms. Grimm alluded to, where an arrest

         11  is going to be affected, and then there are

         12  situations where there is going to be some

         13  discussion.

         14                 If a student may be in a classroom,

         15  the event didn't just occur, there may be some

         16  discussion with school administration.

         17                 In the event of a fight with no

         18  injury, that's a judgment call. I can't say in all

         19  instances there will be no arrest. If that fight

         20  took place in front of a police officer, you may

         21  have a different situation than a fight that's not

         22  in front.

         23                 There are different situations and I

         24  can't speak to all of them in one sitting, but it's

         25  a good chance if it's a fight, no injuries, boys
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          2  will be boys, it can be handled in-house by

          3  administration.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: You know, I have

          5  no problem with discussions and everybody working

          6  together. That's a great thing, and that's what

          7  happens in most situations when the police and fire

          8  show up on the scene too. But at some point there is

          9  a disagreement that can't be brought to you or to

         10  the Mayor. It has to be made on the scene between

         11  the School Safety Officer and the principal. What

         12  happens? They disagree completely? School Safety

         13  Officer says this guy goes, principal says, no way,

         14  one of my best kids, let's give them detention, not

         15  incarceration; what happens?

         16                 MS. KONSTAN: What I would say is, at

         17  the scene, obviously as you talked about earlier

         18  just now that the collaboration is in most cases

         19  what we see, and that is working together in that

         20  working relationship has really developed to be a

         21  good one.

         22                 When it happens and the police or the

         23  School Safety Agents believe that it's a crime, then

         24  they need to act and we need to let them do what

         25  they need to do.
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          2                 However, there are many, many, many

          3  instances where that kind of conversation and that

          4  discussion, and that collaboration between and among

          5  the School Safety Agents and the school personnel to

          6  really have a team approach work in schools has

          7  proven to be successful.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I know that. I

          9  know you're doing a wonderful job.

         10                 MS. KONSTAN: And when it happens that

         11  police say it's a crime, we have to say they have to

         12  do their job.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay, I'm not

         14  going to take a position on that. Let's assume

         15  that's a good way to do it.

         16                 Is that your opinion today, or is

         17  that written down someplace, so that we can all take

         18  a look at that, and that the people who can make

         19  these decisions can read it and understand what's

         20  happening?

         21                 MS. KONSTAN: It is in Chancellor's

         22  regulations A-412, which we can get copies for.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: That's School

         24  Safety Agents take priorities over principals?

         25                 MS. KONSTAN: When a crime is
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          2  committed, the School Safety Agent is responsible.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: And who makes

          4  the decision as to whether a crime is committed?

          5                 MS. KONSTAN: The police have to make

          6  that decision. The School Safety Agents are members

          7  of the Police Department.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: So that decision

          9  is in the hands of the School Safety Agent to make a

         10  determination as to whether a crime is committed?

         11                 MS. KONSTAN: Right. They're the

         12  experts in crime. We're not.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay. I'm glad

         14  we decided that. I still think, I think many of my

         15  colleagues, this should be formalized into a written

         16  agreement as it was for four years, that that

         17  committee was supposed to reevaluate that on a

         18  yearly basis and come up with suggestions and

         19  apparently never met, and we believe that should be

         20  the process.

         21                 I want to move on to another topic.

         22  I'm sure the Council Members will go back into that.

         23                 As I've said in the past, I'm a

         24  parent of two children in the public school system,

         25  one for seven years now, and I know you're doing a
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          2  great job, all of you. I know that the schools are

          3  safer than they were. They're better than they were

          4  and I commend you for that. And I don't need

          5  statistics to tell me that, but statistics are

          6  important. So, let's think about that. And we can

          7  always do things better, so that's what we're here

          8  for today.

          9                 They only make sense, these

         10  statistics, if they're properly reported and they're

         11  understandable. So, my first concern is that a

         12  Comptroller's report this year that said that many

         13  incidents are not being entered into the system, and

         14  they estimate 21 percent, 14 percent of those are

         15  considered serious.

         16                 So, how is a decision made, first of

         17  all, as to whether or not to report an incident? And

         18  what is your comment on the Comptroller's report?

         19                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: The

         20  Comptroller's report, first of all, is a rather

         21  small judgmental selection of schools. Also the data

         22  was quite old and I think what we'd like to talk to

         23  you about is, and we can give you data, is the

         24  change in the reporting since those data from the

         25  Comptroller's report were used. And I think we have
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          2  very good data, and Elayna and her team have done a

          3  terrific job in terms of training school personnel

          4  and principals about reporting and making it a much

          5  bigger priority.

          6                 Elayna, why don't you talk about some

          7  of the specifics.

          8                 MS. KONSTAN: Unfortunately, the

          9  Comptroller's audit looked at three-year-old data,

         10  and it looked at a time when our on-line occurrence

         11  reporting system was really in its infancy stage,

         12  and it really was in the beginning, the very

         13  beginning of the Office of School Intervention and

         14  Development at the time in my office.

         15                 Since then, we looked three years

         16  later, as I mentioned in the testimony, we have a 40

         17  percent increase in incidents reported in our

         18  on-line occurrence reporting system. This clearly

         19  speaks to a change that occurred from 2004/'05

         20  school year to the present. That is as a

         21  responsibility and a relationship to the training

         22  that we've done working with schools and our school

         23  leaders. Our Discipline Code, our Discipline Code

         24  guides what is to be reported in OORS and how it is

         25  to be reported.
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          2                 I also mentioned in the testimony

          3  that when we look at this gain, 32 percent of the

          4  gain -- 32 percent has been an increase in the

          5  reporting of the low level infractions, Level 1,

          6  Level 2, Level 3, and that's significant in terms of

          7  using the New York City Police Department's broken

          8  windows theory, when we look at that, principals in

          9  schools paying attention to the smaller infractions

         10  to helping students in schools and address the

         11  quality of life issues so that we can have a

         12  decrease, which we've also seen in the most serious,

         13  most egregious Level 5 incidents. There has been a

         14  decrease in that of 11 percent.

         15                 So, when we look at the Comptroller's

         16  audit of three years ago, and we look at today,

         17  we're looking at two different pictures.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay. Well, I'd

         19  like to say that we were a big part of that, because

         20  maybe two years ago you could get the school lunch

         21  menu on line but not the amount of crime, which

         22  occurred in the school, and then I introduced a bill

         23  which my colleagues passed and mandated that that

         24  information be placed on the web.

         25                 So, first of all, before I get to the
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          2  fact that that law isn't actually being followed

          3  right now, I don't believe my question was

          4  completely answered: who makes the decision as to

          5  what gets reported? And is every crime supposed to

          6  be reported? And then when you get down to the other

          7  types of incidents that aren't crimes, what gets

          8  reported, what doesn't, and who makes that decision?

          9                 MS. KONSTAN: In terms of the on-line

         10  occurrence reporting system, it's the principal or

         11  his or her designee, but the principal ultimately

         12  who reports in our on-line occurrence reporting

         13  system, the Discipline Code guides that reporting.

         14                 As I mentioned earlier, crimes,

         15  looking at our Level 5 infractions, crimes are

         16  there, so all of those Level 5 infractions, 4s and

         17  so on, are to be reported into OORS, and that's the

         18  school's call. That's the school's principal's

         19  responsibility to do that.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Again, the

         21  crimes are the easiest ones. What happens to some of

         22  the lower level ones that you may get detention for?

         23  I don't know, disrupting a classroom, something like

         24  that, does that get reported?

         25                 MS. KONSTAN: That would be reported.
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          2  Absolutely.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: And there's

          4  written guidelines as to what gets reported?

          5                 MS. KONSTAN: As I said, there is

          6  written guidelines in terms of the Discipline Code

          7  and the training that we do on our on-line reporting

          8  system, and there's a manual for that.

          9                 The low-level infractions are in our

         10  Level 1s and Level 2s and those are reported and we

         11  have seen a huge increase in those reporting, of

         12  those lower level infractions.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: And who does the

         14  oversight there to ensure that it's happening?

         15                 MS. KONSTAN: It's a principal's

         16  responsibility to do that. I know that the

         17  Chancellor is very forceful and strong about the

         18  need for accurate and honest reporting, and my

         19  office also looks at the monthly infractions by

         20  schools on a monthly basis.

         21                 There are also Borough-based Safety

         22  Administrators, who work with schools directly on

         23  ensuring that there is accurate reporting.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay. Now,

         25  regarding the law that the City Council passed, we
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          2  mandated that not just felony crime, but the

          3  different types of crime out of school be reported

          4  on the web so parents can make an informed decision

          5  as to whether or not to send their child to that

          6  school.

          7                 We also mandate it as part of our law

          8  that these other occurrences that are not crimes be

          9  reported on the web.

         10                 I have a copy of the website and all

         11  your reporting is major crimes and other crimes, and

         12  NYPD non-criminal incidents, as opposed to the

         13  Disciplinary Code incidents. Why is that the case?

         14  It's been over a year that this law has been in

         15  effect. Do you intend to follow this law or you're

         16  just not able to yet? Or do you intend to not follow

         17  it?

         18                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: Well, I

         19  apologize that we're not in compliance with that. I

         20  think we can get there very quickly. One thing,

         21  we've thought this through, our OORS data is

         22  actually not --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: When you say

         24  OORS, just explain what that is for everyone.

         25                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: The OORS
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          2  data is the On-line Reporting System where the

          3  principals enter all of these infractions, be they

          4  the minor number 1s, all the way up to 5, which is

          5  what I believe the law addressed. Those data are not

          6  final until we have sent them to the New York State

          7  Department of Education for review.

          8                 Once the State Education Department

          9  reviews them, they, and it, I should say, the

         10  Department puts those data on its web. So, certainly

         11  there is no reason why we can't either put a link or

         12  just completely put a set on our own web page, too,

         13  and we will address that as soon as we leave here.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I'm glad to hear

         15  that.

         16                 You gave us an update on cameras,

         17  which I appreciate. What is your opinion, I guess

         18  Chief Secreto, on the effectiveness of the cameras

         19  that you place in the schools?

         20                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: It's still a

         21  work-in-progress, we're still enhancing the system,

         22  but it's a great investigative tool. It's also a

         23  deterrent, and I would like to see it expanded.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: As would I and I

         25  think most of us. I have heard nothing but good
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          2  things from principals who have, one teacher was

          3  being accused of assaulting a student, it was on

          4  tape that that didn't happen and that saved a long

          5  process for that teacher. Graffiti has been solved,

          6  things like that, of course it's a deterrent, and if

          7  anyone does enter the school through one of the

          8  many, many gates or doors that don't have security

          9  agents, it can be caught through their cameras. So,

         10  I also think it should be expanded. Unfortunately, I

         11  am a little concerned that only 74 buildings have

         12  cameras, 60 more this year, to go to a total of 134,

         13  which is about ten percent of our buildings, with

         14  152 remaining on high priority. Why is that going so

         15  slowly? And when do those priority schools expect to

         16  get cameras?

         17                 MS. KONSTAN: I just want to add one

         18  piece. This is the digital video surveillance. There

         19  are additional schools that have this closed circuit

         20  TV, there is about another 140, which as we continue

         21  to move forward in this program, we would really

         22  want to replace all of them with this much more

         23  sophisticated IPDVS or digital video surveillance.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: That was my next

         25  question actually. Because I know that I fund them
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          2  for every school in my district and they're usually

          3  closed circuit not the digital --

          4                 MS. KONSTAN: Right.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Because it's a

          6  new technology.

          7                 MS. KONSTAN: Right. Right.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: So, how soon

          9  will those 152 be able to get cameras, do we

         10  believe?

         11                 MS. KONSTAN: Well, our next priority,

         12  which we'll have, are those 60 other new buildings.

         13  And, again, those are buildings, not schools,

         14  because you know we have many schools co-located in

         15  a building, so we have many, many more schools that

         16  take advantage of this wonderful technology, and

         17  moving forward in terms of the next capital project.

         18  We'll look at the next list of priorities. And this,

         19  which I believe the City Council does have, this is

         20  as a result of Local Law 52, in terms of our report,

         21  and again, this was done collaboratively with the

         22  New York City Police Department in terms of which

         23  are the next rounds of schools.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay, I'd like

         25  to be kept updated on that.
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          2                 MS. KONSTAN: Absolutely.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: And I would like

          4  it to move as quickly as possible.

          5                 The footage of an incident, let's say

          6  for example yesterday's incident, who has access to

          7  that? I assume NYPD and DOE, but do parents of

          8  students have access to the film that's taken?

          9                 MS. KONSTAN: In terms of footage,

         10  since this is for the most case, I'm talking about

         11  the IPDVS, the Digital Video Surveillance, there is

         12  no tape. There is a CD because it's digital.

         13                 When schools want to request copies

         14  of the CD, there is a way that they can do that on

         15  our on-line system to request copies. If such

         16  footage is going to be used in a suspension hearing

         17  and is going to be part of the school record,

         18  parents are also entitled to that.

         19                 In terms of other outside agencies,

         20  like law enforcement, the footage is under the

         21  protection of FRPA (phonetic), like any other

         22  student record, and unless there is a subpoena, or

         23  it is deemed that there is imminent health and

         24  safety issues, we cannot release that footage to

         25  anyone else.

                                                            88

          1  EDUCATION, PUBLIC SAFETY AND JUVENILE JUSTICE

          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: How long are the

          3  digital images kept, until they're erased?

          4                 MS. KONSTAN: I would have to get back

          5  to you on that. I really don't know the answer to

          6  that. I can check that out.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay. And was

          8  yesterday's incident recorded on film?

          9                 MS. KONSTAN: I don't know. I don't

         10  know if, right now off the top of my head, if that

         11  school has video surveillance. I would have to check

         12  that.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I realize that

         14  you're not able to comment on the specifics of

         15  yesterday's event, I'm a little again concerned that

         16  you've already commented to one of the daily papers

         17  that the principal will not be disciplined, which

         18  apparently means you have enough information to make

         19  that very, very serious decision. I don't know

         20  anything about what happened, other than what I

         21  read, I'm not taking a position, but when a role

         22  model interferes in an arrest, whether rightly or

         23  wrongly, that's a very serious matter. Because if a

         24  child emulates that conduct, that child could be

         25  dead on the street. And you've already made the

                                                            89

          1  EDUCATION, PUBLIC SAFETY AND JUVENILE JUSTICE

          2  decision based on statements made at least to the

          3  Post by a spokesperson that there will be no

          4  discipline. How is that decision enabled to be made,

          5  if you don't have the specifics that you're willing

          6  to talk to us about today?

          7                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: I'll have to

          8  get back to you in terms of that comment. I'm sorry,

          9  I don't have a response for you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Chair Jackson

         11  would like Chief Secreto to answer the questions as

         12  to whether or not there is any, if you are aware

         13  there is any video or digital images recorded from

         14  this incident yesterday?

         15                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: No, there is

         16  no video.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: You don't know

         18  of any?

         19                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: I'm told

         20  that there is no video.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: You're told that

         22  there is no video, okay.

         23                 That's unfortunate. That's why we

         24  need more cameras, I'd like to have videotape.

         25                 Chair Jackson would like to know if
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          2  there are -- I'm a little confused. Why don't you

          3  ask the question.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

          5                 You said that there is no video.

          6  There is an assumption in your response that there

          7  is no video recording systems in place at that

          8  school, and I wanted to ask a clarity, do they have

          9  digital imaging at that school, or video equipment

         10  that recorded the incident? Do they have equipment

         11  there, or there is no video of the situation? Which

         12  one? Or both?

         13                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: The school

         14  is not outfitted with cameras.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay, that's

         16  what I wanted to know.

         17                 I assumed that in your response, but

         18  I needed clarity on that.

         19                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: Okay, yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you,

         22  Chair.

         23                 One more question and I'm done. There

         24  is even confusion as to who is responsible for

         25  overseeing complaints against school safety
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          2  officers. In fact, we received a letter from DOE

          3  addressed to Chair Jackson which said that they

          4  should be reported to the CCRB. That's in fact not

          5  the case apparently. The Police Department, Internal

          6  Affairs, has jurisdiction over the School Safety

          7  Agents, so I just wanted to address that situation

          8  for a moment.

          9                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: Chairman,

         10  there are several methods for making a complaint

         11  against an agent. They do go to, IAB is the main

         12  repository for the complaints. They take some, the

         13  ones that are serious misconduct, corruption, they

         14  assess the complaints. They give some remaining that

         15  fall to a lesser category to School Safety

         16  Investigations, and then School Safety

         17  Investigations also gives those a lesser category

         18  outside the guidelines, minor complaints of lost

         19  property, lost ID card, they go to the Borough

         20  Integrity Control Officers to investigate.

         21                 CCRB does not take complaints against

         22  the civilians. That is done by Internal Affairs and

         23  distributed also to investigations, School Safety

         24  Investigations.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Does anyone up
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          2  there have an opinion as to whether or not CCRB

          3  should be responsible for School Safety Officers?

          4                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: I think the

          5  current system is efficient. The IAB, I have some

          6  statistics, if you'll allow me. They had 59 cases

          7  last year, and substantiated 18. So, almost a third

          8  of the cases that IAB handled were substantiated at

          9  the School Safety Investigations level.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Which is a much

         11  higher rate than CCRB.

         12                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: Absolutely.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Yes.

         14                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: And the

         15  investigations level had 142 cases, I believe, and

         16  they had a ten percent substantiation rate. So,

         17  there are, there are also 32 arrests and suspensions

         18  of agents last year. So, agents are being held

         19  accountable. They are being disciplined, and the

         20  process I think is efficient.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: So, 132 arrests

         22  last year alone?

         23                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: No, 32

         24  arrests and suspensions of agents. Thirty-two.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thirty-two
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          2  arrests and suspensions, okay.

          3                 Again, 1,000 questions come into my

          4  mind, but I'm trying to end so that the long list of

          5  Council members have a chance to ask some questions.

          6                 So, let me just again thank you. I

          7  went to my daughter's school yesterday for parent

          8  follow your child around day, or whatever it's

          9  called, and you're doing a wonderful job. I

         10  appreciate the job all of you are doing.

         11                 I can say, though, that being there

         12  shows me how confusing it is in those hallways, all

         13  we're trying to do here today is just make it a

         14  little less confusing. So, thank you all for the job

         15  you're doing.

         16                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: Thank you.

         17                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Chair Gonzalez.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GONZALEZ: Thank you.

         20                 Okay, bear with me and I'd like us to

         21  sort of walk through: There is an incident in the

         22  school, the safety officer is there, the Police

         23  Department, okay, the principal; explain to me, when

         24  is it that the parent is notified? Who notifies the

         25  parent? And if there is an arrest, I would say? If
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          2  there is an arrest and the principal is aware of it,

          3  that child is in a school, he's the minor, when is

          4  the parent notified?

          5                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: The

          6  principal notifies the parent. That's covered in the

          7  regulation I'm going to share with you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GONZALEZ: Okay. So, the

          9  police do not but the principal does. So, obviously

         10  the police let the principal know at that point, or

         11  there is a conference of both?

         12                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: Yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GONZALEZ: Is there a

         14  conference or some kind of meeting between the two

         15  so that you know who to notify or what exactly

         16  happened?

         17                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: The

         18  principal is notified by an agent.

         19                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: And our

         20  procedures require anyone under the age of 17 years

         21  old, we have to notify the parents also.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GONZALEZ: Immediately of

         23  the incident or after they're already spoken to?

         24                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: We notify

         25  the parents once we have the juvenile at our police
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          2  facility. We notify them immediately.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GONZALEZ: Okay. Now, you

          4  know that I chair the Juvenile Justice Committee,

          5  and I want to thank you all for your testimony. You

          6  know, as far as I'm concerned, we just look to

          7  improve. That's what I'm trying to do here. We want

          8  a better environment for our children, and we want

          9  them to be safe.

         10                 Okay, now, I want to know, do you

         11  have stats that would give me numbers of children

         12  that have been arrested?

         13                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: I have stats

         14  for '06/'07.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GONZALEZ: Okay. Then the

         16  other thing is --

         17                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: And this

         18  year as well.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GONZALEZ: Number of

         20  arrests -- okay, also, I need to also know how many

         21  of those children during that period ended up in

         22  DJJ? Is that something that you can give us?

         23                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: Excuse me. I

         24  didn't hear you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GONZALEZ: How many of
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          2  those children that were detained ended up in DJJ?

          3  Do you guys follow-up? Is there a method of you

          4  knowing this? Can we work together to get these

          5  numbers? Because eventually they end up in

          6  Department of Juvenile Justice. If they are arrested

          7  and detained, this is where they end up, right?

          8                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: Yes. If they

          9  go through the system and they're remanded.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GONZALEZ: Right. So,

         11  ultimately it can happen.

         12                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: Yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GONZALEZ: Do you know how

         14  many end up?

         15                 You don't know.

         16                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: I don't

         17  know.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GONZALEZ: Okay, I would

         19  love to get those numbers. I would certainly

         20  appreciate it.

         21                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: We probably

         22  can get them. I'm sure.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GONZALEZ: Okay. Then the

         24  other thing is, the reason that we need to get

         25  numbers, and I think this could work for the future
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          2  is that we, here in the Council, we plan on

          3  initiatives and we plan on programs, there's

          4  programs that we're already funding probably, like

          5  the PAL programs and all these alternatives. We need

          6  to know how many children are ending up in DJJ,

          7  probably for a short period of time, and then maybe

          8  end up back in your school. And then I guess my

          9  question would be, is there any way that you could

         10  work towards case conferencing, follow-up, something

         11  so that when that child is released from detention,

         12  if it's a period of time, a short period of time,

         13  and they will return to the school possibly, so that

         14  there can be that connection back into the school;

         15  is that something?

         16                 MS. KONSTAN: I'm just saying that

         17  that is something that schools try to do in terms of

         18  the case conferencing, when students return back

         19  from facilities, working with the guidance staff in

         20  the schools, and the people personnel team

         21  committees to really help to make that transition a

         22  smooth one.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GONZALEZ: Okay. So, in

         24  other words, it's already happening?

         25                 MS. KONSTAN: Yes, it is.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GONZALEZ: Okay, so, you

          3  do follow-up once a child is arrested, and you have

          4  --

          5                 MS. KONSTAN: I thought you meant when

          6  they come back to school.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GONZALEZ: Okay. So, how

          8  would you know when they're going to return? Are

          9  they just gone? I mean, I want to understand.

         10                 MS. KONSTAN: I mean, there are ways

         11  to follow-up, and schools follow-up when students

         12  are not there, in terms of students being at

         13  different facilities, and schools know that through

         14  their accounting secretaries and in terms of follow

         15  through when students are not there. We have

         16  attendance teachers, we have attendance procedures

         17  that do follow-up to find and to address students

         18  who are not at school.

         19                 When a student comes back, and he is

         20  coming back from a facility, the school works with

         21  the guidance department in order to be able to help

         22  make that a smooth transition back into school.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GONZALEZ: We are working

         24  very hard, DJJ, and I say Department of Juvenile

         25  Justice, as well as the Committee and the Council,
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          2  the Council, the Administration, as you know,

          3  yourselves, to ensure that there is nothing lost for

          4  a child in respect to education, even if he has had

          5  a situation that may be just a deviation of their

          6  character.

          7                 So, that's why this is so important.

          8  It's so important to the Committee, it's so

          9  important to us that we follow-up and that we

         10  clearly understand if this child is going to return

         11  to school, that the school, the principal, they know

         12  that there is some method of following that up.

         13  That's very significant. And also because we work

         14  very hard on lowering recidivism rate, and we do not

         15  want these children back.

         16                 I also would like the Assistant Chief

         17  to please give us the numbers on the arrests for the

         18  record. You said you have them?

         19                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: Yes. Okay,

         20  now this includes all arrests. I can't say that

         21  they're all school kids. This includes all arrests

         22  made by the Uniformed Task Force and School Safety

         23  Agents as a whole.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GONZALEZ: Okay, in the

         25  school?

                                                            100

          1  EDUCATION, PUBLIC SAFETY AND JUVENILE JUSTICE

          2                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: Well, it

          3  would be in the schools, it could be outside the

          4  schools just as well.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GONZALEZ: Okay, is there

          6  any way that we could distinguish the difference

          7  between those that are arrested, the young people?

          8  That's what I would like to be able to get. I mean,

          9  we could get this number, that's fine.

         10                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: This could

         11  include parents. It could include school principals,

         12  unfortunately. It could include teachers. You know,

         13  it can include kids.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GONZALEZ: That's like a

         15  general number, in other words?

         16                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: Yes, this is

         17  the complete number.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GONZALEZ: Is there any

         19  way we can get specific numbers just for the youth?

         20  That's my question.

         21                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: I can't

         22  extract that.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GONZALEZ: For the future?

         24                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: In the

         25  future, possibly.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GONZALEZ: Okay, thank

          3  you.

          4                 Do you have the numbers? Can you give

          5  them to us now?

          6                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GONZALEZ: Thank you.

          8                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: School

          9  Safety Agents made 785 arrests, the Uniformed Task

         10  Force made 491 arrests, and that's a total of 1,276

         11  arrests. And that was for the '06/'07 school year.

         12                 Now this year, the start of this

         13  school year, School Safety Agents have 126 arrests,

         14  the Uniformed Task Force have 41 arrests, and that's

         15  a total of 167 arrests since the beginning of

         16  school.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GONZALEZ: Thank you. I

         18  definitely believe that we need to move towards

         19  getting numbers that can separate the children from

         20  the parents and from other people that are not

         21  children. It's important for the work that we're

         22  doing here.

         23                 I want to thank you for the

         24  testimony, and for now that's it. Thank you.

         25                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GONZALEZ: Council Member

          3  Liu.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Thank you,

          5  Chairpersons, for holding this hearing, and I want

          6  to thank the Department of Education and the Police

          7  Department for participating.

          8                 Chief, I just want to say that

          9  notwithstanding the compliments that you've been

         10  receiving from some of my colleagues here. I want to

         11  point to your own testimony that 83 percent of the

         12  kids and the teachers feel safe in schools. That is

         13  far short of the goal. That is not something that we

         14  should be resting on our laurels about.

         15                 When you have 17 out of every hundred

         16  students or teachers not feeling safe at school,

         17  that's a problem. So, let's not get too complacent

         18  here, and I'm not suggesting you are, but we still

         19  have a long way to go.

         20                 Now, far worse than that is the

         21  statistic that you cite, Chief, about how the

         22  students and the teachers feel about the Police

         23  Department contributing to their safety in schools.

         24  Those statistics are far more disturbing.

         25  Sixty-eight percent of the kids, 70 percent of the
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          2  teachers feel that the police presence in the school

          3  is contributing to their safety.

          4                 Those statistics, one could come up

          5  with different conclusions. The conclusions that I

          6  come up with are that it's not actually working,

          7  that the beefed up police presence is not actually

          8  inspiring more confidence among the students and the

          9  teachers, thereby contributing to a true learning

         10  environment.

         11                 I think those statistics, and I trust

         12  that they are correct, I don't think you would

         13  present any statistics that are faulty here, those

         14  statistics point to the need to reexamine what it is

         15  we're doing with the Police Department and the

         16  Police presence in the schools, and how better to

         17  manage that.

         18                 What has happened yesterday gives us

         19  a very clear example of the kinds of difficulties

         20  that will inevitably arise when we talk about having

         21  to in your words, and, Chief, I mean no disrespect,

         22  I have a great deal of respect for what you do as a

         23  law enforcement officer, I just question what it is

         24  that we're doing in our public schools when the

         25  Police Department talks about how we should be
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          2  securing the facility? I mean, this is a school, and

          3  I don't understand the kind of thinking, when we go

          4  into a school, we flood the school with cops. No

          5  disrespect to cops. The School Safety Agents, they

          6  do a great job in the role that they've been given,

          7  but the overall management and the mindset of

          8  securing the facility inside a school, I think

          9  that's faulty. And if you look at what happened

         10  yesterday, the principal of that school has been

         11  brought up on charges by the Police Department, and

         12  yet according to the reports, the Department of

         13  Education has no plans whatsoever to bring up

         14  charges. Why is there such a big discrepancy? If the

         15  Department of Education are educators, and they're

         16  not able to judge whether a crime has been

         17  committed, and you rely on a Police Department, then

         18  if the Police Department files charges, shouldn't

         19  therefore the Department file charges accordingly?

         20                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: Is that a

         21  question?

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: That would be my

         23  first question.

         24                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: We need,

         25  there is no action being taken right now in terms of
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          2  the principal, the principal has gone back to his

          3  school. We will await the final resolution of the

          4  investigation that is underway.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: So, you're saying

          6  at some point the Department may file charges also?

          7                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: I'm not

          8  saying that. And as I told Chair Jackson earlier, I

          9  need to confirm the Department's position there. The

         10  papers did carry a comment that there was no action

         11  being taken at this time, and I need to follow-up in

         12  terms of what the long term. And I will have no

         13  response probably until the investigation is

         14  completed.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Well, all right.

         16  Have there been incidents where police charges have

         17  been filed and no department charges undertaken?

         18                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: I do not

         19  know as a matter of record.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Well --

         21                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: I would

         22  doubt it.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: What happens in

         24  many cases is that the charges by the Police

         25  Department are then dropped, and therefore they
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          2  result in no charges or disciplinary charges by the

          3  Department of Education. Now, that is a clear

          4  example of a conflict that will arise in the absence

          5  of clear guidelines.

          6                 I have listened to a lot of the

          7  testimony and many of my earlier questions have been

          8  answered already.

          9                 Mr. Chair and Madam Chair, I do have

         10  grave reservations about what it is that we're doing

         11  with the Police Department in public schools.

         12                 We know that we need to keep people

         13  safe. The statistics show that the 83 percent of the

         14  students and 84 percent of the teachers will feel

         15  that they are safe in their schools. That is not

         16  something to be satisfied with. That is far short of

         17  what we should be satisfied with in the public

         18  school. The school is a learning environment. And

         19  the statistics about how students and teachers feel

         20  about that police presence in the schools are very,

         21  very disturbing.

         22                 We need to totally reexamine what it

         23  is the role the Police Department should have, and

         24  what the Department of Education -- the Department

         25  of Education here should really be taking the
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          2  leading role and figuring out how to ensure the

          3  safety of students and teachers, and more

          4  importantly maintain an environment of learning, not

          5  just locking down the facility or securing the

          6  facility. That's not what a school is about.

          7                 Thank you very much.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you, John.

          9                 Next we hear from Dan Garodnick of

         10  Manhattan.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Thank you,

         12  Mr. Chair, Madam Chair. I want to just comment first

         13  about the questions that were asked by Chairman

         14  Jackson, Chairman Vallone, which really got to the

         15  heart of the issues that I was interested in

         16  pursuing today. What it revealed to me, in terms of

         17  the interaction between the police and the

         18  Department of Education is a great feeling on your

         19  part that you were working together, beautifully I

         20  think were the words, and that there's fantastic

         21  cooperation, but that at the end of the day there is

         22  confusion out there and perhaps even here as to

         23  whose judgment call it is in certain circumstances.

         24                 You know, the testimony I heard and

         25  that I was listening carefully, was that if there
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          2  was a crime the Police Department will arrest, if

          3  there is no crime there will be "some discussion

          4  with the principal." If there is a fight among kids

          5  where there is injury, it would be the NYPD's call.

          6  If there is no injury, it would be the principal's

          7  call. And this is at the end of the day, a judgment

          8  call.

          9                 It wasn't until real probing by the

         10  two questioners at the outset that Ms. Konstan said

         11  that deference would be paid to the NYPD at the end

         12  of the day in making a determination whether or not

         13  it was a criminal activity that took place.

         14                 I just want to express my own view in

         15  that, while I'm I'm glad to see that there is great

         16  cooperation, great collaboration and cooperation

         17  between the DOE and with the NYPD, it doesn't give

         18  me extraordinary comfort that it took so long for us

         19  to tease that fact out of you, and if there is

         20  confusion here, there must be confusion out in the

         21  many school buildings that we have in the City of

         22  New York, and that's an important fact. And I don't

         23  think, from what I understand of the Chancellor's

         24  regulation that was described 8412, that sets this

         25  out in the level of detail that it needs to be set
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          2  out for us and the public and the students and

          3  parents to know exactly whose authority is what and

          4  under what circumstances.

          5                 So, I just wanted to make that point

          6  because I was listening and it seemed like we were

          7  struggling a little bit to get that clear answer.

          8  And, so, I think that there is an issue here and I

          9  think that we need to pursue this and get those

         10  standards and guidelines, particularly now that the

         11  MOU, as I understand it, is a thing of the past. And

         12  I wanted to ask you a question about some of the

         13  things that were set out in that MOU from '98, one

         14  of them was an annual evaluation of the

         15  effectiveness of these programs, of the

         16  collaboration here between NYPD and DOE.

         17  Understanding, as Deputy Chancellor Grimm said, that

         18  the MOU has not necessarily outlived its usefulness,

         19  is there still some sort of an annual evaluation

         20  specifically of the effectiveness of this

         21  collaboration?

         22                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: Well, I mean

         23  we have annual data --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Go ahead,

         25  finish your thought.
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          2                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: The data, I

          3  think are our best indication that the collaboration

          4  is working, because the data are all going in the

          5  right direction.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: I

          7  appreciate that. And I think that the data is

          8  important.

          9                 I don't think that it captures the

         10  whole picture, though, as to whether or not the

         11  interactions between the Police Department and the

         12  principal of the school, for example, is working.

         13                 The data may show that 83 percent

         14  feel a stake in the school. You know, my colleague

         15  John Liu mentioned that that is, you know, perhaps a

         16  low number as opposed to a high number. The question

         17  I'm asking really is just a soup to nuts review on

         18  an annual basis as to whether this is actually from

         19  a holistic perspective, not just from a, are our

         20  crime numbers going down, working for the school

         21  buildings, working for the principals, parents,

         22  students, et cetera.

         23                 Is it fair to say that what you all

         24  do is just specifically look at the data for your

         25  conclusions?
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          2                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: Yes, but I

          3  think the data is perhaps even richer than we've

          4  articulated here.

          5                 For example, in our survey, which, of

          6  course, is the first time ever survey that has ever

          7  been done Citywide, what we have reported to you,

          8  and I believe with all of the people who have

          9  commented, that 83, 85 percent is not our end game

         10  here, we still have work to do.

         11                 But we now have at least a baseline,

         12  and we can disaggregate that data on a school basis.

         13  I mean, what a wonderful tool we have working

         14  together now to look school-by-school where we think

         15  we need to devote our resources.

         16                 So, yes, I think the data are really

         17  vital. If you have other suggestions for what you

         18  would like to see in terms of evaluation, we'll

         19  certainly --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Well, one

         21  question that comes to mind, of course, is the

         22  principals now are being empowered in a way that

         23  perhaps they have not been empowered before. Safety

         24  and respect is one of the components in the schools'

         25  progress reports. I understand that they were
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          2  surveyed, themselves, the principals.

          3                 Is that my five already, Mr.

          4  Chairman? That was so fast. All right, I will be

          5  fast here.

          6                 There were surveys in 2001, in which

          7  the principal said that, 67 percent of principals

          8  said that they didn't consider there to be any

          9  change in school safety since the responsibility was

         10  turned over to the SSAs, and I wanted to know

         11  whether there have been ongoing surveys of

         12  principals as to their feelings, excepting (sic) the

         13  data? And I think the data is important, but as to

         14  the interaction between the School Safety Officers

         15  and the principals themselves, have there been

         16  ongoing surveys since 2001?

         17                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: No. No,

         18  there have not.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: That would

         20  be something that I think would be fruitful and

         21  valuable.

         22                 And then if I may just ask one more

         23  question? It's on the subject of the complaints. I

         24  think the answer to the question about how you file

         25  a complaint was answered that the Internal Affairs
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          2  Bureau takes the complaining; is that right?

          3                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: That's

          4  correct.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Okay, but I

          6  guess what I don't understand completely is, if I am

          7  a student or I am a parent, how do I know that

          8  that's what I do? How do I know that if there is a

          9  circumstance which I felt that I was treated poorly

         10  or unfairly, how do I know that I'm supposed to go

         11  to the Internal Affairs of the NYPD? What processes

         12  are out there to inform individuals of their rights

         13  in this context?

         14                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: There are

         15  several ways that this can be reported - 3-1-1,

         16  9-1-1, any police precinct or police facility, the

         17  principal of the school, the teachers, to the

         18  Special Commissioner for Investigation. I don't

         19  necessarily expect a child to know this, but we

         20  would like to publish this and maybe we can put up

         21  posters to indicate this. We've put up posters about

         22  grand larcenies. We've put up posters about pellet

         23  guns and bee-bee guns. This is something that we can

         24  put posters up to --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: I think
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          2  that's a very good idea. Because what you're saying

          3  to us is the various ways that somebody can report a

          4  complaint, but while it's important for you to tell

          5  us, I think it's even more important for you to tell

          6  that directly to the people who would be affected.

          7  So, I think some sort of poster or some sort of

          8  information campaign, so that students understand,

          9  particularly when they have police officers in their

         10  midst, and there is some question about the legal

         11  implications in these various levels of authority

         12  and jurisdiction, I think that that would be a very

         13  important and very useful thing to do.

         14                 And with that, I am going to thank my

         15  Chairmen and Madam Chair for their indulgence, and

         16  thank you all.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         18                 Council Member Helen Diane Foster of

         19  the Bronx.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Thank you.

         21                 Good afternoon. I'm going to speak

         22  quickly because I don't want to use up all my time.

         23                 Who has the ultimate authority in the

         24  building, so that if I were looking at a flow chart,

         25  who would be on top?
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          2                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: The

          3  principal has the ultimate authority for the entire

          4  school community, and that is for the health,

          5  safety, the creation of an environment that allows

          6  effective instruction. If at some point a crime is

          7  committed, as in any institution, the Police

          8  Department is then in charge.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Okay.

         10                 So, who do these security agents

         11  report to? The principal?

         12                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: They report

         13  to the Police Department.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: So, when

         15  they're in the building, the principal is ultimately

         16  the authority but not for the Security Agents. So, I

         17  assume everyone in the building reports to the

         18  principal, because he or she is the ultimate

         19  authority, but not when it comes to --

         20                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: Well, except

         21  that, certainly the majority of the cases, there is

         22  a collaborative effort that takes place,

         23  specifically in the school community, sitting on

         24  committee where issues of safety are discussed on a

         25  collaborative daily basis. And maybe, Elayna, you
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          2  want to talk more about that.

          3                 MS. KONSTAN: In terms of this

          4  instance and the collaboration, there are many, many

          5  examples of what school communities, including the

          6  School Safety Agents do on a daily basis.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Let me just

          8  cut you off. I understand collaboration. I'm asking

          9  the buck stops here, who is ultimately in charge in

         10  the building?

         11                 If it's the principal, it includes

         12  everybody except the safety officers.

         13                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: In terms of

         14  the reporting relationship.

         15                 The principal is the authority in the

         16  school for the school community. At the point where

         17  a crime takes place, the Safety Agents take over.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Okay. Let me

         19  take a crime out of it. Let's say there is an

         20  incident with inappropriate behavior by a Safety

         21  Agent with a student; would that go to the principal

         22  as the ultimate authority in the school?

         23                 MS. KONSTAN: In such a situation when

         24  it goes to the principal, the principal would have a

         25  responsibility to report it, as the Assistant Chief
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          2  mentioned, in terms of working with the Borough

          3  Command and Assistant Chief Secreto's office, in

          4  terms of this possible alleged violation.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: So, for

          6  example, if the security lines are moving too slowly

          7  in the morning, does the principal have the

          8  authority to say to the Safety Agents, can you speed

          9  it up? I need to get my students in the building?

         10                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: Yes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: So, in that

         12  instance, they report or adhere to the authority of

         13  the principal?

         14                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: At what point,

         16  if at all, does discretion come in where the

         17  principal being this authority person in the

         18  building have discretion over the security agents,

         19  if the principal says I've got it from here, and

         20  does the Security Agent then say okay and walk away

         21  or say, no, this is my jurisdiction?

         22                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: Are you

         23  referring to scanning, or are you referring to an

         24  incident in general?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: An incident in
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          2  general, that doesn't rise to a level of a crime

          3  where an assault has been committed and someone has

          4  been injured?

          5                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: Ma'am --

          6                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: It's kind of difficult

          7  to respond to your question. If I understand it, let

          8  me try to give you an example.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Please.

         10                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: If you have, for

         11  instance, an individual outside the school that the

         12  agent may feel is somewhat disruptive and wants to

         13  come into the school and the agent says, no, you

         14  can't come in, if the principal says I want that

         15  person to come into the school, we let the person

         16  come into the school, because the principal has the

         17  say as to whether that person is allowed to come in

         18  and out. So, if I think that's where you're going --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Let me give an

         20  example.

         21                 My mother retired almost, I don't

         22  know, 1993, as a school principal. When there is a

         23  situation, and there was a situation where a young

         24  boy acted out, and in this situation she knew what

         25  he needed was to be taken into her office, given
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          2  like time out or whatever you call, get himself

          3  together, because they're incidents or situations

          4  from home that brought him pressure and one of the

          5  kids was teasing him.

          6                 My question is when is discretion

          7  allowed, if a Security Agent thinks, you know what -

          8  he's really out of hand, is the principal then the

          9  ultimate authority who can say I got this, I'm going

         10  to bring him in my office and give him a moment? Or

         11  does the agent's authority preempt that and say, no,

         12  I think he needs to be, you know, taken out of the

         13  building or whatever you do?

         14                 MS. KONSTAN: If it's not a crime,

         15  it's the principal's responsibility and the

         16  principal's call, in terms of the disciplinary

         17  response.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Okay.

         19                 MS. KONSTAN: Absolutely.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: And lastly,

         21  what is the requirements for an agent? You know,

         22  schooling, age, training? And I'll tell you what my

         23  concern is. In some of the high schools our young

         24  girls look older than they are, and some of our

         25  security agents are probably closer to their age
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          2  than us in this room. What type of training goes in

          3  to know what behavior is appropriate? And I'm going

          4  to ask all of it to get it all in, and then what

          5  incidents or percent of incidents do you have where

          6  you've either had to discipline, remove or fire an

          7  agent for either engaging in inappropriate behavior,

          8  being overly aggressive, just disrupting the

          9  atmosphere of the school?

         10                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: The agents

         11  have to be 21. That's their age. And there's a

         12  strict fraternization policy. It's also a topic of

         13  our training, to agents, to supervisors, to

         14  uniformed task force. We did over the last three

         15  years, we averaged about six cases of fraternization

         16  a year, with about a third of them being

         17  substantiated and severe discipline, for police

         18  officers, as well as agents.

         19                 Every time that I speak and address a

         20  training session or a group of them, I reinforce the

         21  inappropriate behavior, or fraternization, and the

         22  consequences that come along with it.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: What type of

         24  educational requirements are there?

         25                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: GED or high
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          2  school diploma.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: And are there

          4  continuing courses or, you know, like lawyers have

          5  to take continuing classes, anything like that that

          6  will deal with, you know, you're in an environment

          7  respecting students, and respect going both ways and

          8  all that stuff.

          9                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: We have

         10  in-service training. We also have roll call training

         11  for them. And again, you know, the fraternization,

         12  inappropriate behavior with students is a serious

         13  topic. I address it repeatedly and the consequences

         14  are severe.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: And is there

         16  ongoing training that these officers have to engage

         17  in?

         18                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: Yes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         21                 Jimmy Vacca of the Bronx.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: Thank you.

         23                 Well, I wanted to start off by

         24  talking, first of all, I think the reference for to

         25  a gap of 13 to 15 percent in the amount of students
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          2  who feel that their school is safe and teachers who

          3  do not feel their school is safe, if you look at

          4  those statistics, the number of people who feel the

          5  school is safe drop when you talk about cafeterias

          6  and hallways, and parts other than the classroom.

          7                 So, I make a case, especially in the

          8  intermediate schools, and we had much testimony

          9  before our Intermediate School Task Force, that we

         10  try to limit the movement of children as much as

         11  possible, and that we try to understand that in

         12  perceptional reality, the safest place for a child

         13  and a teacher is the classroom at all times.

         14                 Secondly, I want to commend school

         15  security. I've had a good history with them and I

         16  have found them to be responsive, even before I was

         17  in the Council, when I was a district manager to a

         18  community board.

         19                 My concerns are several though. I

         20  think the overriding concern today of course is this

         21  issue that we have to go beyond collaboration to a

         22  formal structure insomuch as who does what and who

         23  is in charge of what. I agree and I don't want to

         24  belabor that.

         25                 My concern is backfilling, and my
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          2  concern is where you allocate guards to a school on

          3  given days, and I mean often two and three and four

          4  days a week, that school does not have its full

          5  compliment of guards. They are reassigned, they are

          6  on special task force, if there was an incident in

          7  one school which means you move guards temporarily,

          8  and that principal is depending on those guards to

          9  cover fire exits for cafeteria duty, for hallway

         10  duty, and that principal has determined in

         11  conjunction with the guards and probably the School

         12  Safety Committee, what priorities have to be

         13  established.

         14                 Well, they're often left shorthanded,

         15  and this is a common complaint I hear from

         16  principals and parents in my district.

         17                 So, I think that that's something

         18  that I want to convey to you today, that we have to

         19  minimize these issues.

         20                 Years ago there used to be a task

         21  force to the best of my recollection where there

         22  were people who could be assigned based on issues

         23  that erupted, rather than having school security

         24  guards pulled from existing assignments in schools.

         25  There was a mobile unit, which I still think exists.
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          2  I see their truck, but I don't know to what extent

          3  we're implementing it.

          4                 And the other concern I raise, I'll

          5  give you everything at once, is you mentioned school

          6  safety committees and I just don't know how often

          7  school safety committees meet.

          8                 I think there has got to be a

          9  requirement that these committees meet regularly.

         10  These committees are supposed to involve parent

         11  representatives, teacher reps, principals, of

         12  course, the School Safety Agents, and I think that

         13  we have to make sure that these committees are

         14  functioning in the schools, that there are meeting

         15  -- there are minutes that a PA or a school

         16  leadership team could refer to, that you at DOE

         17  could refer to, insomuch as accountability is

         18  concerned.

         19                 So, making those two points, let me

         20  come back to this issue of backfilling. Do you have

         21  any comment, Deputy Chancellor Grimm, or anyone

         22  there?

         23                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: I'll answer

         24  that. That shouldn't occur. The number of agents

         25  assigned to a school is pretty much fixed and we do
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          2  have mobile task forces in the event an agent calls

          3  in sick or, you know, something happens, an agent is

          4  not there that day, we have a mobile task force that

          5  we use to backfill. So, that shouldn't occur where

          6  an agent is removed from a school.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: Well, I will be

          8  calling you then when it occurs.

          9                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: Okay.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: It occurred

         11  recently in my district, and it's been occurring for

         12  some time, and I appreciate your policy statement on

         13  that.

         14                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: Okay.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: The school

         16  safety teams, can you tell me?

         17                 MS. KONSTAN: I can.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: Yes.

         19                 MS. KONSTAN: Yes, there are

         20  regulations and there are guidelines, and I couldn't

         21  agree with you more about the importance of these

         22  safety committee meetings and the constituents that

         23  need to be around the table.

         24                 And we're not there yet. We're not

         25  perfect, but we are working on it as a real tool. By
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          2  the Save Legislation and State Law, it's once a

          3  month the School Safety Committees must meet and

          4  they must document what goes on at the School Safety

          5  Committee meetings.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: But you're

          7  aware that's often not occurring?

          8                 MS. KONSTAN: And when we find that it

          9  is not occurring, we get specifics, we're there and

         10  we go in and we go in with our partners from other

         11  UFT, et cetera, to really push this issue, because

         12  this is a critical tool in terms of building school

         13  community --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: I noticed you

         15  mention that you have 3,000 people in the schools

         16  out there?

         17                 MS. KONSTAN: No, we've made about

         18  3,000 visits. Not people.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: Okay. You've

         20  made 3,000 visits. I would suggest in those that you

         21  ask for, minutes of the monthly meetings when you

         22  go.

         23                 MS. KONSTAN: We do.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: How many

         25  vacancies do you have? Do you have a compliment of
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          2  school safety officers? Are you interviewing? Are

          3  there vacancies that exist where you are down in

          4  numbers? Can you tell us where that stands? Is it a

          5  budget issue, or is it a recruitment issue that we

          6  should know about?

          7                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: We are down

          8  46 agents. There is a class scheduled, I'm told it

          9  was just approved to go in November, 100 agents. But

         10  we also lose about 40 agents a month through

         11  attrition, so it's a fluid process.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: If you lose 40

         13  agents a month through attrition, you're talking of

         14  losing four- to five-hundred agents a year; is that

         15  due to salary? That's a large amount of attrition,

         16  because then you're bringing on new people who have

         17  to be trained and you start the process over again.

         18                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: That's true.

         19  We lose -- you know, they don't make a lot of money.

         20  I believe it's 28,000 when they're at top pay. But

         21  we lose agents to other agencies, Corrections in

         22  particular, because they accept their two years of

         23  service as an agent, as opposed to college. So,

         24  they're able to go over, after they have two years

         25  as a School Safety Agent, to go over to Corrections.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: I'll end my

          3  remarks by stating that as a parent myself as well,

          4  there is nothing like a school where the security

          5  guard is known to the children. Retention would

          6  appear to me to be something you would want. Where

          7  that security guard knows the child, and knows

          8  issues, knows problems, and the child feels safe in

          9  knowing who the guard is, these are very, very good

         10  things for a school. And parents look for this too.

         11  Parents are confident in the guard because parents

         12  get to know the guard in their relationships with

         13  the school.

         14                 So, you may want to look at salary,

         15  retention and turnover, because that number was

         16  high.

         17                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: I appreciate

         18  that, but I cringe when you say guards. My

         19  colleagues are reminding me that it's School Safety

         20  Agents.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: School Safety

         22  Agents, sorry.

         23                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: But thanks

         24  for the compliments.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: Thank you, sir.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you,

          3  Council Member.

          4                 Council Member Maria del Carmen

          5  Arroyo of the Bronx.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEL CARMEN ARROYO: I

          7  was cringing, too, so thank you for bringing it up.

          8  Thank you all for being here.

          9                 I had a visit from a youth group in

         10  my district, Youth On The Move, which is a program

         11  that's part of Mothers On The Move, and that's based

         12  in my district.

         13                 And as part of their civic

         14  participation and their leadership development they

         15  took on the issue of school safety and violence in

         16  high schools in the district. And they've done a

         17  very interesting survey that they brought to my

         18  attention, and one of the things that they find very

         19  troubling is the lack of teacher participation in

         20  the conflict resolution process. So, is this just

         21  specific to the schools that they survey? Are

         22  teachers not permitted to engage in this conflict

         23  resolution process? What are the Department's

         24  policies on that?

         25                 MS. KONSTAN: As part of one of the
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          2  aspects of my office is we actually do the training

          3  on conflict resolution peer mediation.

          4                 It is a 30-hour course where teachers

          5  get certified as to how to establish a conflict

          6  resolution program in their school. So far we have

          7  over close to 800 teachers who are certified in this

          8  30-hour certification course, and it continues to

          9  grow and expand. It has worked for the three years

         10  that I've been in this office, and we are continuing

         11  to do that, as well. Should it grow? Does it need to

         12  grow? Absolutely. It's a wonderful program. It

         13  really does help students to take more ownership and

         14  have a different approach to solving conflicts in a

         15  different way, and we work with schools to help them

         16  build this program in their schools and to sustain

         17  them.

         18                 The 800 number is what we have in the

         19  three years that we've been there. There are

         20  teachers who have been trained prior and we continue

         21  to work with them as well.

         22                 We also have a program where we train

         23  peers to become peer educators, so that they can

         24  actually do the education and work with their peers

         25  on this program.
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          2                 It really has done some great work

          3  and really has helped students to learn healthier,

          4  more positive ways to solve problems. And there's

          5  more work to be done.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEL CARMEN ARROYO: I

          7  found it very enlightening to hear from these

          8  students that their biggest concern about going to

          9  school is whether they're going to be safe or not.

         10                 I'd like to ask a couple of things,

         11  Mr. Chair? If you can provide for us a list of

         12  schools where the program has been provided, how is

         13  a school selected, or how were teachers selected to

         14  participate in that program? And I would also like

         15  to provide an opportunity for the students to meet

         16  with individuals in DOE for them to share their

         17  survey.

         18                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: We'd be

         19  delighted.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEL CARMEN ARROYO:

         21  I've also asked them to go back and relook at the

         22  data to see if there is any one school that's more

         23  problematic than others in the district, so that we

         24  can engage them in a conversation and/or do some

         25  targeted intervention for the schools they identify.
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          2  I think they are to be commended in their foresight

          3  in having this conversation and taking this issue on

          4  themselves as youth in the community who have a very

          5  serious concern.

          6                 So, what I will do is have my office

          7  reach out to you to have that linkage made with the

          8  group and be able to also get an opportunity for the

          9  schools that they identify as a problem, get

         10  included in this training that's provided to

         11  teachers, because they felt very, very strongly that

         12  the teachers do not engage in the conflict

         13  resolution process and in their mind they believe

         14  that if teachers do intervene early enough in the

         15  process, they would have less violence in the

         16  school.

         17                 MS. KONSTAN: That would be really

         18  terrific. And we'd also love for our students to be

         19  part of focus groups that we also have with groups,

         20  with student youth groups around the City, so that

         21  would be terrific.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: I would be

         23  glad to make that connection. Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you. You

         25  were under five minutes.
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          2                 We do have some additional questions,

          3  but I failed to offer all of you an opportunity for

          4  a personal privilege break, in which, you know, when

          5  we got up we took our personal privilege. So, I

          6  would like to offer you a personal privilege, if you

          7  want to break for two to three minutes, and so that

          8  we can continue the questioning.

          9                 We probably have approximately

         10  another 15 minutes or 20 minutes at the most of

         11  questions. But please, let me offer you the

         12  opportunity for a personal privilege break of three

         13  minutes, if that's okay with all of you?

         14                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: Shall we

         15  just proceed?

         16                 We'll proceed.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: So, we've

         18  reached a consensus.

         19                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: As we always

         20  do. That was a demonstration for you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: On-the-spot

         22  consensus.

         23                 Let me turn to my colleague Peter

         24  Vallone, Jr., the Chair of the Public Safety

         25  Committee.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you.

          3                 There was some confusion as to how

          4  many School Safety Officers have been fired or

          5  suspended, Chief? What was that number again?

          6                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: Yes, just

          7  off the top of my head, 32 are arrested and

          8  suspended, in the school year '06/'07.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: And what are the

         10  majority of those suspensions or arrest for?

         11                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: The majority

         12  are domestic violence, incidence of domestic

         13  violence. We've had some assaults. We had an agent

         14  arrested at a Correctional facility, attempting to

         15  bring drugs into a Correctional facility.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: What about

         17  inside the school? We've all heard stories, some

         18  actually substantiated, about improper relations

         19  between School Safety Officers and children. How

         20  many people have been suspended or fired for that?

         21                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: I don't have

         22  that in front of me. But in August I know an agent

         23  was arrested at Springfield Gardens High School for

         24  an inappropriate sexual relationship with a

         25  14-year-old. That occurred in August.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Is this a

          3  problem that in your experience you're seeing occur

          4  more or less recently? And what is in place to

          5  ensure that does not happen?

          6                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: I'm new to

          7  School Safety. I've been there ten months. We're

          8  seeing about, with fraternization I have in front of

          9  me the recent report. In '07 we had six incidents,

         10  two were substantiated, two are pending. That's '07,

         11  this year, I'm sorry. '06 we had eight, two were

         12  substantiated. And in '05, we had four. So,

         13  averaging about six a year. Four in '05, eight in

         14  '06, this year it's six allegations. This year we

         15  have six with two months to go. It's dealt with

         16  severely.

         17                 In the case of under-age students

         18  it's an arrest situation. These people are no longer

         19  any good to us. We can't have them around children

         20  at this point, and, again, there's training given to

         21  agents, to supervisors, to the police and uniformed

         22  personnel on fraternization, professionalism,

         23  integrity in the workplace.

         24                 I speak to it.  Every time I get an

         25  audience I speak to them about fraternization and
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          2  the repercussions.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay, thank you.

          4  Again, I have follow-ups, but I know you're working

          5  straight through, so I'll go straight to Chair

          6  Gonzalez.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GONZALEZ: Thank you.

          8  Chief, I requested some numbers or stats in respect

          9  to arrests for youth specifically.

         10                 I also asked about those that were

         11  placed in DJJ. But I'd like to add if it's possible,

         12  if I can get numbers of youth that the incidents are

         13  either gang-related or that would be really great if

         14  you could get that, please?

         15                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: The number

         16  of gang-related arrests?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GONZALEZ: Right.

         18                 Arrests. Remember earlier I asked if

         19  it's possible to get the number of arrest of youth,

         20  because you said that it was parents, as well as

         21  other individuals outside the school.

         22                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: Yes, that

         23  number included all of that.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GONZALEZ: For the future

         25  and the near future, okay?
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          2                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: Okay.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GONZALEZ: And also those

          4  that are placed at DJJ. The numbers.

          5                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: Okay.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GONZALEZ: And then

          7  gang-related. Thank you.

          8                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: You're

          9  welcome.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Before we end up

         11  with Chair Jackson, we'll go to Council Member

         12  Sears. And possibly Felder, if he still wants to be

         13  on the list.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you, Mr.

         15  Chair.

         16                 I just have one question. Earlier it

         17  was stated that the principals make those decisions

         18  and the police make the decision as it's criminal.

         19  My question is, what protection do the principals

         20  have, if they make decisions and parents don't

         21  agree, and parents decide to carry that principal

         22  into court? What protections are there for the

         23  principals?

         24                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: I'm not

         25  exactly sure what the question is, Council member.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I think it's

          3  clear. The principals have to make decisions.

          4                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: Every day.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: They make those

          6  that are in terms of we're talking about violent

          7  environment, and the police will determine what is

          8  criminal and the principals do otherwise.

          9                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: Yes.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: My question is,

         11  if a parent does not like a decision that a

         12  principal has made, what mechanisms are in place for

         13  that principal?

         14                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: Well, a

         15  principal, like any public servant, if she makes a

         16  decision in the line of duty, and, you know, it

         17  doesn't involve a crime, would be defended by the

         18  City.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: So, a principal

         20  would feel very comfortable in making a difficult

         21  decision affecting a student?

         22                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: I think our

         23  principals feel comfortable every day because they

         24  make many difficult decisions.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I would agree.
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          2  And I think because they are in such environments

          3  they need not stand alone, is what I'm saying.

          4                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: Absolutely.

          5  They don't.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: So they don't.

          7  Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

          9                 According to the MOU, a

         10  representative group of superintendents, principals,

         11  and other appropriate school personnel are supposed

         12  to have a role in the development and implementation

         13  of training for all school security personnel. Is

         14  this the case?

         15                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: Well, again,

         16  I think we need to talk about the safety committee

         17  at the local level at every school where we have, or

         18  we are working toward having that level of

         19  involvement in every single school.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay, but the

         21  superintendents are not involved at the school

         22  level, what about at -- is that the only level that

         23  that's occurring? Or there are other levels?

         24                 MS. KONSTAN: In addition to the

         25  School Safety Committees, there are school safety
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          2  plans that every school has to develop on an annual

          3  basis, and these plans are not only reviewed at the

          4  school level by the School Safety Committee, but are

          5  also reviewed at the district level and the level in

          6  my office, as well as the NYPD. So, this happened.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Yes, but I'm

          8  referring to training and development and

          9  implementation of training for all school security.

         10  That's not done at the school level, unless I'm

         11  wrong. That's done at an either Citywide or

         12  boroughwide level. And I'm asking is this group,

         13  that's according to the MOU, have they ever met? If

         14  the answer is no, then say no.

         15                 And if not, where, if at all, and I'm

         16  asking this not only of you but both NYPD and DOE,

         17  where are superintendents, principals and other

         18  personnel involved, as far as developing and

         19  implementing training for school security personnel?

         20  And if they're not, just say they're not.

         21                 Assistant Chief?

         22                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: Again, it

         23  sounds like you're describing the Safety Committee

         24  Meeting where that whole team gets together once a

         25  month.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I'm sorry, what

          3  Safety Committee meeting?

          4                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: The Safety

          5  Committee Meeting that's mandated by Save, that you

          6  know, once a month they get together, UFT,

          7  principal, parent rep.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Is that at the

          9  Citywide level?

         10                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: That's at

         11  the school level. Each school.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Correct me if

         13  I'm wrong. Do you believe, and I'm asking you, if

         14  you know, you can answer it, are the School Safety

         15  Committees talking about the training and the

         16  development and implementation of training for

         17  school safety personnel? I don't think so. Not at

         18  the school level.

         19                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: They can

         20  certainly have input on that.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: They could have

         22  input, but realistically are you telling me they're

         23  discussing that? Because I'll request the agendas of

         24  every committee.

         25                 What about at the Citywide level? Is
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          2  there a Citywide or borough-wide meeting of the

          3  superintendents?

          4                 Are superintendents involved in that?

          5                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: First of

          6  all, as far as I know, that Committee never met. I

          7  wasn't here during the four years, but as far as I

          8  know, that has never met.

          9                 It seems to me, as I said earlier, we

         10  now have in place in lieu of that MOU a lot of

         11  processes and a lot of procedures that address those

         12  issues.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. And I

         14  heard you say that before. But is DOE -- who, if

         15  anyone, at the Department of Education, is involved

         16  in the development and implementation of training of

         17  school personnel? If anyone at all. And if there is

         18  no one, just say no one.

         19                 MS. KONSTAN: I can answer that.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay, someone

         21  answer it then.

         22                 MS. KONSTAN: I'm going to.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         24                 MS. KONSTAN: In my office, as part of

         25  my office we have an extensive professional
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          2  development program that we implement on a variety

          3  of topics.

          4                 We work with Deans and Assistant

          5  Principals, security and Assistant Principal

          6  Guidance Counselors and Guidance Counselors so that

          7  we can model the approach that we believe that

          8  discipline and student support services go

          9  hand-in-hand.

         10                 So, we work and we provide training

         11  at the central level to school-based personnel that

         12  we're the ones developing the program that schools

         13  come and participate in.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I'm sorry, are

         15  you following me here? I'm talking about school

         16  security personnel. Who is school security

         17  personnel? The School Safety Agents, and Police

         18  Officers that are assigned there; is that correct?

         19  Aren't those individuals that are considered school

         20  security personnel?

         21                 MS. KONSTAN: There are additional

         22  members of the school community that participate in

         23  school safety and security personnel, such as the

         24  deans.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Deans are not
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          2  school security personnel, are they?

          3                 MS. KONSTAN: Yes, they are.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: They're part of

          5  a team but they're not school security -- let me ask

          6  the Assistant Chief.

          7                 Are deans security personnel, as far

          8  as you're concerned?

          9                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: I think that

         10  --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I'm just seeking

         12  clarity here.

         13                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: If you're

         14  asking about the training of our School Safety

         15  Agents, which I believe you are?

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Yes, I am.

         17                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: The

         18  Department of Education has a part in that.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Then somebody

         20  explain to me what part.

         21                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: The part

         22  that they have is that when our agents are in the

         23  Academy, and also during our in-service training, we

         24  invite DOE personnel to come there and to address

         25  them. We don't tell them what to talk about. They
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          2  come, and they come with topics that are relevant to

          3  the school environment. That's part of the training,

          4  the overall training of our School Safety Agents,

          5  and we ensure that all the agents get that type of

          6  training.

          7                 We have the police part, but

          8  certainly the whole school environment part comes

          9  from DOE, so certainly we work hand-in-hand on that.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         11                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: So, no class

         12  comes in and goes into the schools without that

         13  particular training.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And Chief, I

         15  know that, for example, the new classes that are

         16  coming to Northern Manhattan, as an elected official

         17  I go and I address those classes after they have

         18  graduated from the Academy and they are getting

         19  ready to be assigned to the precincts in Northern

         20  Manhattan. I speak to them as a member of the City

         21  Council, and, you know, so they listen to what I

         22  have to say.

         23                 I assume that that's what you're

         24  referring to, that DOE comes in and speaks to the

         25  School Safety Agents at the training academy and
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          2  what have you and so forth.

          3                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: Yes, but

          4  they talk about specific topics, relevant to the

          5  school environment. Yes, they do that.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

          7                 MS. KONSTAN: And if I could add to

          8  that, to date my office has been participating in 12

          9  cohorts of new recruits, which totals almost 3,000

         10  new recruits, School Safety Agents, and some of the

         11  topics that we talk about is understanding the

         12  Discipline Code, working with students with special

         13  needs, and conflict resolution and the de-escalation

         14  of issues.

         15                 So, these are some of the things that

         16  my office works with the New York City Police

         17  Department, in training the new recruits.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. And how

         19  long have you been the chief of that office?

         20                 MS. KONSTAN: I've been the chief in

         21  this office since February of '06. Prior to that, I

         22  was the Deputy to the Senior Counsel who was the

         23  chief since this office has begun.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. Thank you.

         25                 And has your office made recommended
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          2  changes to the development and implementation of a

          3  training program for School Safety Officers? Have

          4  you made any formal suggestions to them?

          5                 MS. KONSTAN: In terms of what we just

          6  talked about, we do make the call in terms of what

          7  we think would be relevant to train the new

          8  recruits. In terms of their wider, broader range of

          9  their training, that's up to the Police Department.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Let me turn to

         11  my colleague Simcha Felder, who did not have an

         12  opportunity to ask questions, and then I will

         13  continue. Council Member Simcha Felder from

         14  Brooklyn.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Thank you very

         16  much, Mr. Chair, or I should say all the chairs. I

         17  apologize for leaving in the middle. I had an

         18  emergency meeting across the street, so I apologize

         19  to my colleagues, as well as to the public, because

         20  if I ask something that's been addressed, just tell

         21  me that's so.

         22                 First of all, I'm just curious about

         23  primary day in the public, since many of the public

         24  schools are used for voting. Is there any sort of

         25  change about how school safety is done on primary
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          2  day in public schools?

          3                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: This would

          4  be my first primary day in school safety, so I

          5  apologize, but I'm told one agent per school, and

          6  the police officers from the local precinct.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: The question I

          8  have is, let's say a guy that looks like me comes

          9  into vote, it's very scary. You know, no one asks, I

         10  don't think, no one goes through a scanner, or

         11  anything like that, and I'm not predicting doom, but

         12  the fact is that the same buildings that the

         13  children are in are places that anybody off the

         14  street could walk in, whereas on a normal day you

         15  have offices at the door, and I've been stopped

         16  because I look this way, at public schools, and they

         17  ask me before they let in, you know, who are you?

         18  Which is a good thing. They ask for ID and

         19  everything else before they let you in. On Election

         20  Day, the same building. You know, anybody can walk

         21  in. God forbid, I don't even want to discuss what

         22  could be.

         23                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: We have the

         24  visitor control procedures the same. But I don't

         25  believe we scan --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: No, but I

          3  don't believe you have the same. What happens is,

          4  I'm just telling you my own experiences. You walk in

          5  and generally if the voting booths are right over

          6  there, no one is asked, though all they can do is

          7  say what are you here for? If you say you're coming

          8  in to vote, they just let you in.

          9                 I don't have a solution. It's my

         10  pleasure to be able to ask you questions that I

         11  don't have the answers for, and I'm not trying to

         12  prove anything. All I'm trying to bring to your

         13  attention is something that I notice this time maybe

         14  could be addressed in some other way. That's all.

         15                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: Okay.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: And I don't

         17  want to hear from the DOE about it.

         18                 The other thing, a general question,

         19  was about -- and this may have been asked before,

         20  it's about the security, not only in the school but

         21  around the school. Did somebody talk about that

         22  already?

         23                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: No. That

         24  didn't come up.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Can you just
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          2  explain briefly how that works? Because besides the

          3  issue of safety in the building itself, the comings

          4  and goings I think in any of the schools, I think

          5  most of my colleagues would have the same experience

          6  when the hundreds, perhaps thousands of children, or

          7  teenagers, leave and come to school, a lot goes on

          8  in the neighborhood right around the school and

          9  beyond that. What role do you play with that?

         10                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: The agents

         11  are pretty much limited to the school and the

         12  perimeter. The Level 1s.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: What does the

         14  perimeter mean?

         15                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: I guess the

         16  sidewalk around the school.

         17                 We have Level 2s, who are mobile task

         18  force. They can cover, you know, an area, or they

         19  can, we use them to cover safe corridors, where we

         20  work in conjunction with police precincts.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Right.

         22                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: And Transit,

         23  as well. Transit is a big partner in the safe

         24  corridors.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: But in those
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          2  areas, I would assume the DOE has no part of that;

          3  is that true?

          4                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: That's

          5  accurate.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Yes.

          7                 Now, finally, for a topic that I

          8  don't think was mentioned, and I'm not saying that I

          9  like being the one to always bring it up, but it

         10  seems like that's going to be the case, so I don't

         11  mind doing it.

         12                 Do you do any public safety in the

         13  non-public schools, in and around the non-public

         14  schools?

         15                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: We've

         16  covered hires, and we've covered events.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: No, I'm not

         18  talking about that.

         19                 What I'm saying is that I believe,

         20  and I believe that all the witnesses believe that

         21  the City is mandated to provide certain services to

         22  all children in the City, whether they're in public

         23  or non-public schools. And by State Law we know that

         24  at a time when security may have not been such a big

         25  issue, the law specifically stated that they were
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          2  mandated to cover textbooks, transportation, meals,

          3  and nurses were added. There was never, to my

          4  knowledge there was never a provision in the law for

          5  security because I think the reason for that was at

          6  that time there wasn't such an issue. I'm not

          7  talking about security in the school only. I'm

          8  talking about security of people, whether they be

          9  somebody who shouldn't be there, terrorism, and

         10  those things as well, which are issues for all

         11  children, public or non-public schools.

         12                 So, I'm asking you, because there was

         13  a discussion I think that you mentioned about

         14  cameras. I'm not talking about necessarily putting

         15  officers in non-public schools, but the issues of

         16  safety around the non-public schools about who goes

         17  in, who goes out, that's very nominal. I'm wondering

         18  whether you provide any type of security to

         19  non-public schools.

         20                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: Just public

         21  schools and DOE-leased facilities.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Right. So, my

         23  time is up.

         24                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: We also have

         25  the precincts. You know, precincts cover the areas.
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          2  Patrols.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: The precincts

          4  I'm not going to say are worthless, because I love

          5  them. They do a lot of good work. But they're not

          6  available to take care of these schools. And what

          7  I'm bringing up again to the attention, to your

          8  attention, as well as to my good friend and former

          9  boss at the Department of Finance, Ms. Grimm, is

         10  that the issue of cameras and buzzers and things

         11  like that, basic small things, you know, they're not

         12  expensive things that all schools, whether public or

         13  non-public should have, at least to be able to make

         14  sure that when somebody comes in or out of those

         15  schools, we don't need to change the law in Albany,

         16  all we need to do is change the numbers that come

         17  into your Department to be able to pay for it.

         18                 So, the people who are here for the

         19  Mayor's Office, send the message back that so far

         20  everybody from the Department of Education, and from

         21  the people at security at police agree with me

         22  wholeheartedly, because they didn't differ, that the

         23  basic security messages for non-public schools that

         24  are not that expensive should be forthcoming.

         25                 Thank you very much.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

          3                 Can I turn to incident reports, if

          4  you don't mind? Thank you.

          5                 What is the content of the incident

          6  report that principals fill out when there is an

          7  incident at a school?

          8                 MS. KONSTAN: The incident report,

          9  which I mentioned, is an on-line --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Can you pull the

         11  mic. up a little closer, please?

         12                 MS. KONSTAN: I'm sorry.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I'm a little

         14  hard of hearing.

         15                 MS. KONSTAN: It's an on-line system

         16  and it basically asks for information about the

         17  students involved in the incident, whether it's a

         18  student who was the suspect of an incident or the

         19  student who was the victim of an incident and it

         20  describes the incident, and it describes the kind of

         21  whether police were called or EMS was called.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And if, in fact,

         23  anybody was confiscated from the student, such as a

         24  cell phone or a weapon or anything like that, is

         25  that indicated on incident report if there is an
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          2  incident?

          3                 MS. KONSTAN: If it's an incident

          4  about weapons possession or something involving a

          5  weapon, it's usually reported, and the type of

          6  weapon is reported as well.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And what do you

          8  do with those reports, from a process point of view?

          9  You fill it out on line?

         10                 MS. KONSTAN: The principals fill it

         11  out on line and it gets in -- it goes into this

         12  on-line reporting system and it's this system that

         13  we use to report to the State Education Department.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And does a

         15  principal keep a copy of that in their files, either

         16  electronically or a hard copy? And does a copy go

         17  into the students' file?

         18                 MS. KONSTAN: It's electronic, so the

         19  principals do keep it electronically, and principals

         20  have access to this information for their school

         21  information and any time they want it.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And what about,

         23  does a copy go electronically or hard copy go in the

         24  student's record?

         25                 MS. KONSTAN: There are deans' records
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          2  and anecdotal information that do go in. The actual

          3  copying and putting it into the file doesn't

          4  necessarily go into the dean's record because it is

          5  a record on line, and schools can call upon that

          6  when they need it, in terms of if we want to look at

          7  a pattern to support students to provide guidance.

          8  If there is a hearing, so it's there. And then there

          9  may also be anecdotal or deans' records on file as

         10  well.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: So, do deans

         12  have access to electronic records of incident

         13  reports in their particular school?

         14                 MS. KONSTAN: If the principal

         15  designates the dean as a designee, they can.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. Who are

         17  the normal designees in the school?

         18                 MS. KONSTAN: On a high school level,

         19  it's usually the assistant principal security or a

         20  dean or a head dean and the principal. Ultimately

         21  the principal is responsible. In a middle school it

         22  could be the assistant principal or one of the

         23  assistant principals who has safety and security as

         24  one of his or her responsibility. On a middle school

         25  it's usually the -- elementary school, pardon me,
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          2  it's usually the principal. Again, it's the

          3  principal's call.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And as far as

          5  the child's official record, does a copy go in the

          6  child's official record? So if I'm a parent, and I

          7  wanted to see, because when I was a president of the

          8  school board we used to tell people all the time,

          9  you should review your child's records to see what's

         10  in there so you know. Does a copy go in the official

         11  record?

         12                 MS. KONSTAN: I'm not sure of that

         13  answer. I don't believe that every single one of the

         14  on-line occurrence goes into the official record in

         15  a hard copy form.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         17                 MS. KONSTAN: If it's part of a

         18  hearing, a suspension hearing, the parent is

         19  absolutely entitled to a copy of everything that is

         20  part of the child's record. Everything.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. If you can

         22  get back to me by e-mail whether or not it goes into

         23  a child's official record, I would appreciate it.

         24                 Okay, how does the NYPD keep track of

         25  incidents in schools involving the police?
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          2                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: We have two

          3  methods. For crimes, misdemeanor violations, we do

          4  on-line a complaint report. And for minor violations

          5  we do an incident report. Well, we do an incident

          6  report for each. But for minor violations we do an

          7  incident report. There is no complaint report.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay, an

          9  incident, for minor violations, and what do you mean

         10  by -- give me a couple examples of what you mean by

         11  minor violations.

         12                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: Minor

         13  violation would be trespassing, disorderly conduct,

         14  harassment, marijuana possession. And in those cases

         15  a child's name does not go on the report. It just

         16  goes down as an incident.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: An incident.

         18                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: Right.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And those

         20  incident reports are filled out by School Safety

         21  Agents?

         22                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: Right. And

         23  they call into our operations at headquarters and it

         24  gets a log number, and those incidents are forwarded

         25  to the DOE.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: From a process

          3  point of view, the School Safety Agents I guess take

          4  whatever notes that they have to take, they call it

          5  into NYPD?

          6                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And at that

          8  point in time it goes into a computer system and

          9  they get a log number, a case number, or a reference

         10  number; is that correct?

         11                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: Yes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And I assume

         13  that this information is compiled in a central

         14  location and analyzed? And if so, who does that?

         15                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: We compile,

         16  on a monthly basis, we give information to DOE. You

         17  know, the criminal incidents and the minor incidents

         18  for their inclusion on the website, on the OORS

         19  website.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And is that

         21  given to DOE centrally?  Or for example, is specific

         22  information given to the superintendent of an area,

         23  or do you give specific information to all of the

         24  high schools? Or I'm asking you that question and

         25  then I'm asking DOE the same question, but a little
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          2  different. If they give it to you from a central

          3  point of view, what if anything do you do with that

          4  information? So, Assistant Chief.

          5                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: Centrally.

          6  We give them the crime data, the stats on a monthly

          7  basis. We're about, say, two weeks behind. So,

          8  they'll get the information this week or so for

          9  September. And we reconcile the data to make sure

         10  that we have the same data that they have.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And from a

         12  process point of view, Assistant Chief, you're

         13  responsible within NYPD for school safety; is that

         14  correct? As the Assistant Chief?

         15                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: Yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And from your

         17  Department, NYPD, who do you send your monthly

         18  information to? What individual or position at DOE?

         19  Is that to the Chancellor or the Deputy Chancellor,

         20  or the CEO, Ms. Konstan, or whom? Who do you send it

         21  to.

         22                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: I don't know

         23  who gets it specifically.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Chief, do you

         25  know? I'm just trying to process here and find out.
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          2                 Does DOE know?

          3                 MS. KONSTAN: We do get information

          4  from the NYPD every month with the lag and it goes

          5  to members of my team and I share it with Deputy

          6  Chancellor and the Chancellor.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay, it comes

          8  to your office then, is that correct?

          9                 MS. KONSTAN: Yes, it does.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         11                 Concerning IAB and complaints against

         12  School Safety Agents, do you and the NYPD categorize

         13  those into different areas? Or you do not?

         14                 And if so, how many categories are

         15  there that you can categorize complaints into?

         16                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: Yes, there

         17  are two categories. The C cases, which are

         18  corruption, those are the ones that the IAB

         19  maintain. They keep those. They investigate those.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Those are C

         21  cases?

         22                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: C cases.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         24                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: And then

         25  there are the M cases, which are misconduct.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Misconduct.

          3                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: Internal

          4  affairs keep some of those.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

          6                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: And the rest

          7  go to School Safety Investigation.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And that's your

          9  division; is that correct?

         10                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: Yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And I think you

         12  gave testimony a little earlier, didn't you make a

         13  decision on whether or not they stayed there, or you

         14  referred to somewhere else?

         15                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO:

         16  Investigations Unit, which is a Captain, two

         17  Lieutenants, ten Sergeants. They do an assessment.

         18  They keep in a range of 140 or so odd cases, and the

         19  rest go, outside guidelines cases, they're called OG

         20  cases, they go to the boroughs. And at school safety

         21  there are nine boroughs, they go to the boroughs

         22  where the integrity patrol officers in those

         23  boroughs investigate those at that level, and that

         24  could include lost property, missing property, minor

         25  violations.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Does the NYPD

          3  have privacy and anti-retaliation protections in

          4  place for those who file complaints? Either students

          5  or parents or staff, if they file a complaint

          6  concerning retaliation by either School Safety

          7  Agents or NYPD officers assigned to schools, what do

          8  you have in place to deal with that?

          9                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: Again that

         10  would be misconduct. It would be misconduct for

         11  someone who retaliated against someone that makes

         12  the complaint.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: So, in essence,

         14  if I was a staff member or teacher and I filed a

         15  complaint and I felt that the School Safety Agents

         16  were retaliating because I filed a complaint, I

         17  would communicate with IAB; is that correct?

         18                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: Absolutely.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Who decides

         20  whether a school should have permanent metal

         21  detectors, and what criteria are used to make the

         22  decision?

         23                 MS. KONSTAN: The principal's decision

         24  whether or not he or she and his or her school

         25  leadership team wants scanning, a permanent scanning
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          2  in the school. It's the principal's decision.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Where a school

          4  has metal detectors, I'm a new principal, I'm in the

          5  school, I have one year in and I came in as a new

          6  principal, the metal detectors were there. I make a

          7  decision as the principal in charge of the school,

          8  now I do not want metal detectors in my school, and

          9  if I say I want them removed, will they be removed?

         10                 MS. KONSTAN: The principal would make

         11  the request with the superintendent or support

         12  organization, sign off, and that would go to Chief

         13  Secreto to have scanning removed.

         14                 One of the things we do ask

         15  principals to look at is to look at the data, the

         16  data involving weapons that were in the school, as a

         17  way of making informed decisions about whether or

         18  not scanning should be removed from the school.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And are there

         20  rules governing the use and setting for metal

         21  detectors? You know, because I've gone through metal

         22  detectors here at City Hall and some are more

         23  sensitive than others. What are the rules governing

         24  the use and setting of metal detectors?

         25                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: There are
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          2  general rules and procedures for scanning.  That

          3  detection level in the school is set so it can

          4  detect a razor blade, anything from a razor blade on

          5  up.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: So, a belt

          7  buckle will be detected?

          8                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: We ask the

          9  students to take their belts off. It would be

         10  detected. It would.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And the woman's

         12  bra, the metal strippings that are in women's bras,

         13  will that be detected?

         14                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: I'm not sure

         15  on that.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Because we've

         17  heard complaints that they have been, and, you know,

         18  students have been asked to lift their shirts up so

         19  that they can be scanned and what have you and so

         20  forth concerning their bras.

         21                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: I'm not sure

         22  if that would alert the detection device, but in the

         23  case, and I was at Martin Luther King High School

         24  yesterday and observed the scanning for quite

         25  awhile, there's two lines, one for men and one for
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          2  women, male or female, and as they go through the

          3  magnetometer, if it indicates green or three red

          4  stars, they get shown to a second, phase two, where

          5  there is a male agent with a hand-held magnetometer

          6  to search the males and a female agent with a

          7  magnetometer to search the females, to wand the

          8  females. So, I really can't see the situation where

          9  someone would be asked to lift up their bra.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Not their bra,

         11  their shirt, or whatever.

         12                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: I can't see

         13  that happening.

         14                 In the event at this second phase two

         15  scanning, the hand-wand, that there is still

         16  alerting to some presence of metal, it would be a

         17  DOE representative would go with that student to a

         18  private room, and they would ask that child again to

         19  voluntarily give them the item, or if it was a phone

         20  or what have you. And still if there is no results,

         21  then I believe a parent would be called.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Now, I have

         23  heard, and I need clarification on this, I have

         24  heard complaints that when students are going to the

         25  second phase with the portable magnetometer scanner,
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          2  that they have been asked to, you know, like put

          3  their hands up against the wall and spread their

          4  feet like they're being arrested; does that happen

          5  in our school system? Or is it like when we come to

          6  City Hall, we, you know, obviously we just stand up

          7  and they wand us down?

          8                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: I was there

          9  yesterday and that was the process going on

         10  yesterday.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Have you heard

         12  any complaints where people are being asked to lean

         13  up against the wall and spread their feet and put

         14  their hands up against the wall in a school?

         15                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: I haven't.

         16  And I don't think there is any official complaint of

         17  that. I don't believe so.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: That is not the

         19  policy of the New York City Police Department when

         20  dealing with students?

         21                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: No, sir.

         22  Similar, like you said, you raise your hands and

         23  they will wand you and that will be sufficient.

         24  Similar to the airport and to City Hall.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.
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          2                 DOE, any response on that?

          3                 MS. KONSTAN: I have not heard

          4  complaints about that. I have seen secondary wanding

          5  where, as you described students put their hands

          6  out.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

          8                 What are the rules regarding students

          9  who refuse to be scanned by metal detectors?

         10                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: We can't not

         11  admit them. Once they're inside, they're in. They

         12  would have to be given, put in a separate room, they

         13  would be afforded lessons for that day, lunch for

         14  that day, their parent would probably be notified,

         15  but we cannot force them to go through scanning and

         16  we cannot force them to go home if they refuse the

         17  scanning.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I'm sorry. Let

         19  me just understand that. Once they are in the

         20  building or before they come into the building? So,

         21  if I'm coming in and I'm a student and I refuse to

         22  be scanned?

         23                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: If you

         24  refuse to be scanned. Before you get in the building

         25  you can go back home if you want.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Right.

          3                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: That's on

          4  you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Right.

          6                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: Once you're

          7  in the building, we cannot force you to go through

          8  scanning, and we usually defer to DOE and you know,

          9  they could probably explain it better than I could,

         10  but we cannot force someone to go through scanning.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay, I need

         12  additional clarity. So, I'm in an Impact school, and

         13  an Impact school, that's the highest security within

         14  DOE; is that correct? Impact schools?

         15                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: Pretty much,

         16  yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Is there

         18  anything higher than an Impact school?

         19                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: Well,

         20  there's nine Impact schools, but there is full-time

         21  scanning in 73 schools.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Right. But the

         23  Impact schools are the ones who have the most crimes

         24  and violence and as a result of that all of the

         25  Impact schools, to my knowledge, have metal
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          2  detectors and a higher number of School Safety

          3  Agents and Police Officers; am I right or wrong?

          4                 MS. KONSTAN: There are some Impact

          5  schools that do not have full-time scanning.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. Then I

          7  stand to be corrected.

          8                 But if I'm going to a school that has

          9  a metal detector, obviously if I go through there

         10  I'm in the building already. And then if a safety

         11  officer wants to scan me or ask me to come through

         12  the scanner again or wand me, I can refuse; is that

         13  correct?

         14                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: That's

         15  correct.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And not be

         17  arrested.

         18                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: That's

         19  correct.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Then walk me

         21  through this, what happens? The safety officer calls

         22  the principal? Or does the supervisor of the Safety

         23  Agent get involved at that point in time?

         24                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: A DOE

         25  representative is present during scanning. Now,
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          2  that's the policy.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: That's the

          4  policy.

          5                 MS. KONSTAN: All the time.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And who is the

          7  normal -- what normal position? Is that a dean or a

          8  teacher, who is normally assigned to that?

          9                 MS. KONSTAN: It varies from

         10  school-to-school. Sometimes it's the principal,

         11  sometimes it's the assistant principal.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: You're talking

         13  about when they pull aside a student?

         14                 MS. KONSTAN: I'm talking about any

         15  time they're scanning, at the full-time scanning or

         16  even at unannounced --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         18                 MS. KONSTAN: There needs to be school

         19  administration at scanning.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. So the

         21  normal process of students coming into the school in

         22  the morning, there is always someone from DOE

         23  observing the process --

         24                 MS. KONSTAN: That's correct.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Is that correct?
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          2                 MS. KONSTAN: Yes.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Would you,

          4  either NYPD or DOE, would you object to a member of

          5  the City Council making unannounced visits to

          6  observe the metal detector process at a school?

          7                 ASSISTANT CHIEF SECRETO: All visitors

          8  to the schools are the authority of the DOE and the

          9  principal, so whoever the DOE allows in those

         10  schools is okay with us.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. Department

         12  of Education?

         13                 MS. KONSTAN: We agree.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I know you

         15  agree, but I'm asking you a question.

         16                 MS. KONSTAN: Oh.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: As far as, would

         18  you object to a member of the City Council making

         19  unannounced visits to observe the metal detecting

         20  process at a school?

         21                 MS. KONSTAN: Absolutely not.

         22                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: The decision

         23  would rest with the principal.

         24                 MS. KONSTAN: Right.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: The decision
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          2  would rest with the principal?

          3                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: Correct. We

          4  would have no objections centrally.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. Are there

          6  written rules prohibiting parents from observing

          7  metal detectors?

          8                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: No.

          9                 MS. KONSTAN: I don't know of any.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: So, if a parent

         11  wants to come to a school to see how their students

         12  are being processed through metal detectors, who do

         13  they go to in order to -- can they just stand there

         14  and observe?

         15                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: They should

         16  go to the principal.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And the decision

         18  is the principal's?

         19                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And if they

         21  disagree with the principal's decision, who do they

         22  go to?

         23                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: They should

         24  go to the family advocate in the district office.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: The family
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          2  advocate.

          3                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: Yes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Yes.

          5                 Even though the family advocate does

          6  not supervise the principals; is that correct?

          7                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: Correct. But

          8  the family advocate is there to --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Advocate for the

         10  family?

         11                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: To advocate

         12  for the parent or the family, yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, let me

         14  just thank all of the officials here from the

         15  Department of Education and the New York City Police

         16  Department for coming and giving testimony on this

         17  extremely important issue. And we look forward to

         18  working with both of you, both the New York City

         19  Police Department and the Department of Education to

         20  ensuring that our children are safe, and that

         21  schools are orderly, that there is rules and

         22  regulations governing students' behavior, staff

         23  behavior, and that there is clarity as far as who is

         24  responsible, because as our Speaker Christine Quinn

         25  said this morning, at the Abney Breakfast
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          2  (phonetic), we want accountability at every single

          3  level within the City's government.

          4                 Let me thank you all for coming.

          5                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Peter Vallone,

          7  Jr., my colleague, Chair of the Public Safety

          8  Committee.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Yes. And when

         10  you head over to the administration to give your

         11  full support to Council Member Felder's ideas, add

         12  my support. Because I believe if we can give our

         13  private schools nurses to keep them healthy, we can

         14  give them School Safety Agents to keep them safe.

         15                 I want to thank you all for the work

         16  you do every day. I think one of the most essential

         17  things we should take from this, though, is that our

         18  Committees believe that a written protocol is

         19  essential, much like CIMS, the Citywide Internet

         20  Management System, that that is something that you

         21  should give serious consideration to and hopefully

         22  implement in the near future.

         23                 Again, thank you for the work you do

         24  every day. I think you do a great job.

         25                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Council Member

          3  Gonzalez.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GONZALEZ: I also would

          5  like to thank you for your testimony, your time

          6  today. Let's continue to work together for the

          7  betterment of our schools and the future of our

          8  children.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         12                 Our first witness today is Ernest

         13  Logan, the President of CSA, the Council of

         14  Supervisors and Administrators, representing

         15  principals, assistant principals and school

         16  administrators.

         17                 Can you take the conversations

         18  outside of the Chamber? We would appreciate it very

         19  much. And next we are going to hear from Ernest

         20  Logan, the Chair, the President of CSA.

         21                 Mr. Logan.

         22                 MR. LOGAN: Thank you, Chairman

         23  Jackson.

         24                 Good morning, Chairman Jackson,

         25  Chairman Vallone, Chairwoman Gonzalez. Thank you for
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          2  allowing me to do testimony this morning on the very

          3  critical issue of school safety and security.

          4                 I have testimony that I will not

          5  read. What I would like to do instead is do a

          6  summary of their testimony and touch on some of the

          7  things I heard today in testimony that was presented

          8  by the NYPD and the Department of Education.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Just move your

         10  mic. a little closer so I can hear you. Just as loud

         11  as I can hear myself.

         12                 MR. LOGAN: How's that?

         13                 So, as school leaders we are charged

         14  with the task of providing a quality education for

         15  all students, and I'm just going to deviate a bit.

         16  Some of what I heard today did not really help to

         17  support the mission that we should have in our

         18  public schools.

         19                 I was troubled by the term securing

         20  the facility; policing the security. Our schools are

         21  not facilities, they are schools. They are places

         22  where children gather, where educators come together

         23  to assist them in teaching and learning. I think we

         24  need to work on that mindset, because some of what

         25  we're hearing and seeing seems to come from that
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          2  philosophy that these are facilities. Are these

          3  prison facilities? No, they're schools. Places where

          4  people gather together in a community.

          5                 So, the challenge that we face in

          6  education is that we want to be able to have a safe

          7  and secure environment for our students, but we also

          8  want to have a place that's conducive to learning.

          9  Armed camps are not conducive to learning. I have

         10  made a major, major call for collaboration between

         11  CSA, the UFT, Local 237, School Safety Agents, the

         12  Board of Ed and the Police Department, because back

         13  when we did the MOU it demanded that there be this

         14  joint committee. The MOU required it. It has not

         15  happened.

         16                 So, I've come up with some ideas

         17  today, and maybe some possible solutions, not to

         18  assess blame anywhere.

         19                 I first want to start off by saying

         20  that School Safety Agents work in a very difficult

         21  role but do a phenomenal job in the role that

         22  they're placed in, but they're in a catch-22. My

         23  members who are the principals and the assistant

         24  principals in the schools feel that they cannot

         25  direct these people who are providing the safety and
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          2  security in their buildings, because there is a

          3  conflict with what the Police Department tells the

          4  School Safety Agent what they can and cannot do.

          5                 You can't have someone who is not at

          6  the scene, making decisions at the school level.

          7  Now, the Chancellor has said principals are

          8  empowered. Well, it's interesting, we're now

          9  empowered over everything but we can't say anything

         10  to the School Safety Agent about what we want them

         11  to do.

         12                 I was surprised today to hear that

         13  the principal can even decide if they wanted

         14  scanning or not. My members will love to hear that

         15  one, because that is what the Deputy Chancellor

         16  said.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: You've heard it

         18  loud and clear. They said the decision is, lies with

         19  the principal.

         20                 MR. LOGAN: So, I'm going to put that

         21  out in my listserv today, that principals have a

         22  right to decide whether they want scanning or not,

         23  because I have never heard that until today.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I'm sorry, I

         25  don't mean to cut you off. You say that you have
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          2  never heard that until today?

          3                 MR. LOGAN: Absolutely. Never heard

          4  that principals can decide if they want to have

          5  scanning or remove scanning.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: You're the

          7  president of the principals, CSA, the Council of

          8  Supervisors and Administrators that represents all

          9  of the principals, all of the assistant principals,

         10  and school administrators and you have never heard

         11  that?

         12                 MR. LOGAN: I have never heard it said

         13  that the principal can remove scanning if he chooses

         14  to have it removed. I heard it today. So, I will

         15  follow up on that one.

         16                 We would also like to see a

         17  meaningful assessment of safety and security in each

         18  of our schools, such a report is years, if not

         19  decades in the waiting.

         20                 We need to know what the needs are in

         21  individual schools. We would like to have

         22  professional development of our School Safety Agents

         23  in align when someone talks to principals about what

         24  the needs they have. And we are the people to go to.

         25  Through the City Council, we have a professional
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          2  development institute, the Executive Leadership

          3  Institute. Everyone else comes to us to talk about,

          4  how we do professional development for school

          5  leaders.

          6                 Well, the Police Department has never

          7  approached us about doing things jointly about

          8  educating our members on the role of school safety,

          9  and their members on the role of principals and

         10  assistant principals in schools. We would like to

         11  have that done, because there are some universal

         12  issues that we need to talk about.

         13                 Every incident is unique, but I am

         14  truly troubled by the fact that we are criminalizing

         15  our children, because I heard today also that the

         16  School Safety Agent decides whether it is a crime or

         17  not. Now, maybe I'm a little confused by that. I

         18  know there is a principal of a school, two second

         19  graders playing in the school yard. The game gets

         20  heated, Jonnie hits Michael, Michael winds up with a

         21  bloody nose, the School Safety Agent observed that.

         22  Is that a crime? Are we now going to arrest the

         23  child who hit the other kid with the bloody nose? I

         24  don't think so.

         25                 So, we need to be very careful about
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          2  what we decide to do as what is and what is not a

          3  crime.

          4                 We believe that principals and

          5  assistant principals are in charge of their

          6  buildings and must have more direct control and

          7  supervision of safety agents. We believe that

          8  strongly. It makes no sense to me that those who are

          9  held accountable for school safety, should have

         10  little control over their key personnel and the

         11  implementation of safety measures.

         12                 Many of you have said that you have

         13  heard confusion here today at the City Council when

         14  people were asking questions about the DOE and the

         15  Police Department.

         16                 Well, if you have confusion here at

         17  the City Council, imagine the confusion in 1,400

         18  schools of how this is supposed to work.

         19                 I'm here for questions.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, you know,

         21  I'm surprised you're saying this is the first time

         22  you heard today that principals have the authority

         23  to determine whether or not they want to have metal

         24  detectors in schools or not.

         25                 You heard the example that I gave as
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          2  far as if I'm a new principal and I just came into a

          3  school that had metal detectors and I want them

          4  removed, that I can request to have them removed,

          5  and that request will go up and the decision is

          6  made.

          7                 As far as, you know, it appears as

          8  though that they are saying, the call is the

          9  principal as to have or have not, and that clearly

         10  with the removal it seems as though you have

         11  requested, and it would have to be quote/unquote

         12  approved, but the decision is really the

         13  principal's.

         14                 MR. LOGAN: I thought that was

         15  interesting. If someone is approving it then it's

         16  not your decision. Let's be realistic, if I decide I

         17  no longer want this, and you can't tell me the

         18  decision is mine if I have to get approval for the

         19  decision. So, it is not my decision, and it is

         20  absolutely not my decision.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Now, you,

         22  obviously, as a president of CSA, you know about the

         23  arrest of one of your members yesterday. I asked the

         24  question of NYPD and DOE can you shed any additional

         25  light on this subject area. They basically said they
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          2  could not because it's an investigative matter at

          3  this point in time, and I don't know if you were

          4  here when I said the only thing that we're getting

          5  is what we're reading in the papers, or seeing on

          6  the news. Can you shed any additional light on this

          7  particular matter for us?

          8                 MR. LOGAN: I have not spoken to my

          9  member directly. But my understanding from the

         10  staff, my staff that was there who have spoken to

         11  people there, part of the issue, and I believe what

         12  really led to the escalation is that the principal

         13  felt that the young lady who was being arrested, he

         14  did not dispute the police right to arrest her, felt

         15  that she should not be paraded in front of her

         16  peers.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: In essence a

         18  perp walk.

         19                 MR. LOGAN: That's exactly what it

         20  was. So, instead of having one person in the perp

         21  walk, we had two, the principal and the student. And

         22  I don't think they did anybody any -- this was a

         23  very, very sad day in education in New York City.

         24  Because now what we've done, we've shown school

         25  leaders, you can also be treated like anyone else,
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          2  right or wrong, there was a way to do that

          3  yesterday. I think everyone over-escalated what

          4  should have been something that should have been

          5  de-escalated. And I will leave it at that on that

          6  issue.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Now, you heard

          8  me ask questions of the NYPD and DOE about, you

          9  know, development and implementation of training of

         10  School Safety Agents, school security personnel. As

         11  the president of the principals union, when I say to

         12  you school security personnel, what positions come

         13  into play when I say that to you as the president of

         14  CSA?

         15                 MR. LOGAN: School Safety Agents,

         16  Sergeants. Just School Safety Agents and Sergeants.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. So, are

         18  deans by CSA considered school safety personnel?

         19  School security personnel?

         20                 MR. LOGAN: No, deans play a different

         21  role. Remember pedagogues. The role of the dean,

         22  yes, definitely has something to do with discipline,

         23  but it's also a guidance position. It's clear to

         24  someone going out to try to remediate issues. Yes,

         25  part of their role is to indeed secure security.
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          2  Make sure the students are safe. But the dean's role

          3  is not to be a police officer. The dean is to be the

          4  pedagogue dealing with student issues, and that's

          5  how the dean's role was set up.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: As the president

          7  of CSA, from a union's perspective, are you or any

          8  other brass of CSA involved in a Citywide or

          9  boroughwide basis, as far as to discuss and review

         10  incidents reports regarding school violence,

         11  allegations of wrong-doing by SSAs or anything

         12  relating to the development and implementation of

         13  training from a Citywide perspective, boroughwide

         14  perspective, or, and/or school-wide.

         15                 MR. LOGAN: We are not involved with

         16  any training whatsoever with NYPD. We do meet as

         17  part of the Board of Ed, as part of our consultant

         18  relationship with the DOE, we meet regarding school

         19  safety, we are now just starting to reconvene with

         20  the NYPD School Safety Bureau. In fact, we decided

         21  to do something this month in fact. It's on the

         22  calendar for this month, to go back to having

         23  monthly meetings. There was a time when we used to

         24  have monthly meetings with NYPD school safety, when

         25  it became part of the NYPD they basically stopped
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          2  having those meetings. They've decided to reconvene

          3  those.

          4                 We look forward to that because

          5  hopefully we'll be able to deal with some of these

          6  issues.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And who

          8  initiated the renewal of that process?

          9                 MR. LOGAN: Let's say we both did

         10  yesterday.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         12                 Questions of my colleagues. Helen

         13  Sears from Queens.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you. I'll

         15  be very quick. I had expressed earlier a concern I

         16  had for the principals, because there was so much

         17  ambivalence going back and forth, and if the safety

         18  officers and the principals, and the principals have

         19  no control over them, and a principal makes a

         20  decision that is not criminal, because we were

         21  advised today that the police do that, and the

         22  principal has the authority over other forms of

         23  discipline. If the parents don't agree with that,

         24  what mechanism is in place to assist that principal

         25  for what may be an ordeal for him or for her?
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          2                 MR. LOGAN: That's a very, very

          3  interesting question, because with the new

          4  reorganization --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: The way it was

          6  answered was that there is access from the City.

          7                 MR. LOGAN: Our issue would be as

          8  supervisors, as principals, we would say in the

          9  community school district the issue should go to

         10  your community superintendent, the High School

         11  Division, your high school superintendent. We've

         12  always believed that the superintendent plays a role

         13  directly over the principal, whether it's in the

         14  district or community school district or high

         15  school. And those issues are there for

         16  superintendents who assist principals in dealing

         17  with them.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: And the reason

         19  I ask that is because in my district there have been

         20  things that they do with their different

         21  nationalities and would not, for instance, a student

         22  came in with certain knives around the neck, it was

         23  the culture to do that, and he was approaching 16 or

         24  something like that. It was a big mess, because the

         25  principal, rightfully so, wouldn't allow the student

                                                            189

          1  EDUCATION, PUBLIC SAFETY AND JUVENILE JUSTICE

          2  in the class with these open knives around his neck.

          3  And that really came into court and did a lot of

          4  other things. The principal was right for doing

          5  that, completely right. And that parents were very

          6  upset that the student couldn't wear them in school.

          7                 MR. LOGAN: I think that's why I talk

          8  about this idea of collaboration and dialogue,

          9  because there are many things that we all need to be

         10  aware of, and then that means that we need to reach

         11  out into the community.

         12                 I'm also proposing that we need to

         13  look at school safety in a different way, and either

         14  we reach out to the Vera Institute of Justice,

         15  that's well respected, and ACLU, and 237 CSA UFT,

         16  come up with another way that we can do this

         17  security and safety within our schools. Because we

         18  can't have armed camps and we can't have loosie

         19  goosie. There has to be something that makes sense.

         20  It helps us to support the mission of educating

         21  children. School safety should be a support

         22  mechanism for teaching and learning. That's what it

         23  is and that's what it should be.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: It also should

         25  be separate and apart from a street environment and
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          2  a school environment. I would think the disciplines

          3  there are very different.

          4                 Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

          6                 My Co-Chair, Peter Vallone, Jr.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you, Mr.

          8  Logan, for coming down today and listening to the

          9  testimony. Is there anything else that was said,

         10  that was testified to that you might take issue with

         11  or correct?

         12                 MR. LOGAN: No, I think the thing that

         13  was most telling was the idea of policing the

         14  facility, securing the facility. I just really need

         15  to say this again. We need to change the mindset. We

         16  need to change the mindset. These are schools and we

         17  need to look at it in a different way. And I think

         18  the idea, yes, there is a need in some places for

         19  police. There is a need, even in our Impact schools,

         20  I agree that there was a need to get them under

         21  control, but the key about that was we were supposed

         22  to do lots of support services guidance, conflict

         23  mediation, conflict for -- Council For Unity

         24  Activities, bring other partners in, community

         25  partners in to deal with the issues that were there
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          2  and not to make them armed camps.

          3                 And I think until we are going to get

          4  a handle on that, we're going to have lots of

          5  incidents like we had yesterday.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay, I'm going

          7  to disagree with the armed camps comment.

          8                 MR. LOGAN: Okay.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: We'll disagree

         10  about that, but I agree with the sentiment of what

         11  you said, though.

         12                 And my last question, because I do

         13  unfortunately have to leave for a meeting with the

         14  Speaker, who just txt'd me she's ready, is a written

         15  protocol; would that be helpful to you?

         16                 MR. LOGAN: It would be. We know the

         17  MOU is old, but it was never revisited. We thought

         18  the MOU would be the basis for a written protocol of

         19  who is responsible for what and how it would react.

         20  Especially a chain of communication. Some of the

         21  problems my members have explained to me is

         22  sometimes SSA calls for the police and they show up

         23  at the school and they didn't even know there was an

         24  incident. And, so, that's a problem. But they've

         25  been directed to call things in, so they do. The
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          2  person says, well, you know, you could have called

          3  me and said this was happening. So, yes, protocol is

          4  very important.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Well, we look

          6  forward to your assistance in getting that done.

          7  Thank you, again, for your testimony today.

          8                 MR. LOGAN: I appreciate it. Thank

          9  you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Mr. Logan, let

         11  me thank you for coming in on behalf of CSA, the

         12  Council of Supervisors and Administrators. And we

         13  look forward to work with you in order to improve

         14  the environment in our schools so that our children

         15  are safe and secure and that teaching and learning

         16  occurs every single day.

         17                 MR. LOGAN: Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         19                 Next we are going to hear from

         20  Gregory Floyd, the president of Teamsters Local 237.

         21                 Mr. Floyd, welcome.

         22                 MR. FLOYD: Good morning. Or good

         23  afternoon, rather.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Good afternoon.

         25  We started in the morning and now it's afternoon.
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          2  And as you know, the hearing, we will have an

          3  additional hearing this afternoon that will

          4  continue, approximately 3:30, so that students and

          5  other individuals who want to testify can come in

          6  later.

          7                 But let me just welcome you. I don't

          8  know how long you have been here, and whether or not

          9  you have heard all of the testimony of the NYPD and

         10  the Department of Education and the questions put

         11  forward by myself and other members of the

         12  Education, Public Safety and Juvenile Justice

         13  Committee members. But there were a lot of questions

         14  and responses, and still I think we seek clarity as

         15  far as accountability and responsibility.

         16                 So, I welcome you here this

         17  afternoon, and I welcome your testimony on behalf of

         18  all of the members that you represent in the School

         19  Division of Teamsters Local 237.

         20                 MR. FLOYD: Thank you.

         21                 Good afternoon. My name is Gregory

         22  Floyd. I'm the president of Local 237. I speak here

         23  today on behalf of the 4,300 plus School Safety

         24  Agents who are represented by Local 237. We thank

         25  the Committees for this opportunity to speak on

                                                            194

          1  EDUCATION, PUBLIC SAFETY AND JUVENILE JUSTICE

          2  behalf of our members.

          3                 Local 237 understands one purpose of

          4  these hearings to be a review of all the procedures

          5  and training of law enforcement and safety personnel

          6  in New York City schools. We congratulate the

          7  committees for undertaking this investigation, which

          8  is of paramount interest to all New Yorkers.

          9                 First, permit me to express Local

         10  237's great pride in the job done by the School

         11  Safety Agents. Our members daily protect over 1

         12  million students, staff and population greater than

         13  the City of Detroit. Agents quell gang disputes,

         14  confiscate weapons and contraband, and preserve an

         15  orderly environment in which teachers and students

         16  can do their work. A stirring exhibition of our

         17  members' professionalism came in the spring of this

         18  year at the basketball tournament at Madison Square

         19  Garden where 3,000 School Safety Agents -- excuse me

         20  -- 300 school safety agents calmed a potential

         21  deadly and disorderly crowd of over 14,000 students.

         22                 But we are not satisfied to rest on

         23  these laurels. Local 237 has taken a lead role in

         24  assuring School Safety Agents are properly selected

         25  for its mission of protecting students and staff.
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          2  Local 237 fought for many years with final success

          3  in 2007 to make School Safety Agents a competitive

          4  civil service title. Local 237 thus ensured that

          5  School Safety Agents will now be selected through a

          6  process of competitive written examinations.

          7                 Local 237 continues to fight to

          8  upgrade school safety title. We have recommended

          9  that the civil service testing be used for promotion

         10  into New York City Police Department.

         11                 Finally, Local 237 seeks to integrate

         12  School Safety more fully into the Police Department

         13  by enhancing professionalism with the School Safety

         14  Agent force. We ask Police Commissioner Kelly to

         15  reinstate the right for School Safety Agents to

         16  promote to patrolman, allowing agents to substitute

         17  two years of service in the title for the two years

         18  experience for 60 college credits.

         19                 NYPD currently permits veterans of

         20  military to use their service to substitute for

         21  college credits applying to patrolmen jobs. Local

         22  237 contends that the School Safety job more nearly

         23  resembles the duties of a New York City Police

         24  Officer than most military service today. A right to

         25  promote to patrolman would surely attract many more
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          2  ambitious and capable young people to school safety.

          3                 Thus, Local 237 yields to no group or

          4  individual effort to ensure a well-trained and

          5  professional School Safety force. However, working

          6  toward the goal, we urge the City Council to be

          7  cautious in its appraisal of recent public critiques

          8  of the agent's performance.

          9                 In particular, Local 237 has been

         10  concerned by the report of the New York Civil

         11  Liberties Union, which alleges a pattern of hostile

         12  treatment of students by NYPD representatives,

         13  including School Safety Agents.

         14                 Local 237 is mindful of New York City

         15  Liberty Union's many honorable efforts over the

         16  years. However, we feel that its report, which was

         17  prepared without any consultation of agents of our

         18  union, lends itself to distortion and

         19  sensationalism. One example of the report is the

         20  claim that inappropriate sexual touching of female

         21  students during searches by agents. Local 237 is

         22  confident in representing that School Safety Agents

         23  follow a strict protocol which permits searches of

         24  female students to be only conducted by female

         25  agents. Surely the fact of this protocol, unreported
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          2  by New York City Liberties Union, changes the

          3  perception of any touching incidents.

          4                 Of course, Local 237 rejects any

          5  implication that School Safety Agents are

          6  insensitive to the concerns of largely-minority

          7  public school population. A majority of our School

          8  Safety Agents are women of color. A majority -- they

          9  reside in the communities from which the students

         10  are drawn from.

         11                 Many of them are mothers to students

         12  in the same public school system.

         13                 School Safety Agents are also blamed

         14  for policies that they have not devised, which have

         15  caused controversy. Our members are sometimes caught

         16  in the confusion between the NYPD supervisors and

         17  school principals. School Safety Agents take the

         18  brunt of the students' frustration over the issues,

         19  such as cell phone confiscation, which many

         20  contribute to some of the complaints featured in the

         21  New York City Liberties report.

         22                 More work needs to be done to

         23  guarantee safety in the environment and training and

         24  Local 237 is eager to assist in the process.

         25                 I want to add that we also volunteer
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          2  our services. We sit on the not-for-profit

          3  organization called the Council for Unity, which is

          4  an organization that's in the public school system

          5  that helps young men and women get away from gangs.

          6  And we also want to say that we realize that there

          7  is a problem with this dual reporting system, and

          8  that our agents are often caught in between the

          9  supervisors, which is the New York City Police

         10  Department, and the principals. If they don't listen

         11  to the principals, they are transferred. If they

         12  listen to the principals, in some cases they are

         13  disciplined.

         14                 So, when I say that, if you have a

         15  conflict, our agents are caught in the middle and

         16  that's not a very good place to be, and most times

         17  they feel powerless as to what is happening.

         18                 And also, they feel unsupported

         19  because they read the papers like everyone else.

         20  They don't make the decisions to put the metal

         21  detectors there, they don't make the decisions to

         22  enforce the rules, they are given their assignments

         23  and they carry out their assignments. So, I want

         24  everyone to understand that they're doing the best

         25  possible job they can do. It's a thankless job. It
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          2  doesn't pay a lot of money, so if anybody thinks

          3  that they're working there for money, a lot of these

          4  School Safety Agents stayed because they have pride.

          5  So, thank you for letting us testify.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, let me

          7  thank you coming in on behalf of the members that

          8  you represent. And, obviously, there are a lot of

          9  issues and concerns that have been expressed here

         10  today and the questions and responses given by NYPD

         11  and the Department of Education, and also issues and

         12  concerns that have been raised by advocates, you

         13  spoke about one, the New York Civil Liberties Union.

         14  I think you said that before that your local, and it

         15  represents all of the SSAs, who is not consulted at

         16  all by the New York Civil Liberties Union before

         17  they finalized that report; is that correct?

         18                 MR. FLOYD: That's correct. And not

         19  one school safety agent was questioned. Now, I don't

         20  know of any report or any investigation that's done

         21  that you don't ask the people that you're talking

         22  about their side of it. Just ask because you may get

         23  a different perspective, and some of those questions

         24  you have as to why things are done, you may

         25  understand why they're done, and you may have a
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          2  different outcome.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Now, has the New

          4  York Civil Liberties Union subsequently, after

          5  issuing that report, reached out to Local 237 of the

          6  teamsters?

          7                 MR. FLOYD: No.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Have you reached

          9  out to them in order to say we disagree with aspects

         10  of this report, we want to sit down with you to

         11  discuss this?

         12                 MR. FLOYD: No, we have not.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         14                 And the reason why I ask that,

         15  because you know, I had a similar situation not

         16  involving school, but the situation where one group

         17  said to me about they haven't contacted us, and I

         18  said to them, well, did you reach out and contact

         19  them, even though you disagree with what they have

         20  to say? And they said no. And I said to them, and I

         21  make this offer to you, and I know you can do it

         22  yourself as the President, but if you would ask me

         23  to intervene to set up that meeting so that the

         24  views and opinions of Local, Teamsters Local 237, it

         25  is known to the New York Civil Liberties Union, then
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          2  I will be glad to intervene to set that up, but I

          3  know that you can yourself.

          4                 But also you had indicated that your

          5  members do not make the policies and procedures, but

          6  they mainly implement the laws and the policies and

          7  procedures that are developed by NYPD and/or --

          8                 MR. FLOYD: The Department of

          9  Education.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: With the

         11  Department of Education.

         12                 You have heard me, I believe you

         13  heard when I asked questions of whether or not CSA

         14  was involved in a Citywide or Borough-wide

         15  involvement in I guess discussing rules or

         16  regulations or changes; are you, as the President of

         17  Local, Teamsters Local 237 involved with DOE and

         18  NYPD as far as changes or development and

         19  implementation of training programs for School

         20  Safety Agents?

         21                 MR. FLOYD: Currently, no. And let me

         22  give you an example. Four years ago, it was almost

         23  four years ago maybe, we had an incident in

         24  Washington Urban High School that sparked this whole

         25  program of 27 Impact schools. We found out about the
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          2  incident and the program when there was a visit by

          3  the Mayor, the Chancellor and two other unions and

          4  they went to Far Rockaway High School. At that time

          5  we were not asked to come.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: So you mean even

          7  though there was an incident that sparked the visit

          8  of the Mayor and two other unions, I assume, I make

          9  the assumption you were referring to the CSA and the

         10  UFT?

         11                 MR. FLOYD: Correct.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Your union,

         13  which was involved with all of the safety agents,

         14  and as you testified and others testified, if you

         15  look at it from a United States of America point of

         16  view, would be the tenth largest police force or

         17  uniformed services in the country, and as you

         18  indicated, that your agents maintain safety and

         19  security for over a million plus people larger than

         20  the City of Detroit. You were not involved or asked

         21  to be involved in that?

         22                 MR. FLOYD: We were not. We were

         23  subsequently, we were invited after the meetings had

         24  been taking place, we were subsequently brought to

         25  the table.
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          2                 We had a different view. We needed a

          3  meeting at the time to express how the School Safety

          4  Agents were being treated. Since then things have

          5  gotten better. And we needed to discuss certain

          6  things, and the only reason I bring that up today is

          7  because it seems that whenever it comes to School

          8  Safety Agents, they're the last ones asked, the last

          9  ones thought about, whether it's from an advocacy

         10  group, or the Administration. And one has to ask

         11  why. And when it comes to asking their opinion, even

         12  in schools, the principals or sometimes the

         13  officials, don't want to hear what they have to say.

         14  And sometimes what they have to say is valuable

         15  because they're standing around watching the

         16  children every day, and some situations can be

         17  avoided if someone would just listen.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: So, your members

         19  report to you as a president of the School Safety

         20  Agents that their opinions overall in general what

         21  I'm hearing from you is not valued at the local

         22  level.

         23                 MR. FLOYD: Yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: That's what I'm

         25  concluding.
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          2                 MR. FLOYD: That's what you're

          3  concluding, that's what I'm saying.

          4                 And in the schools, I think when

          5  Ernie Logan spoke, he's right, there needs to be

          6  more dialogue. So, if the principal has a meeting,

          7  whether it's weekly, monthly, with everyone

          8  involved, because School Safety agents are left

          9  outside standing on the perimeters on posts, and

         10  they're not taking into account what's going on in

         11  the school. If they're included in the school's

         12  planning and made a part of the team, I think we can

         13  begin to see a difference. Because once you

         14  understand what the other person is thinking what

         15  their jobs are and what they have to deal with, you

         16  could take into account, certain feelings, certain

         17  behaviors taken into account and we can start

         18  avoiding some of these conflicts that we're seeing

         19  now.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Now, as far as

         21  School Safety Agents, there was discussions here

         22  where an NYPD had indicated there is School Safety

         23  1s, School Safety 2s, and School Safety Agent 3s; is

         24  that correct?

         25                 MR. FLOYD: That's correct.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And Assistant

          3  Chief indicated that School Safety Agents 3 are

          4  equivalent to like a Sergeant at the NYPD level. And

          5  he indicated that in every intermediate school and

          6  high school, there is at least one supervising

          7  School Safety Agent along with I think a minimum of,

          8  I think he said three Safety Agents; is that

          9  correct?

         10                 MR. FLOYD: That's correct.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. Now, and

         12  I've heard the DOE talk about that there is monthly

         13  school safety meetings; are any of the supervisors

         14  involved in these monthly school safety committee

         15  meetings, to your knowledge?

         16                 MR. FLOYD: I think what he meant,

         17  monthly school safety meetings might be with the

         18  chief and the brass down.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: No, the

         20  Department of Education had indicated, correct me,

         21  staff, if I'm wrong, that they have monthly school

         22  safety committee meetings in the school. School

         23  safety committee meetings.

         24                 MR. FLOYD: Okay.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Now, I don't
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          2  think that all of the agents should be at the -- but

          3  the supervisor should be.

          4                 MR. FLOYD: The supervisor should be

          5  involved, yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Do you know if

          7  that is the case?

          8                 MR. FLOYD: I'm not sure if that is

          9  the case. I'm not sure.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Would you check

         11  and get back to me, please?

         12                 MR. FLOYD: I would have to check and

         13  get back to you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Now, were you

         15  here when I asked a question about scanning and

         16  complaints about females? I asked about the metal in

         17  bras; do you have any insight on whether or not that

         18  triggers the metal detectors?

         19                 MR. FLOYD: I'm not sure, because when

         20  you go in the airports, I'm not sure there's metal

         21  in bras. I don't see women being pulled off the

         22  lines for that. And I'm not sure that they have the

         23  same equipment they have in the airports.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         25                 MR. FLOYD: I'm not sure. You look at
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          2  it and I'm not sure it's as sensitive as the ones in

          3  the airport. So, I would think that would be a

          4  factor.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Is it possible,

          6  can you check with your overall membership on

          7  whether or not the sensitivities as far as the metal

          8  of the underpinnings of a bra are cause for the

          9  metal detector to go off, in order to send to the

         10  second level, which is the portable scanning. I'd be

         11  interested in knowing what your membership is saying

         12  on that. Because the Assistant Chief indicated that

         13  they are set to detect razor blades, and I know how

         14  thin, you know, we all know how thin razor blades

         15  are, so I just need some clarity.

         16                 MR. FLOYD: Okay.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Not from DOE,

         18  because they already indicated, but from the people

         19  that are actually doing the job, and that's

         20  important.

         21                 Now, you had indicated that female

         22  agents are the only ones that search female

         23  students.

         24                 MR. FLOYD: That's the protocol, yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: When you say
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          2  search, that's physically searching or just hand

          3  wands?

          4                 MR. FLOYD: Hand wand.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: So, what if

          6  their school, if you've ever had this scenario, what

          7  if a school does not have a female School Safety

          8  Agent at that location? What happens? Or you have

          9  never run into that situation.

         10                 MR. FLOYD: I don't think we run into

         11  that situation. We have the reverse situation where

         12  males aren't present in the schools, and some cases

         13  I think we have more females than males in school

         14  safety.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And I think you

         16  had indicated that the majority of your members are

         17  women of color.

         18                 MR. FLOYD: Yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And, so, do you

         20  know what percentage of the membership are male

         21  versus female?

         22                 MR. FLOYD: It's pretty high. If it's

         23  not 41, 51, it's pretty close. But when you take

         24  into fact that you put males on patrol, in the

         25  schools I believe you have more females than males
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          2  in the schools, only because of the assignments that

          3  are given.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: So as far as if

          5  a school has majority female officers and there is

          6  no male officers there, the protocol is okay for a

          7  female officer to wand a male student; is that

          8  correct?

          9                 MR. FLOYD: I wouldn't say that. I

         10  just know about the female protocol, but I wouldn't

         11  say that, because even in the reverse you wouldn't

         12  want that to happen either.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, I'm

         14  asking. You know, I can ask DOE that question or

         15  NYPD, but I'm asking you also as the president of

         16  Local Teamsters 237.

         17                 MR. FLOYD: That wouldn't seem right

         18  either.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         20                 MR. FLOYD: That wouldn't seem right.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         22                 But in a situation where I guess a

         23  female School Safety Agent was not available, this

         24  central -- what is it, the --

         25                 MR. FLOYD: They would have to call
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          2  somebody.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: They would call

          4  and then reassign; is that correct?

          5                 MR. FLOYD: Yes, because they have,

          6  when you say Level 2s, they have somebody on patrol

          7  and they would call them, they would come off patrol

          8  and come inside.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Level 2s are

         10  comparable to what, like Corporals?

         11                 MR. FLOYD: Corporal is Level 2s, but

         12  they're mostly assigned to, I would say scanning and

         13  perimeter patrols, because if a school needs

         14  additional officers or agents, they would call in

         15  Level 2s and they would call it the task force.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And Level 2s

         17  have -- I'm asking, and I don't know -- do Level 2s

         18  have more experience on the job than Level 1s,

         19  and/or more training experience than Level 1s?

         20  Because you indicated in that situation, as far as

         21  scanning, mobile scanning, Level SA2s, mainly that's

         22  part of their jurisdiction.

         23                 MR. FLOYD: It's the training. It's

         24  the training in the type of assignment they have

         25  given.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Training and

          3  type of assignment.

          4                 MR. FLOYD: Yes, because they're

          5  trained to do perimeter patrols, and they also know

          6  the different schools because they go in and out of

          7  different schools. So in any given day Level 2 may

          8  be in three different schools. Depending on the time

          9  of day.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. Level 2s,

         11  are they permanently assigned to schools, or are

         12  they part of a mobile, like roving team?

         13                 MR. FLOYD: Roving team.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Level 2?

         15                 MR. FLOYD: Yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: So, Level 1s are

         17  the ones --

         18                 MR. FLOYD: Assigned to the schools.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Even at the high

         20  school level?

         21                 MR. FLOYD: Yes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. So, at the

         23  high school level, and intermediate school level, as

         24  indicated by the NYPD, you have a supervisor and I

         25  assume that's a Level 3, along with a cadre --

                                                            212

          1  EDUCATION, PUBLIC SAFETY AND JUVENILE JUSTICE

          2                 MR. FLOYD: Of Level 1s.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Of Level 1s.

          4                 MR. FLOYD: And sometimes Level 2s

          5  temporarily.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Temporarily.

          7                 MR. FLOYD: Yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

          9                 Now, you had indicated in your

         10  testimony that, and I wrote down these words, these

         11  are my words and just summarizing I guess this part

         12  of your testimony, you said that there is confusion

         13  and there is conflict, and that many of the

         14  officers, the agents feel powerless, regarding

         15  whether or not they follow the direction of the

         16  principal or they follow the direction of NYPD. Can

         17  you cite a specific example of the confusing and

         18  conflict, so that I can get a real sense, so that we

         19  can get a real sense of the confusion and conflict?

         20                 MR. FLOYD: Well, here is one. A

         21  student comes in, brings a weapon into school. Now,

         22  the principal does not want that student arrested.

         23  Confiscate the weapon, let the student go to class.

         24  Now, you work for the New York City Police

         25  Department, you know if you catch somebody with a
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          2  weapon, you can't just confiscate the weapon, it's

          3  found property, and let the person go. There is a

          4  protocol followed, you have to take that person into

          5  custody.

          6                 Now, the principal will say, well,

          7  this is a good student, and, you know, we could let

          8  this slide. So, that's one of the examples of the

          9  conflict. And I'm not making that up. That happens.

         10                 Yesterday's incident, yes the

         11  principal didn't want the student arrested. No one

         12  wanted the student arrested; however, that student

         13  assaulted a School Safety Agent.

         14                 Now, I don't know if anybody here has

         15  had their hair pulled out. I wear mine short for

         16  that purpose. I don't want my hair pulled out. Now,

         17  my member is in pain. Now, I have not seen any

         18  sympathy for our member who was punched in the face.

         19  Now, I don't care what escalation of violence, once

         20  you put your hands on somebody, you physically

         21  assault somebody. You're subject to the punishment

         22  of the law.

         23                 Now, unfortunately the principal got

         24  involved and stood in front of the door and, you

         25  know, it just escalated from there.
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          2                 I would say, you know, the protocol,

          3  that person has to leave the school. Let the person

          4  leave. Anything else, if something was done wrong,

          5  we could deal with it later, but I just saw an

          6  escalation of violence that should not have been,

          7  from all sides. I see the principal blocking the

          8  door, what message do you send to students if you

          9  say, well, even if you assault them, I'm going to

         10  protect you? It comes to a point and they say, well,

         11  the School Safety Agents didn't have to arrest the

         12  student, but meanwhile our member is out of work

         13  now.

         14                 And I've got to call, there is where

         15  they feel unsupported. They're really feeling

         16  unsupported. And they really feel that there is no

         17  penalty, there is no incentive, there is no

         18  mechanism in place to deter students from either

         19  verbally abusing the School Safety Agents, or

         20  physically abusing them.

         21                 I remember when I was going to

         22  school, I had better not speak to any adult. I don't

         23  care if it was my neighbor, my friend's mother, a

         24  student or the teachers in the school, we were

         25  disciplined by everyone. That value system has gone
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          2  and I'm afraid it's not coming back.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Mr. Floyd, and I

          4  had asked each witness that came in front of us

          5  whether or not they could shed any additional light

          6  on the incident that occurred yesterday, and

          7  obviously you have shed some light on it. But let me

          8  just say that what I said earlier, right around my

          9  opening statement before the testimony of the

         10  witnesses, is that a student was arrested for

         11  assault, a principal was arrested from what I read

         12  in the papers, given a desk appearance, the School

         13  Safety Agent was hit in the face and sent to the

         14  hospital, and I understand that the principal and/or

         15  the student was hospitalized and maybe released. And

         16  I look at this, as the Chair of the Education

         17  Committee, as a mess, not only for the student, the

         18  principal, the School Safety, but for everyone.

         19                 And this hearing today is to try to

         20  bring about clarity, transparency, accountability,

         21  so that things do not get to where what happened

         22  yesterday.

         23                 Some people said to me, you know, it

         24  seems as though this happens right at the time where

         25  you're having this hearing. You couldn't ask for
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          2  anything better. I don't want any situation like

          3  that to occur, because now look at the School Safety

          4  Agent, may be out of work, and I think, to the best

          5  of my knowledge, they have to use their vacation

          6  time?

          7                 MR. FLOYD: They use their sick leave

          8  and then their vacation time.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Then their

         10  vacation time.

         11                 MR. FLOYD: Yes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And it's not

         13  reimbursed.

         14                 MR. FLOYD: That's right.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: You would have

         16  to file a worker's compensation claim; is that

         17  correct?

         18                 MR. FLOYD: Correct.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: In essence

         20  injured on the job.

         21                 MR. FLOYD: Yes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: The principal

         23  now has to go to whatever, and go to court and may

         24  face charges. The student and their family now has

         25  to face an assault charge.

                                                            217

          1  EDUCATION, PUBLIC SAFETY AND JUVENILE JUSTICE

          2                 MR. FLOYD: Right.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: It's crazy, in

          4  my opinion.

          5                 MR. FLOYD: Everyone loses.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: It's a lose/lose

          7  situation.

          8                 And I have said, and I know you will

          9  agree, that we need to have more mediation training,

         10  more conflict resolution, knowing how do diffuse

         11  situations among not only staff and teachers and

         12  administrators, but also for students, too? You

         13  would agree with that?

         14                 MR. FLOYD: Yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Because

         16  sometimes, and I don't know, I was not there, I did

         17  not witness, but I am not pleased as to what

         18  happened yesterday on everyone's account. Meaning

         19  that people were arrested.

         20                 And it seems as though the conflict

         21  between the principal, based on everything I read,

         22  was between whether or not the student will be

         23  walked through the main entrance, out the front

         24  door, where other students were I guess outside, in

         25  essence what I call a perp walk. And I just think
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          2  that we need to overall, and I hope that you're

          3  involved as the president of Teamsters Local 237, to

          4  try to resolve conflict so what we don't end up like

          5  this in similar situations before.

          6                 MR. FLOYD: May I just make this

          7  suggestion?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Sure.

          9                 MR. FLOYD: There was a group here

         10  that's not being funded. The group is Council for

         11  Unity. You can look them up on the website,

         12  Councilforunity.org. I'm working extensively with

         13  this group. This group, I'm telling you, could be

         14  the answer to some of our problems here, because

         15  they resolve conflict like you would not believe.

         16  I've gone to their sessions, I've taken time. I sat

         17  with them. I sit with the students, I sat with gang

         18  members. I've had Bloods on one side and Crips on

         19  the other side and they're getting along, their

         20  grades have improved. I mean, it's short of

         21  miraculous. This program needs to be funded. The UFT

         22  is involved. Their headquarters are located in the

         23  UFT's building. And I'm telling you, I'm not going

         24  to mention the name, but there was a Deputy Mayor

         25  who came to the event, who promised funding, who has
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          2  not come through with any funding. Every year at the

          3  end of the year this organization is begging for

          4  money.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Council for

          6  Unity.

          7                 MR. FLOYD: Council for Unity. I'm

          8  telling you, if we look into this and we get other

          9  groups involved, I think we may have the answer to

         10  some of our problems. If not some of them, most of

         11  them.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Let me conclude

         13  with one question, please.

         14                 MR. FLOYD: Yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And my staff has

         16  said, you know, we must take a break to have lunch

         17  because we're resuming at 3:30. So, they're like

         18  kicking me under the table.

         19                 MR. FLOYD: Okay.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: But I think that

         21  the questions, at least in my opinion, I needed to

         22  ask these questions of you, you know, separate and

         23  apart from NYPD and DOE. And this last question,

         24  before we conclude, is tell me, if you know, School

         25  Safety Agents in-service training after the 14 weeks
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          2  of Academy, how often do they receive in-service

          3  training from either, from NYPD? And if so, how

          4  often? If you have any idea.

          5                 MR. FLOYD: Most of the training,

          6  they're mandated to go to the training at least, at

          7  least once a year.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: At least once a

          9  year?

         10                 MR. FLOYD: Sometimes some agents,

         11  depending on if they ask for a vacation or they

         12  don't ask for a vacation, they could go four, five

         13  times a year, because, remember, when the schools

         14  are closed, the School Safety Agents must go to work

         15  or put in for time off, because they work for the

         16  New York City Police Department, not for the

         17  Department of Education, which normally gives them

         18  off.

         19                 So, because they're in a different, I

         20  would say payroll system, they're mandated to go to

         21  work. So, if some choose to put in for vacation

         22  time, they give them vacation time. If people don't

         23  have vacation time or choose not to put in for

         24  vacation time, they are sent to training.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: That's the
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          2  normal protocol?

          3                 MR. FLOYD: That's normal protocol.

          4                 Because I just want to a training

          5  session during the last holidays, in September.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Go ahead.

          7                 MR. FLOYD: Mid-September there was

          8  Yom Kipur, I believe. At Eastern District High

          9  School, or the Grant Street campus, there were 800

         10  School Safety Agents in there, in full uniform in

         11  the training session.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Because they

         13  were working that day?

         14                 MR. FLOYD: They were mandated for

         15  training on that day.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Mandated

         17  training.

         18                 MR. FLOYD: Mandated training. Not

         19  just that borough, each borough. So what they do,

         20  when the school close, they bring them into

         21  auditorium, and they have them sign in and they

         22  train them.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Is that NYPD, or

         24  NYPD and DOE?

         25                 MR. FLOYD: NYPD.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Do you know, the

          3  last training that you attended, I think it was in

          4  Brooklyn, what was the subject for that training for

          5  that particular date?

          6                 MR. FLOYD: Well, I just went for the

          7  beginning. They let me address the agents. I don't

          8  know the subject matter.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         10                 MR. FLOYD: But if you request the

         11  subject matter, I'm sure they would give it to you,

         12  because they have the records of the subject matter.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Right.

         14                 MR. FLOYD: And I know they train

         15  them. They train them --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: So like

         17  summertime when most schools are closed, especially

         18  the high schools, because that's where a majority of

         19  your -- I would assume the majority, since you've

         20  got to have teams, are people sent to training? What

         21  happens during the summertime?

         22                 MR. FLOYD: The summertime they're

         23  sent to the locations that are open.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Right.

         25                 MR. FLOYD: And also a lot of School
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          2  Safety Agents take vacation time.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Vacation.

          4                 So, in essence you're saying

          5  in-service --

          6                 MR. FLOYD: But before school opens,

          7  they have a mandatory training session.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Before school

          9  opens in the summertime.

         10                 MR. FLOYD: Before school opens to go

         11  over some procedures.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And that's every

         13  year?

         14                 MR. FLOYD: Every year.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         16                 We've been joined by our colleague

         17  Lew Fidler from Brooklyn, and Hiram Monserrate from

         18  Queens.

         19                 Any questions? I'm sorry.

         20                 Well, President Floyd, let me just

         21  thank you for coming in and shedding light on behalf

         22  of Teamsters Local 237 and all of the members that

         23  you represent. And you have heard testimony here

         24  today, not testimony, but School Safety Agents

         25  mistakingly being called security guards and what
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          2  have you and so forth. But we know they're not

          3  security guards and their main responsibility is for

          4  safety in the schools. But let me thank you on

          5  behalf of the three Committees --

          6                 MR. FLOYD: And thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: -- Education,

          8  Public Safety and Juvenile Justice.

          9                 MR. FLOYD: Juvenile Justice. Thank

         10  you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         12                 Our hearing will continue at 3:30

         13  this afternoon here in the Chambers. So, this

         14  meeting is recessed until 3:30 p.m.

         15                 (Recess taken.)

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Good afternoon.

         17  This is a continuation of this morning's hearing on

         18  School Safety with the Committees on Education,

         19  Public Safety and Juvenile Justice. Let me

         20  apologize, it's 15 minutes after when we were

         21  supposed to start, and I know some of you got here

         22  before 3:30 in order to be ready for 3:30. So, I

         23  apologize for starting a little late.

         24                 I would like to acknowledge my

         25  colleagues that are present this afternoon. To my
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          2  left is Lew Fidler from Brooklyn, and Helen Diane

          3  Foster of the Bronx.

          4                 With that, we would like to call the

          5  first witnesses. Nancy Ginsburg, the Legal Aid

          6  Society, Juvenile Rights Practice. Christian, who is

          7  the Director for Juvenile Justice Project at

          8  Advocates for Children. And Elizabeth Sullivan, from

          9  the National Economic and Social Rights Initiative.

         10                 Please, everyone that comes to

         11  testify, we ask you, if you have testimony to

         12  submit, please submit your testimony to the

         13  Sergeant-At-Arms desk, near the opening of the

         14  committee room. And we ask you not to read your

         15  testimony, not unless you want to, unless it's under

         16  three minutes. We will ask everyone to summarize

         17  their comments for three minutes, so you will see

         18  the clock was set for three minutes, and if, in

         19  fact, you have more to say, at the most an

         20  additional minute will be given.

         21                 So, with that I believe I called

         22  Nancy Ginsburg first.

         23                 Why don't we do this: why don't we

         24  introduce ourselves for the record on the mic. and

         25  the positions you're with. Then we can begin with
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          2  your testimony. Why don't all three introduce

          3  yourself.

          4                 MS. GINSBURG: Nancy Ginsburg, from

          5  the Legal Aid Society.

          6                 MR. TAN: Christopher Tan from

          7  Advocates for Children.

          8                 MS. SULLIVAN: Elizabeth Sullivan,

          9  from the National Economic and Social Rights

         10  Initiative.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. Nancy, now

         12  you may begin.

         13                 MS. GINSBURG: I have submitted

         14  written testimony, and I thank you for not asking me

         15  to read it. I would just like to comment on many of

         16  the comments that were made this morning.

         17                 We at the Legal Aid Society, both in

         18  Family Court and in Criminal and Supreme Court, have

         19  seen a number of incidents over the years that the

         20  NYPD has been in charge of School Safety, where

         21  incidents that did not start as criminal incidents

         22  were escalated to the point of criminality.

         23                 I think that Mr. Logan earlier talked

         24  about an over-escalation of incidents and I think

         25  that that is probably the best way to summarize the
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          2  greatest problem with School Safety right now.

          3                 I'm very, very concerned about the

          4  DOE's characterization that the NYPD takes over at

          5  the moment a crime is committed. You could probably,

          6  if you applied the penal law to school behavior, to

          7  behavior of children in school, you could probably

          8  find probable cause to make an arrest every 20

          9  minutes in any given school.

         10                 Every time a child kicks someone,

         11  pushes someone, takes a book from someone, takes a

         12  hat from someone, those are all crimes. And

         13  essentially the DOE came to this hearing and

         14  announced publicly that they have abdicated

         15  responsibility for teaching discipline in our

         16  schools.

         17                 The Legal Aid Society, and I believe

         18  all of the advocates, find that statement to be very

         19  alarming.

         20                 Part of education is learning how to

         21  exist in a social environment, how to get along with

         22  others, how to modify your behavior, so that you can

         23  work in society. And if we are simply going to

         24  handcuff our children and cart them away, it is a

         25  very sad statement for New York City.
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          2                 I would note that the indication by

          3  DOE that we have transition services for students

          4  returning to school after an arrest or a detention

          5  was news to me.

          6                 If those services exist, we have not

          7  seen our clients receive those services. The

          8  guidance counselors are completely overwhelmed in

          9  the schools, and as far as we have seen, our clients

         10  do not receive any transition services upon their

         11  return from detention or an arrest.

         12                 We have also seen a number of

         13  incidents concerning special ed classified students,

         14  children with mental health issues, children with

         15  emotional disabilities, school security knows

         16  nothing about these disabilities. They are treated

         17  the same as every other child. There is no

         18  consultation when those children have issues with

         19  school staff, and although the DOE has a continuum

         20  of services, which is available for these students,

         21  unfortunately that continuum is often not addressed

         22  until a lawyer or an advocate is assigned to that

         23  child.

         24                 We would suggest that the City

         25  Council pressure the Department of Education to
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          2  change the trigger from when a crime is committed to

          3  what needs or how to serve the needs of the children

          4  in our school. Because if it is just going to be a

          5  probable cause standard, then we are never going to

          6  appropriately meet the needs of our students. We

          7  will not ensure a safe environment and we will not

          8  meet the needs of the kids who are having trouble

          9  and causing problems.

         10                 We would suggest that perhaps a

         11  suggestion is made that a panel or a commission is

         12  convened with mental health experts and experts in

         13  adolescent development, and experts who understand

         14  substance abuse, and abuse and neglect, who can make

         15  recommendations to both the DOE and NYPD in how to

         16  intervene with children who have social problems who

         17  can train on these issues and who can help these

         18  children get the help that they really need so that

         19  the schools actually are safer.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you. Thank

         21  you.

         22                 Next is Christian. What is your last

         23  name, Christian?

         24                 MR. TAN: Christopher Tan.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Christopher Tan,
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          2  okay. Advocates for Children.

          3                 MR. TAN: Yes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

          5                 Go ahead.

          6                 MR. TAN: My name is Christopher Tan.

          7  I am Director of the Juvenile Justice Project at

          8  Advocates for Children.

          9                 My testimony will focus on three main

         10  areas. First I'm going to provide an overview of

         11  ways that court-involved youth have been denied

         12  appropriate educational services that often

         13  contribute to behavior incidents and arrests at

         14  school.

         15                 Next I will describe problems we have

         16  encountered with the schools which most often send

         17  students to juvenile detention or jail, with the

         18  focus on District 75 schools.

         19                 Lastly, I will highlight concerns of

         20  inappropriate school placements for students

         21  returning from incarceration.

         22                 According to the New York City DJJ,

         23  up to 40 percent of youth in detention have a

         24  special education classification, which is almost

         25  three times the Citywide rate.
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          2                 OCFS has reported that 50 percent of

          3  youth in their facilities require special education

          4  services, and about two-thirds of these youth were

          5  not identified as having special education needs

          6  until they were actually at the facilities.

          7                 The DOE is failing thousands of

          8  students with special needs, and for far too many,

          9  these failures are contributing to eventual

         10  incarceration.

         11                 In some cases, students with a

         12  history of behavior issues or learning disabilities

         13  must wait months for school placements or are

         14  illegally discharged after they are registered.

         15                 In other cases students with

         16  psychological and psychiatric problems wait many

         17  months before the conditions they have been

         18  suffering, or even many years, are finally

         19  diagnosed.

         20                 Once diagnosed, many students do not

         21  receive behavior intervention plans, mandated

         22  evaluation updates, or other critical special

         23  education services. And then when a student

         24  subsequently acts out, school staff may suspend the

         25  student and SSAs or Police Officers may arrest the
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          2  student without any investigation or consideration

          3  of whether the behavior was related to his or her

          4  disability.

          5                 Youth are also being incarcerated in

          6  large numbers, from certain schools in particular,

          7  and many of these schools are in District 75

          8  schools.

          9                 The data on page five of this

         10  testimony indicates three of the ten schools

         11  discharging in the largest number of students to DJJ

         12  detention or Rikers Island are District 75 schools.

         13  Furthermore, 12 of the 27 schools in New York State

         14  identified in August 2007 by the New York State

         15  Education Department, as persistently dangerous

         16  under the No Child Left Behind Act are District 75

         17  schools.

         18                 District 75 is a Citywide Special

         19  Education District, and it serves an estimated

         20  23,000 students each year. Approximately half, if

         21  not more of the students in District 75 programs,

         22  are classified as emotionally disturbed, and are

         23  placed in those settings because of behavioral

         24  issues.

         25                 Too often it appears that behavior
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          2  management is the primary concern and that attention

          3  to learning disabilities or positive behavioral

          4  supports fall by the wayside.

          5                 Far too many court-involved youth are

          6  also being placed in inappropriate school placements

          7  upon their return from juvenile detention or

          8  placement.

          9                 Many youth with learning disabilities

         10  are only offered schools that have been identified

         11  as failing under NCLB. Other youth are sent back to

         12  schools where the incident that led to the

         13  incarceration occurred, or where instigators attend.

         14                 Students who are struggling with

         15  psychological and behavior issues are also often

         16  assigned to schools that have been identified by

         17  NYSED as persistently dangerous.

         18                 Youth in all these situations may

         19  feel they have no choice to attend the school, even

         20  if there is a significant risk of behavior incidents

         21  occurring.

         22                 Our schools need a more expansive and

         23  realistic conception of school safety, beyond just

         24  reflexively resorting to punitive measures.

         25                 We must consider ways in which
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          2  schools are failing our students and how that

          3  contributes to safety incidents.

          4                 Schools must address the

          5  ineffectiveness of their behavior support practices,

          6  and the lack of substantive appropriate education

          7  provided to the young people in their care. Too many

          8  of the schools that are supposed to be able to

          9  provide the most appropriate behavior support to

         10  students with learning disabilities and emotional

         11  disturbances, are instead restoring to behavior

         12  management, via incarceration. Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         14                 Next we have Elizabeth Sullivan.

         15  National Economic and Social Rights Initiative.

         16                 MS. SULLIVAN: Thank you. I'm the

         17  Education Project Director at NESRI, and earlier

         18  this year we released a report called "Deprived of

         19  Dignity, Degrading Treatment and Abusive Discipline

         20  in New York City Schools.

         21                 We interviewed over 40 students,

         22  parents and teachers in about 20 New York City

         23  Middle and High Schools about school discipline and

         24  safety policies and asked them how it impacts their

         25  education and how they are treated in schools. And
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          2  we heard from students that the presence of police

          3  and Safety Agents, especially in large numbers in

          4  the Impact Schools, creates a hostile environment,

          5  that police and Safety Agents are inappropriately

          6  involved in disciplinary matters that should be

          7  dealt with by school staff. Students we interviewed

          8  had been harassed, handcuffed, patted down and in

          9  some cases arrested for shouting in hallways, being

         10  late to school or class, talking back to a safety

         11  employee. These behaviors, while inappropriate,

         12  often reflect typical adolescent reactions,

         13  especially in the context of overcrowded and

         14  under-resourced schools where there is a

         15  criminalized environment. And they should be dealt

         16  with by school staff, not as criminal behavior.

         17                 Even when students are involved in

         18  fights or altercations, in most cases these

         19  behaviors should not be treated as crimes. Children

         20  and adolescents have not developed the behavioral

         21  skills and conflict resolution skills. The role of

         22  the school should be to help students develop

         23  constructive ways of addressing conflict, not to

         24  criminalize them and remove them from school.

         25                 Students themselves told us in
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          2  interviews that without counseling or mediations to

          3  go along with suspensions or arrests or other

          4  classroom removals, nothing is done to address the

          5  problems that cause misbehavior.

          6                 We thank the City Council for calling

          7  this hearing and urge you to help ensure that there

          8  is great oversight and accountability for the role

          9  that safety agents and police play in schools when

         10  it is appropriate for them to get involved and not

         11  involved.

         12                 Currently, the Discipline Code

         13  doesn't talk about this at all. But we also need to

         14  go much further than just looking at how safety

         15  agents and police officers should behave in schools,

         16  shifting the entire way we think about discipline

         17  and safety in schools.

         18                 Discipline should be a part of the

         19  educational goals of schools. It should not be

         20  separate from that. Discipline should be about

         21  ensuring the right to education, and dignity and

         22  respect in schools.

         23                 Basic human rights require that

         24  school policies not cause mental or physical harm or

         25  humiliation to young people, and that adolescents
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          2  and children are not criminalized.

          3                 School policy should be aimed at the

          4  full development of each child's abilities and

          5  potential, including the teaching of behavioral

          6  skills and conflict resolution, and above all,

          7  discipline must not jeopardize the right to

          8  education.

          9                 In other cities around the country,

         10  like Chicago and Los Angeles, the second largest

         11  school districts after New York City. School

         12  officials have started to embrace these more

         13  positive approaches to discipline.

         14                 In February of this year, the Los

         15  Angeles unified school district passed a school-wide

         16  positive behavior support policy for the entire

         17  district, aimed at moving away from disciplinary

         18  procedures that focus on punishment and towards

         19  early intervention. This system called PBIS, the

         20  goal is to decrease suspensions by establishing a

         21  preventive system geared towards establishing a

         22  positive school climate.

         23                 Behavioral expectations are defined

         24  together in the school community and taught to

         25  students actively in the classroom.
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          2                 The staff are trained to acknowledge

          3  positive behavior so often young people only get

          4  attention in the schools when they misbehave, to

          5  talk with students about the reasons for why they

          6  misbehaved, and identify positive solutions

          7  together.

          8                 This same system has been implemented

          9  in districts in Louisiana, Florida, and other parts

         10  of the country with very positive results for

         11  reducing suspensions. In a district in Louisiana,

         12  they also worked actively with the school and

         13  juvenile justice system to come up with creative

         14  solutions together when police are involved.

         15                 In New York City there are positive

         16  mediation programs, conflict resolution programs,

         17  restorative justice programs going on in individual

         18  schools, but we're behind in taking this to the

         19  district level.

         20                 These policies should be at the heart

         21  of how we approach discipline, not an add-on or an

         22  after thought, the way they are right now in our

         23  discipline code where we have suspensions and

         24  punishments listed as the primary response, and

         25  these other alternative methods as, you know,
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          2  choices that staff may or may not take under

          3  consideration. They should be the central focus of

          4  our discipline policies and I hope the City Council

          5  will urge the Department of Education to start

          6  moving in that direction.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, let me

          9  thank you all for coming in and giving testimony on

         10  behalf of your respective organizations.

         11                 We have been additionally joined this

         12  afternoon by my colleague to my right, Maria del

         13  Carmen Arroyo, and Erik Martin Dilan from Brooklyn,

         14  sitting next to Council Member Lew Fidler.

         15                 Let me turn the mic. over to Council

         16  Member Fidler.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Thank you, Mr.

         18  Chairman.

         19                 The Youth Services, Juvenile Justice

         20  and Criminal Justice Committees had a rather

         21  interesting hearing on alternatives to detention

         22  last week, and Mr. Tan, I'm particularly interested

         23  in having read your testimony, you know, to ask you

         24  a couple of questions along those lines. You know,

         25  it's clear that what you're suggesting is that some
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          2  of the ATD services that are provided to young

          3  people after they are arrested, ought to be provided

          4  to those same students before they are arrested or

          5  as an alternative to their being arrested.

          6                 And you know, there is a push and

          7  pull here for sure between providing a safe learning

          8  environment for students and teachers and

          9  administrators, and not discarding young people who

         10  have disciplinary issues. Certainly ones that don't

         11  rise to the level of physical assault or more.

         12                 I'm interested in the portion of your

         13  testimony that deals with young people being placed

         14  after they have been through the criminal justice

         15  system, back into schools. Who makes the

         16  determination as to what school someone who has

         17  perhaps been in detention is being returned to the

         18  system, who makes that determination?

         19                 MR. TAN: Our understanding is that

         20  the Office of Student Enrollment and Planning

         21  Operations or SEPO, are responsible for making those

         22  placement decisions.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: And do you

         24  know of any regulatory, you know, process by which

         25  those decisions are supposed to be made or
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          2  guidelines of any kind?

          3                 MR. TAN: I mean, when we bring

          4  students to enrollment centers, we definitely make

          5  sure that the placement officers are aware of the

          6  different concerns we think are important for what

          7  is an appropriate placement. But that has no

          8  guarantee that students have been offered placements

          9  that are appropriate. And students with special

         10  education needs do have rights under the Federal

         11  Special Education Laws to an appropriate educational

         12  program.

         13                 So if the placement that is offered

         14  to them is not appropriate, then there are times

         15  when we will take cases to impartial hearings to --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I understand

         17  that. That's not really where I'm driving.

         18                 I'm kind of, you know, the kid went

         19  to Tilden High School and was arrested at Tilden

         20  High School, went through the system. Is there a

         21  presumption the child is going to be returned to

         22  Tilden High School?

         23                 MR. TAN: The response that a lot of

         24  students get is that this is your zoned school, and

         25  this is the only school that you're going to get.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I didn't think

          3  we had zoned schools anymore.

          4                 MR. TAN: Right. Well, that was the

          5  response that we've gotten for dozens and dozens of

          6  students.

          7                 At this point students are still

          8  being told this is the only school that's available

          9  to you in your neighborhood.

         10                 If you're asking about specific

         11  regulations for students who are not in special

         12  education, and their right to appropriate school

         13  placements, that's definitely something that we can

         14  research and provide more information to you.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Well, you

         16  know, you put a chart at the end of your testimony

         17  that talks about what schools are receiving --

         18  students, and you made the allegation in your

         19  testimony that, you know, kids are being assigned to

         20  failing schools disproportionately. And I see a

         21  couple of schools on here that I know DOE is

         22  closing, and I kind of have a theory and I've

         23  addressed this with the Chancellor, that once DOE

         24  decides they want a school to close, they make sure

         25  it fails. And I'm just kind of curious as to the
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          2  process by which these statistics come -- you know,

          3  is there a correlation, or is it an accident? Or are

          4  they sending kids to schools that they know are

          5  failing because they want them to close?

          6                 I'm kind of interested in the

          7  process, and if you can look at your data and look

          8  at it in terms of how many kids are not being

          9  returned to the school from whence they came, but

         10  are being sent to a school that within a year or

         11  year and a half DOE announced they were closing?

         12                 I think that would be an

         13  extraordinarily constructive thing, because it's not

         14  only unfair to the students. It's unfair to the

         15  schools, it's disingenuous on the part of DOE.

         16                 MR. TAN: That's definitely an

         17  interesting point that we will look into.

         18                 For students coming back through

         19  various times in the year, various points of the

         20  school year, they are often told that these are the

         21  only schools that there are still spots for them.

         22  These are the least desirable schools often, and

         23  students don't have much of a choice. And so these

         24  are the only schools that are often presented to

         25  them.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: That could be

          3  DOE's excuse for it, but I'm not familiar with all

          4  of the high schools on your list, particularly the

          5  ones that are not in my part of Brooklyn. But I know

          6  that there seems to be some correlation on this

          7  list. Obviously, if they're closing the school, they

          8  are claiming they are closing it because people

          9  don't want to go there and haven't applied. So,

         10  maybe it's innocent, maybe it's not, but either way

         11  it's certainly a guarantee that the student that is

         12  being placed is not going to get the, you know, the

         13  help, the extra help, forget about the ordinary help

         14  that they need, and it's almost a guarantee that the

         15  school will eventually fail and be closed. So, there

         16  is something invidious going on here and I'm very

         17  interested in knowing what you find and would

         18  appreciate it if you do get this research done, that

         19  you get it to me as soon as you can.

         20                 MR. TAN: Absolutely. It's definitely

         21  a concern for us that so many of the schools were

         22  not offering the students the services that they

         23  needed before they were incarcerated, and then they

         24  end up being the same schools that the students are

         25  forced to return to when they come back.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: We've been

          3  joined by our colleague Simcha Felder, to my right

          4  from Brooklyn. Any other questions from my

          5  colleagues?

          6                 Let me just ask a question. I don't

          7  know if you were sitting through the testimony this

          8  morning, any of you, and heard the testimony of NYPD

          9  and DOE, and obviously you had Teamsters Local 237

         10  present, and Ernest Logan from CSA, do you have any

         11  comments on any of the testimonies that took place

         12  this morning, whether or not  it contradicts

         13  something that you know, and/or do you have any

         14  insight, additional insight or comments concerning

         15  the arrest and injuries yesterday?

         16                 Just identify yourself for the record

         17  before you speak.

         18                 MS. GINSBURG: Nancy Ginsburg, from

         19  the Legal Aid Society. I think what the testimony

         20  this morning really showed is that there is a very

         21  big gap between the top brass from the two agencies

         22  and the people on the ground. Both Mr. Logan and the

         23  union representative --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Mr. Floyd.

         25                 MS. GINSBURG: Mr. Floyd, thank you.

                                                            246

          1  EDUCATION, PUBLIC SAFETY AND JUVENILE JUSTICE

          2  Indicated that they both felt that the system was

          3  not working when the top people from the DOE and the

          4  NYPD tried very hard to ensure everyone that it's

          5  working just fine.

          6                 I think it is really true, we have

          7  seen this over and over again, that the school

          8  personnel, when we go into the schools, both the

          9  Administration and the teachers often say to us that

         10  they feel that they have no control over discipline

         11  and school safety and that they are supposed to

         12  defer to the NYPD. That is not what we heard this

         13  morning.

         14                 I think that there is a problem with

         15  information flow, from the top down to the ground,

         16  and I think that is a problem, as was noted by a

         17  number of the Council members, it took quite some

         18  time for the DOE and the NYPD to inform us this

         19  morning as to what their actual policy was as to who

         20  has control when incidents occur, and there were

         21  many conflicts in what they testified to

         22  individually this morning. And it is true that you

         23  can only imagine how difficult it is to make

         24  decisions on the ground when a conflict is actually

         25  occurring, if the people who have the responsibility
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          2  were making, creating the protocol and the policies

          3  have not set them out, either in writing, and

          4  perhaps have not set them out in their own minds, as

          5  became clear this morning.

          6                 As far as what happened yesterday in

          7  the high school, we're all relying on the facts the

          8  same as you are, but I would have to say that based

          9  on our experience, that is not an unusual scenario

         10  where a student shows up at a school and makes a

         11  request, and a school security agent tells them that

         12  they cannot do what they wanted to do. There is

         13  usually some verbal altercation, which turns into

         14  the School Security Agent putting their hands on the

         15  student in some way, either escorting them out or

         16  trying to restrain them and then the student either

         17  fights back or pushes or hits and that is what I was

         18  referring to earlier when I said an over-escalation

         19  of incidents, that many of these incidents, if the

         20  students were not yelled at, if they did not feel

         21  verbally assaulted, may not have resorted to

         22  physical means, but because they are young and they

         23  are not -- they don't know how to handle conflict,

         24  that's what happens. And then they end up, many of

         25  the schools have indicated to us that they were
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          2  completely shocked to find out that these kids were

          3  put through the system, meaning they were

          4  incarcerated, after they are arrested out of school.

          5  And that they never intended for that to happen.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Who said that to

          7  you? The principals you said?

          8                 MS. GINSBURG: Principals, deans.

          9  Deans in charge of safety, assistant principals.

         10  Primarily in the schools that do not have many

         11  safety problems, the schools on this list that are

         12  constantly in the suspension offices, they are much

         13  more aware what happens. But in a small high school,

         14  like in that high school yesterday, or in any number

         15  of small high schools or the competitive high

         16  schools where incidents do occur, and we show up to

         17  do an investigation, to get records for the

         18  suspension, we tell the school personnel that that

         19  child, particularly older kids who are 16 and older

         20  are put through the adult system. They are taken to

         21  the precinct. They spend 24 hours through central

         22  booking and the pens in Criminal Court. They are

         23  shocked. They indicate they never wanted that to

         24  happen. They want to know why that happened, and we

         25  have to explain to them, that when the NYPD gets
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          2  involved, they do what they do, and that is the

          3  inherent conflict in this relationship, is that

          4  there is a public safety organization, there is a

          5  law enforcement agency that is housed in an agency

          6  that has a completely different mission, and there

          7  is an obvious conflict, despite what we heard this

          8  morning, and that it must be resolved, and the

          9  school personnel must have some input as to what

         10  happens to their own students. They must.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Do you have any

         12  statistics? Does the Legal Aid Society represent a

         13  majority of the students arrested in the schools? Or

         14  do they have private attorneys? And/or what numbers,

         15  if you have any statistics, that you represent on a

         16  yearly basis?

         17                 MS. GINSBURG: Well, we are the

         18  primary defender and we do, we are required to

         19  represent 88 percent of the individuals who go

         20  through the Criminal Court system. The problem is,

         21  is that we do not have access to the actual numbers

         22  of students who are arrested. They may not be

         23  prosecuted by the individual District Attorneys'

         24  Office. And, so, if a District Attorney's office

         25  declines to prosecute a case, we do not have access
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          2  to those numbers.

          3                 It's very difficult for us to keep

          4  track of all of the cases that come from schools

          5  because it is not indicated on the complaint. So,

          6  it's very -- it doesn't say on a complaint that this

          7  is a school incident, and the school is not listed

          8  on the complaint.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Yes, but you can

         10  do your own internal tracking; is that correct?

         11  Since you have the juvenile rights practice, which

         12  deals with -- the juvenile is up to what age?

         13                 MS. GINSBURG: Well, we have two

         14  practices. We have a division that represents

         15  children in Family Court.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Right.

         17                 MS. GINSBURG: And then we have an

         18  adult division which handles all of the adolescents

         19  from 16 on up.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. So, when

         21  you're talking about arrests, you're talking about

         22  what age then? Because children can be arrested --

         23                 MS. GINSBURG: They can be prosecuted

         24  from age seven.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Eight or nine.
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          2                 MS. GINSBURG: Seven.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Seven.

          4                 MS. GINSBURG: Under the Family Court

          5  Act.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. But you

          7  don't have any stats that you can give us at this

          8  point in time?

          9                 MS. GINSBURG: Given our caseloads and

         10  given our staffing, it would be very, very difficult

         11  for us to track.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         13                 MS. GINSBURG: We would be happy to

         14  accept additional funding to try to track this

         15  information, but it is very hard to track that kind

         16  of information in individual cases.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         18                 Okay, thank you. Anyone else?

         19                 Were you here today for the

         20  testimony?

         21                 MS. SULLIVAN: I was here for most of

         22  it, I missed some of the beginning. But I did have

         23  one comment based on what people had said earlier

         24  today. I think there were a couple of different

         25  people who testified about policies that exist at
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          2  metal detectors for searching of students, for the

          3  need for a school representative to be present, if

          4  students are removed to a separate room to be

          5  searched.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Not even when

          7  they were moved to a separate room, talking about

          8  even just the normal scanning.

          9                 MS. SULLIVAN: Yes.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Whether it's you

         11  know, the machines or portable, they said school

         12  personnel is always present.

         13                 MS. SULLIVAN: Right.

         14                 Of students that we interviewed for

         15  our report, there were two who described incidents

         16  when they went through a metal detector, set off the

         17  detector and one had been suspected of possibly

         18  being involved in an altercation the day before, and

         19  she told us that she was removed by a Safety Agent

         20  to a separate room and searched without notifying

         21  any school personnel and no school personnel was

         22  present. And I mean, that's one case, there was no

         23  formal investigation into it, but if you look at

         24  reports that have come from us, New York Civil

         25  Liberties Union, several other groups, you hear this
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          2  kind of activity goes on a lot, and so the policies

          3  and procedures that are supposedly in place are not

          4  followed. And I think it goes back to what Nancy

          5  talked about, and what was clear this morning, that

          6  accountability is not there, in terms of who is in

          7  charge of setting out these policies and enforcing

          8  them.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: As an advocacy

         10  group, when that information comes to you, a student

         11  has been searched without a school personnel

         12  present, do you file a complaint?

         13                 MS. SULLIVAN: We don't have the

         14  resources to do that. We will try to recommend them

         15  to contact the fewer organizations that exist in the

         16  City --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Do you recommend

         18  to the student that they should file a complaint?

         19                 MS. SULLIVAN: Yes. We give them the

         20  option. I mean, we tell them about how to do it, but

         21  we don't have the resources to help individual

         22  students go through the process.

         23                 But otherwise, without contacting a

         24  group like one of us, most people don't even know

         25  how or if you can file a complaint.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

          3                 Well, let me thank all of you for

          4  coming in and representing your respective

          5  organizations. Thank you.

          6                 Jonathan Clark, Aviation High School,

          7  and Adolfo Peralta, IS 291. Are they here?

          8                 Just for the record, would you just

          9  identify yourselves and the schools or grades you're

         10  affiliated with, please. Can you speak into the

         11  mic.?

         12                 Press the button, please.

         13                 MR. PERALTA: My name is Adolfo

         14  Peralta, and I'm here for my son Adolfo Peralta, Jr.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. Is

         16  Jonathan Clark present? Not at this time, okay. And

         17  your name is Adolfo Peralta?

         18                 MR. PERALTA: Yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And your son's

         20  name is?

         21                 MR. PERALTA: The same.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Jr.

         23                 MR. PERALTA: Yes, Jr.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         25                 Adolfo Peralta, Jr., welcome. And you
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          2  attend IS 291. And where is that located? What

          3  borough?

          4                 ADOLFO PERALTA JR.: Brooklyn.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. Can you

          6  push the mic. down a little bit and bring it a

          7  little closer?

          8                 That's located in Brooklyn.

          9                 ADOLFO PERALTA JR.: Yes.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Is that mic. on?

         11  Yes.

         12                 Okay, we will hear your testimony.

         13  So, please, you may begin.

         14                 ADOLFO PERALTA JR.: Hi. My name is

         15  Adolfo Peralta. On March 30th, 2007, I became a

         16  victim. I was pushed and punched on my nose by a 300

         17  pound School Safety Agent for cutting class in the

         18  hallway. That Friday afternoon, I was charged with

         19  assaulting a School Safety Agent, because I tried to

         20  defend myself by hitting him back.

         21                 I was arrested and sent to Spofford

         22  Jail for the weekend, where I was treated like a

         23  criminal. My whole summer was ruined due to this

         24  situation. After seven months, all my charges were

         25  dismissed by the court of all. After all, I am not
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          2  guilty for defending myself. I always felt that the

          3  School Safety Agents are there for our safety and

          4  not to harm or bully us. Now that I am in a new

          5  school, I feel better that I don't have to face this

          6  bully every day. Safety Agents like him should be

          7  not working for the Department of Education. Next

          8  time it can be worse with another kid like me. Thank

          9  you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, let me ask

         11  you a couple of questions.

         12                 When did this incident take place?

         13                 ADOLFO PERALTA JR.: March 30th, 2007.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: March 30th,

         15  2007.

         16                 And that was at, what school was that

         17  at?

         18                 ADOLFO PERALTA JR.: IS 291.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I'm sorry. Can

         20  you describe how that occurred again? You were doing

         21  what?

         22                 ADOLFO PERALTA JR.: I was cutting

         23  class in the hallway.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: That's

         25  intermediate school, correct?
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          2                 ADOLFO PERALTA JR.: Yes.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And you were in

          4  the hallway. Where were you at?

          5                 ADOLFO PERALTA JR.: On the second

          6  floor.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Tell us what

          8  happened.

          9                 ADOLFO PERALTA JR.: I was walking in

         10  the hall, looking for my friend's ipod, coming from

         11  a classtrip around 2:30, and I came into a complex,

         12  I came out, and the school officer agent, Edmond

         13  Watts came and pushed me and asked me where's my ID.

         14  I gave it to him.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: He pushed you

         16  first?

         17                 ADOLFO PERALTA JR.: Yes, into the

         18  wall.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: He did not ask

         20  you first, young man, come here, what are you doing?

         21  Let me see your ID?

         22                 ADOLFO PERALTA JR.: No.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Go ahead.

         24                 ADOLFO PERALTA JR.: He asked me for

         25  my ID. I gave it to him, and he told me to go to the
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          2  other security guards, where there was three other

          3  security guards, and then after I went, they took us

          4  to the third floor to the dean's office, and then

          5  the dean wasn't there. I was talking, so he started

          6  screaming at me, telling me to shut up and stuff. So

          7  I got mad and told him don't tell me to shut up and

          8  then he --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: He was screaming

         10  at you?

         11                 ADOLFO PERALTA JR.: Yes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And he was

         13  telling you to shut up?

         14                 ADOLFO PERALTA JR.: Yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Not keep quiet?

         16                 ADOLFO PERALTA JR.: Yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: So not keep

         18  quiet but shut up?

         19                 ADOLFO PERALTA JR.: Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Were you annoyed

         21  at the fact that he was telling you, coming at you

         22  telling you to shut up?

         23                 ADOLFO PERALTA JR.: Yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Why were you

         25  annoyed?

                                                            259

          1  EDUCATION, PUBLIC SAFETY AND JUVENILE JUSTICE

          2                 ADOLFO PERALTA JR.: Because he kept

          3  on screaming in my face and stuff and I got mad.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Screaming in

          5  your face?

          6                 ADOLFO PERALTA JR.: Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: How close was he

          8  to your face?

          9                 ADOLFO PERALTA JR.: Three feet.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And you

         11  described this person, is this the person you

         12  described as 300 pounds?

         13                 ADOLFO PERALTA JR.: Yes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Do you know how

         15  tall, give or take, that individual was?

         16                 ADOLFO PERALTA JR.: 5'4" I think. I'm

         17  not sure.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Not very tall

         19  but big.

         20                 ADOLFO PERALTA JR.: Yes.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Go ahead. Were

         22  other people present in the office at that time?

         23                 ADOLFO PERALTA JR.: No.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: It was just you

         25  and that individual?
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          2                 ADOLFO PERALTA JR.: Oh, no. It was

          3  three other security guards and two other students.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. Go ahead.

          5  Continue.

          6                 ADOLFO PERALTA JR.: So, when I got to

          7  the third floor the dean wasn't there, so they told

          8  us to go to the main security office. So, when we

          9  were walking I was talking, so he got mad and he

         10  told me "Don't you understand to shut up?" So, I got

         11  mad and I told him "Don't tell me to shut up." And

         12  that's when he said, "Oh, what you going to do?" And

         13  that's when I said, "You'll see." And that's when he

         14  stopped and he said -- no, first he said, "Don't

         15  stop walking. Go ahead, keep walking." So, I said

         16  "What you gonna do?" So, he said, "Oh, you'll see.

         17  You'll see. Just keep walking." So we got to the

         18  lockers, to the corner, he pushed me against the

         19  locker -- no, he told me, "Go ahead, touch me. Go

         20  ahead, touch me. I dare you. Push me," and stuff, so

         21  I went up to him, I pushed him, so he pushed me

         22  against the locker.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Did he push you

         24  first? Is that what he did?

         25                 ADOLFO PERALTA JR.: Yes, into the
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          2  lockers, and then that's when I pushed him, and then

          3  the other security guards grabbed my right arm and

          4  put a handcuff -- no, it was my left hand, they put

          5  a handcuff behind my back and I had one arm left,

          6  and then the security guard strike me in my chest.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: He did what?

          8                 ADOLFO PERALTA JR.: He strike me in

          9  the chest once.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: With his open

         11  hand or with his fist?

         12                 ADOLFO PERALTA JR.: With his fist.

         13                 And then after that they had my other

         14  arm, so I swung at him, and then when he put on the

         15  handcuffs, he swung at my nose.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And did he hit

         17  you?

         18                 ADOLFO PERALTA JR.: Yes. And I

         19  started bleeding, and there was blood on my shirt.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And were there

         21  witnesses to this incident?

         22                 ADOLFO PERALTA JR.: Yes, two other

         23  students. And many other, and other students were

         24  there. They came out the class.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And so you were
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          2  incarcerated. You were handcuffed and you were

          3  charged with a crime?

          4                 ADOLFO PERALTA JR.: Assaulting.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Assault.

          6                 ADOLFO PERALTA JR.: Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And you spent

          8  the weekend at the --

          9                 ADOLFO PERALTA JR.: At Spofford.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And then seven

         11  months later all of the charges were dropped?

         12                 ADOLFO PERALTA JR.: Yes.

         13                 MR. PERALTA: He went to trial.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: It went -- speak

         15  into the other mic., if you don't mind.

         16                 This is Adolfo Peralta Sr., and your

         17  son is Jr.

         18                 MR. PERALTA: Yes, I'm his father.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Go ahead.

         20                 MR. PERALTA: We went to trial. We

         21  took it to trial. The trial lasted seven months. A

         22  couple of weeks ago it was dismissed.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: So, you went to

         24  trial at a jury trial?

         25                 MR. PERALTA: Family Court.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Oh, Family

          3  Court.

          4                 MR. PERALTA: He's under age.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: So a judge

          6  basically hears the trial; is that correct?

          7                 MR. PERALTA: Yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And it was

          9  dismissed.

         10                 MR. PERALTA: It was dismissed.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Were you here at

         12  the testimony earlier by NYPD and the Department of

         13  Education?

         14                 MR. PERALTA: No, I wasn't here.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Did you as a

         16  parent file a complaint against the School Safety

         17  Agent?

         18                 MR. PERALTA: We tried a few things,

         19  because what happened was when I got there, he was

         20  being treated like he was an adult. They really

         21  didn't want to talk to me. They were just saying

         22  that we're processing, that we're going to take him

         23  to --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And how old was

         25  your son at that time?
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          2                 MR. PERALTA: He was 12 years old.

          3  When I got to the precinct, we wanted to file a

          4  complaint, they didn't want to hear us. They don't

          5  want to hear us.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: You wanted to

          7  file a complaint against whom?

          8                 MR. PERALTA: The security guard.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And they did not

         10  want to hear it?

         11                 MR. PERALTA: No.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: What police

         13  precinct was that?

         14                 MR. PERALTA: 83rd.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: In Brooklyn?

         16                 MR. PERALTA: Brooklyn. Bushwick.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         18                 MR. PERALTA: When I got to the school

         19  there was a whole bunch of cop cars and ambulance,

         20  my son is bleeding. His shirt was full of blood.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Who contacted

         22  you? How did you know about this altercation?

         23                 MR. PERALTA: The Director of Security

         24  at school.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Called you?
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          2                 MR. PERALTA: Yes. Told me to go to

          3  the school, that there was an altercation with my

          4  son.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And how long did

          6  it take you to get to that school?

          7                 MR. PERALTA: I was at work. It took

          8  me about a half hour.

          9                 When I got there, I'm trying to find

         10  out what's going on and they said, well, your son is

         11  being charged with assaulting a peace officer. And I

         12  said, "What happened?" So, they kind of basically

         13  told me that my son hit the officer. So, I was in

         14  shock but I thought I have to accept it. I figured I

         15  have to accept it as true.

         16                 At the moment I didn't know what was

         17  going on. They didn't let me talk to him because

         18  they wanted to process him first. They wanted to

         19  take him in a police car by himself to the precinct.

         20  They told me to go over there, he'll be there. When

         21  I get there, they don't want to talk. They said they

         22  have to fingerprint him. They've got to find out if

         23  he was arrested. We spoke to a whole bunch of cops

         24  there. We spoke to a sergeant, but nobody really

         25  wanted to help us out. They were just saying we have
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          2  to wait.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Young man, when

          4  you were escorted, you were taken to the police

          5  precinct, Adolfo?

          6                 ADOLFO PERALTA JR.: Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Were in in

          8  handcuffs?

          9                 ADOLFO PERALTA JR.: Yes.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And who was in

         11  the car with you?

         12                 ADOLFO PERALTA JR.: A security guard

         13  in the back and one officer in the front.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         15                 Did anyone from the school, as far as

         16  school administration, a dean, or anyone else,

         17  escort you?

         18                 ADOLFO PERALTA JR.: No.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Because help me,

         20  my understanding is there is a Department of

         21  Education teacher, principal, assistant principal,

         22  dean at the precinct, at the time you went to the

         23  precinct?

         24                 ADOLFO PERALTA JR.: No.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: We were told
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          2  that their policy is that when a youth is taken from

          3  the school to the precinct, that youth is escorted

          4  directly to the precinct by a DOE official, not a

          5  School Safety Officer or Police Officer, but by

          6  someone of the school administration. If not, when

          7  they're escorted directly by the police, that they

          8  must immediately go to the precinct and stay with

          9  that youth until a certain point in time. They did

         10  not?

         11                 MR. PERALTA: There was no one there.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: You, the parent,

         13  you were there at the time they were taking him from

         14  the school to the precinct? From the time you

         15  arrived there?

         16                 MR. PERALTA: Yes. When I got to the

         17  school they briefly told me what happened. He

         18  already had his handcuffs, he was bleeding and they

         19  just grabbed him and threw him in the car and they

         20  said meet us over there. And when I got there they

         21  didn't want to talk to me.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: So, you had no

         23  access to your son?

         24                 MR. PERALTA: No. I had to wait for

         25  like two hours until they did all their little
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          2  research and took the fingerprints and then I went

          3  and spoke to him for five minutes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And did you

          5  subsequently, any time after that incident, file a

          6  complaint with NYPD, with IAB, Internal Affairs

          7  Bureau?

          8                 MR. PERALTA: My wife, she filed a

          9  complaint. I'm sorry she couldn't be here, but she

         10  filed a complaint and they said that they will get

         11  back to her. They did get back to her. They said

         12  they were going to look into the matter, but they

         13  never called back, they never sent any letters. We

         14  were just worrying about the trial. We was going

         15  back and forth to court.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And do you know

         17  the current status of it, of the complaint that your

         18  wife filed?

         19                 MR. PERALTA: I really don't know the

         20  current status. I was worrying about him, trying to

         21  get him out of this whole mess, by going back and

         22  forth to court.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And are you back

         24  in the same school, young man?

         25                 ADOLFO PERALTA JR.: No.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Where are you

          3  attending school now?

          4                 ADOLFO PERALTA JR.: IS 384.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. Is that

          6  the school you immediately went to after this

          7  incident? Or did you go back to the same school, IS

          8  291.

          9                 ADOLFO PERALTA JR.: I went back for

         10  one month and then the next year, this year, at the

         11  beginning of the year I went to IS 384.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And at whose

         13  request was that, at your parents' request or the

         14  Department of Education.

         15                 ADOLFO PERALTA JR.: My parents'

         16  request.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: So, overall, let

         18  me just summarize. You said that you were basically

         19  cutting class, but you were, you felt that you were

         20  defending yourself because of, I guess the, these

         21  are my words and not yours, the verbal abuse that

         22  you were receiving from the School Safety Officer

         23  and the School Safety Officer shoving you?

         24                 ADOLFO PERALTA JR.: Yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. Well, let
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          2  me just say that I'm glad that you appear to be

          3  okay. I'm glad that you're okay, even though I'm

          4  sure that you were traumatized by this whole

          5  situation. And let me ask a question, and you don't

          6  have to answer it. You can ask your father, if you

          7  want to. I'm just curious as to dad, whether or not

          8  your son has ever been arrested before, but you

          9  don't have to answer that, if --

         10                 MR. PERALTA: I couldn't probably say

         11  my son has never been in trouble. He doesn't hang

         12  out in the street and he's never been locked up.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         14                 MR. PERALTA: I found it strange when

         15  this incident happened.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         17                 Well, let me thank you both for

         18  coming in and sharing from your perspective as a

         19  student an incident that happened with you, and his

         20  father for coming in, giving testimony on this.

         21                 Let me now turn to, this is Jonathan

         22  Clark? Jonathan, I understand that you are a student

         23  at Aviation High School.

         24                 MR. CLARK: Yes. Currently I'm a

         25  senior at Aviation High School.

                                                            271

          1  EDUCATION, PUBLIC SAFETY AND JUVENILE JUSTICE

          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

          3                 MR. CLARK: I'm the president of

          4  Honors Society.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: The president of

          6  Honors Society at Aviation. Okay. Well, you may

          7  begin your testimony. You have three minutes and

          8  then you can wrap up.

          9                 MR. CLARK: Okay. Well, the roaming

         10  metal detectors arrived at our school on October the

         11  24th, 2006, and when I was arriving in school, I

         12  noticed the police presence, there were dozens of

         13  vans and cruisers all around the school and School

         14  Safety Agents and police officers roaming around,

         15  but nobody knew what was going on and at first it

         16  was very frightening because nobody told us until we

         17  walked up and realized that it was the metal

         18  detectors, and it seemed like a whole lot of

         19  activity just for a metal detector. And as I walked

         20  to school, it was pretty demoralizing because for

         21  the first time ever I saw my principal distraught

         22  about something. And at first I didn't realize what,

         23  and then as I got closer, I saw the way kids were

         24  being treated in the fact that we were being yelled

         25  at for bringing water bottles in and having them
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          2  thrown out upon entering the school doors. And then

          3  as we walked further, they had the metal detectors

          4  and I asked the procedure and I was yelled at for

          5  holding up the line, just because I asked. There was

          6  no explanation or anything. There was no

          7  organization. And then after I got through the metal

          8  detector, I walked in. You walked in, put your bag

          9  on the metal detector, the scanner, walked through

         10  the metal detector and you were sent to a table

         11  where an officer, either police or school safety,

         12  depending on which table, went through your entire

         13  bookbag. And as they looked through everything, my

         14  folders, my papers, they tried to confiscate my

         15  drawing supplies, and my six-inch ruler, which is

         16  determined a hazard to society, and were confiscated

         17  from certain students, which are required tools for

         18  the study that we have at Aviation. And on top of

         19  that, it happened to be ROTC uniform day on that

         20  Tuesday, and as the students walked in with their

         21  uniforms on, they were told that they had to remove

         22  all the ribbons and the pins that they, themselves,

         23  earned in the program. And it wasn't until they

         24  fought with it and went up to the principal, who was

         25  then able to finally stand up and say after about 20

                                                            273

          1  EDUCATION, PUBLIC SAFETY AND JUVENILE JUSTICE

          2  minutes, that, no, they didn't have to do that

          3  because they got graded on this, and not only that,

          4  it's something they earned. It's an honor that they

          5  have to wear this.

          6                 And then to make matters worse, a lot

          7  of the students felt they were being treated

          8  unfairly, and we were. One girl, it was her

          9  birthday, and they confiscated her cupcakes that she

         10  brought in, because you're not supposed to bring in

         11  food to school. Students that brought in lunch for

         12  lab class, as they don't attend lunch that day,

         13  their food was confiscated because you're not

         14  supposed to bring it in. You get free lunch, that's

         15  what we were told by the Safety Agents and the

         16  Police Officers that day. And at the same time,

         17  there were certain teachers that were in that

         18  entrance and had to go through the experience and

         19  they're standing there and watching this, and the

         20  students are looking to them for support and the

         21  teachers can't do anything because the police

         22  override the teachers and the principal.

         23                 So, a lot of the students, on top of

         24  everything else, now lost some faith in the school,

         25  and every other day there is such morale and
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          2  happiness and the principal's door is totally open

          3  and that day was the exact opposite of anything we

          4  usually experience.

          5                 And it wasn't just that we felt we

          6  weren't being treated fairly by the officers, but

          7  the fact that in Aviation High School, you're

          8  required, you need 1,900 hours of shop to graduate

          9  roughly, and be certified as an aircraft mechanic.

         10  That morning certain students didn't get to class

         11  until almost fourth period, because the line of

         12  students was so long it went down the street and

         13  wrapped around the corner.

         14                 And as a junior and a senior, you

         15  have four periods of shop. If you don't come in til

         16  fourth period and you have a.m. shop, you just

         17  missed your shop for the day. In a junior class, if

         18  you miss two days of shop, every 20 days, you're

         19  failing the entire half of the year. So now the

         20  students have to make up this time because this

         21  policy is in place, and on top of which now their

         22  whole career at Aviation is jeopardized because of

         23  this. It doesn't make sense to me. They're taking

         24  our equipment and they're keeping us out of class,

         25  but they're helping us supposedly.

                                                            275

          1  EDUCATION, PUBLIC SAFETY AND JUVENILE JUSTICE

          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Council Member

          3  Fidler.

          4                 And we've been joined by Council

          5  Member Gale Brewer, to my left.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Thank you, Mr.

          7  Chairman. I have a question for the gentleman from

          8  Aviation. And first I want to say, I'm heartened to

          9  hear that on most days you find the atmosphere at

         10  Aviation to be so positive, and you know,

         11  principal's door open and all that, that's always

         12  nice to hear, but I just want to know, do you carry

         13  a cell phone?

         14                 MR. CLARK: Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: And on random

         16  detection day, did you have your cell phone?

         17                 MR. CLARK: I had my cell phone but I

         18  left it with a friend on the way to school. Because

         19  I'm in the robotics team, and from January to

         20  February I'm in school until 9:00 p.m. at night.

         21  Carrying the cell phone is a necessity, because I

         22  take public transportation sometimes until 10:00 at

         23  night every day of the week.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Well, you're

         25  preaching to the choir on that one. So, you gave it
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          2  to someone because you saw the random detection?

          3                 MR. CLARK: Yes.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: What would you

          5  have done had you not had the opportunity to leave

          6  it with somebody?

          7                 MR. CLARK: It would have been

          8  confiscated and I would have went to the main office

          9  and tried to contact my mom to say, listen, I don't

         10  have my phone today.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: And then you

         12  would have had to go home at 10:00 at night without

         13  a cell phone for your own safety.

         14                 MR. CLARK: On that day we didn't have

         15  a robotics meeting, but I had another meeting. I

         16  don't know when I would have gotten home.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Did you

         18  observe what happened to other young people with

         19  cell phones that day?

         20                 MR. CLARK: Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Could you tell

         22  me?

         23                 MR. CLARK: Well, they walked through,

         24  the phone was confiscated. You waited on the line

         25  which was almost as long as the people getting
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          2  through the metal detector. They filled out a form

          3  with their name and it was put in a plastic bag.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: And when did

          5  they get them back?

          6                 MR. CLARK: Your parent had to come to

          7  school on a Friday between certain hours, and

          8  thankfully, it was parent/teacher conferences at the

          9  end of that week. But students who had school

         10  supplies like our scales and the triangles and the

         11  drawing equipment, those were not returned to the

         12  staff of Aviation High School to be returned to

         13  students. They were deemed hazards to society.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: No. You know,

         15  this Council has taken a very clear position on cell

         16  phones that is contrary to the DOE position, and

         17  your testimony today, you know, is exactly

         18  consistent with what we've been saying.

         19                 So, in the infinite wisdom of the

         20  school safety officers and the DOE policy, students

         21  missed class, so that their cell phones could be

         22  confiscated, so they wouldn't have them ostensibly

         23  to disrupt the classes that they were deprived the

         24  right to go to. It is just incredibly, incredibly

         25  ridiculous. And I appreciate your testimony. I just
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          2  wonder how many people were inconvenienced that day,

          3  how many students missed periods of class, maybe lab

          4  class, how many parents were inconvenienced by

          5  having to come and get that phone, how many hours of

          6  administrative expense were wasted on taking that

          7  terrible, terrible cell phone away that would have

          8  not disrupted your class had you been able to get

          9  there.

         10                 I thank you for your testimony. It

         11  just amazes me every time.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Now, you say

         13  that the school, your school equipment you use in

         14  your classes were taken away and deemed what?

         15                 MR. CLARK: A "hazard to society."

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Is that your

         17  terminology?

         18                 MR. CLARK: No, that's what we were

         19  told.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: By whom?

         21                 MR. CLARK: The School Safety Agents,

         22  and when we inquired about it.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. And you

         24  said that cell phones were returned, parents had to

         25  pick them up at the end of the week, and that the
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          2  equipment, school equipment that you need for your

          3  classes were not.

          4                 Did the principal or others

          5  communicate to the school safety agents, to police

          6  officers --

          7                 MR. CLARK: Yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: That, excuse me,

          9  these are not weapons, these are tools that they

         10  need in class?

         11                 MR. CLARK: Yes, but not at first.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         13                 MR. CLARK: See, I got to school at

         14  7:00 in the morning.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         16                 MR. CLARK: So, by the time they found

         17  out, say almost 100 six-inch rulers were

         18  confiscated.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. And then

         20  thereafter they were not?

         21                 MR. CLARK: Thereafter they were not.

         22  But there are still 100 students that don't have

         23  their --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: We had been told

         25  here earlier this morning, or this afternoon, that
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          2  the principal, assistant principal or some other

          3  administrator person from the Department of

          4  Education is always present at scanning. So, at 7:00

          5  in the morning, if you remember, or when you went,

          6  who was there, the assistant principal, or

          7  principal?

          8                 MR. CLARK: They were but there was a

          9  lot of things going on. He was dealing with the ROTC

         10  officers and those issues.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Because they

         12  wanted to remove the --

         13                 MR. CLARK: The pins and the ribbons,

         14  yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         16                 MR. CLARK: They were dealing with,

         17  one of my friends is on the Year Book Committee. He

         18  has a pass that says he's allowed to carry a camera.

         19  It was confiscated anyway.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: A camera.

         21                 MR. CLARK: A camera.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And food. You

         23  were saying food was confiscated.

         24                 MR. CLARK: Yes. Because we're given

         25  free food in school, that's what we were told by the

                                                            281

          1  EDUCATION, PUBLIC SAFETY AND JUVENILE JUSTICE

          2  safety agents.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, no, every

          4  individual is not given free food, depending on

          5  whether or not you're eligible for free food.

          6                 MR. CLARK: Right. But that's what

          7  they said to us, and they confiscated breakfasts and

          8  the kids that bring lunch because they have lab that

          9  afternoon.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Do you know

         11  whether or not your principal filed a complaint

         12  against what occurred?

         13                 MR. CLARK: I'm honestly not sure what

         14  steps she took. Although I do know she has been

         15  following up, as far as she can --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And has there

         17  been another time where they have had the roving

         18  metal detectors at your school?

         19                 MR. CLARK: No. That was the only

         20  time.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Any other

         22  questions?

         23                 Well, let me thank you, both

         24  students, for coming in and giving testimony, which

         25  clearly needs to be investigated and I just hope
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          2  that things work out overall with respects to how

          3  you are treated, and some clarity as far as what is

          4  confiscated and what is not. Because I just don't

          5  see how food is a danger to the safety of a school.

          6  And I guess I'm going to inquire, I guess I'm going

          7  to inquire whether or not food is one of the things

          8  that are confiscated when they have these roving

          9  metal detectors.

         10                 So, thank you all for coming in.

         11                 Chelsea Fraser. Chelsea, is she here?

         12  A student? Okay. And Diane Silva. And Joseph A.

         13  Maria, Esquire, representing C. Fraser and D. Silva.

         14  Representing the two girls, the attorney.

         15                 MR. MARIA: I don't really intend to

         16  say anything.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay, fine.

         18                 MR. MARIA: It's their testimony.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Come on.

         20                 MR. MARIA: If you have a question,

         21  I'll be happy to answer it.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Absolutely. Come

         23  on.

         24                 So, who do you want to go first?

         25                 MR. MARIA: Chelsea, please.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay, Chelsea.

          3  Would you just identify yourself for the record and

          4  tell us what school you attend now, if any, and what

          5  school you were attending when an incident occurred

          6  with you. And then we will hear for identification

          7  purposes from Diane and then for identification

          8  purposes from the attorney, okay?

          9                 MR. MARIA: Thank you.

         10                 MS. FRASER: My name is --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Can you press

         12  the button, please, and pull the mic. up closer to

         13  you.

         14                 MS. FRASER: My name is Chelsea

         15  Fraser. I go to New Uttrecht High School, and the

         16  incident took place in Dyker Heights Intermediate

         17  School.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And when was

         19  that?

         20                 MS. FRASER: That was March 30th,

         21  2007.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. Okay, and

         23  let's hear for identification purposes the next

         24  witness.

         25                 MS. SILVA: I'm Diana Silva. I'm
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          2  Chelsea Fraser's mother.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: You're her mom,

          4  okay.

          5                 And?

          6                 MR. MARIA: My name is Joseph Maria,

          7  301 Tarrytown Road, White Plains, New York. And I am

          8  the attorney for both of the witnesses here today.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. And who is

         10  going to give testimony?

         11                 MR. MARIA: Chelsea.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Chelsea, okay.

         13  All right, Chelsea.

         14                 MS. FRASER: Hi. My name is Chelsea

         15  Fraser. My birthday is June 8th, 1993, and on March

         16  30th, 2007 I was arrested for writing "okay" on a

         17  desk.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: You were

         19  arrested for writing what?

         20                 MS. FRASER: O-k-a-y.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: One second. Can

         22  you please turn up the volume a little bit more. If

         23  you don't mind. Okay, thank you.

         24                 Go ahead, Chelsea.

         25                 MS. FRASER: It all began two days
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          2  before, March 28th, in my school, when my class had

          3  a substitute teacher for social studies in Room 411.

          4  Our sub happened to be my homeroom teacher, who

          5  everyone adores, but because our homeroom teacher

          6  was there, we basically had a free period. So,

          7  everyone could talk and catch up with homework, or

          8  whatever they needed to do.

          9                 While everyone was talking, some of

         10  my classmates were writing on desks, or putting

         11  stickers on the walls. So, I went over and I was

         12  just kidding but I wrote okay on one of the desks

         13  around where they were writing.

         14                 Later on that day when I got home

         15  from school, I was thinking about writing on the

         16  desk. I told my mom, and I told her I think I might

         17  get into some trouble. She told me that maybe you'll

         18  get in trouble, probably scrub the desk or get some

         19  detention. She grounded me and sent me to my room

         20  for the night. And the next day, March 29th, I

         21  wasn't feeling so well and I broke out in hives so I

         22  stayed home and when I was home my friend e-mailed

         23  me saying that the dean and the assistant principal,

         24  they came to our class and they were asking about

         25  writing on the desks, and so she told me about that.
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          2  I told my mom again that they found out that kids

          3  were writing on the desks and I might get in

          4  trouble. So, on Friday, March 30th, the day I got

          5  arrested, I came in school really worried, so I went

          6  to my homeroom teacher and I asked her what had

          7  happened and she said that she didn't know more than

          8  I did, but she suggested that I go tell one of the

          9  deans.

         10                 So, I went to the dean's office --

         11  no, the guidance office, and I told her that I was

         12  one of the kids that wrote on the desk. So, I

         13  confessed. So, she showed me pictures and she asked

         14  me if I wrote any of them. I pointed out which ones

         15  I wrote. And she had me sit in a room with a lot of

         16  kids, a lot of the kids that wrote on the desk, and

         17  so after I asked, like, what was happening, what

         18  might happen to us, they said that, two of them said

         19  that they knew they were getting arrested and the

         20  other one said that he didn't know.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: You asked that

         22  of whom? Students?

         23                 MS. FRASER: Yes, students that were

         24  there in the room with me that was writing on the

         25  desks.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And they said,

          3  two of them said to you that they knew they were

          4  going to get arrested?

          5                 MS. FRASER: Yes, because they had a

          6  prior record.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: For writing on

          8  the desk?

          9                 MS. FRASER: For graffiti.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay, go ahead.

         11                 MS. FRASER: So, one of the other kids

         12  didn't know, so after I talked to them, I called my

         13  mom and I told her that two of them were getting

         14  arrested and that, again, I really think I was

         15  getting arrested. She said that I can't get arrested

         16  for writing on the desk, and, you know, she just

         17  told me not to worry about it.

         18                 So, after I talked to her, the dean

         19  came back into the guidance office. She asked me to

         20  go up to her office so that she could discuss

         21  writing on the desk and notifying my parents.

         22                 So, while I was up there, she was

         23  just talking on the phone about the other kids, to

         24  the police officers, the principal. So, I asked her

         25  if I could go to the bathroom, and I didn't go to
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          2  the bathroom, I went to the room that I wrote on the

          3  desk, and that homeroom teacher, I told him that I

          4  was sorry I wrote on the desk, I would scrub the

          5  desk, and, you know, that if he wanted me to be put

          6  in detention, that he could do that, I wouldn't have

          7  like, you know, I don't care, because I did wrong.

          8  So --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Go ahead.

         10                 MS. FRASER: So, after that, my mom

         11  came up. She told -- the dean talked to my mom and

         12  they put us back into the guidance room with parents

         13  and kids for about four hours. Then she took us --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: This is all

         15  during the school day?

         16                 MS. FRASER: Yes, it was during the

         17  school day.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay, go ahead.

         19                 MS. FRASER: And the police officers

         20  talked to us. They told us, you know, what was going

         21  to happen to us. So, after that, they handcuffed us.

         22  They told us --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: What did the

         24  police officers say to you what was going to happen

         25  to you?
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          2                 MS. FRASER: They said that we would

          3  be handcuffed, we would be processed they told us.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: For what? What

          5  did he say you were being arrested for?

          6                 MS. FRASER: They didn't really give

          7  us a charge.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Was your mother

          9  there at that time?

         10                 MS. FRASER: Yes, she was with me at

         11  that time.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. Go ahead,

         13  please.

         14                 MS. FRASER: So, after that they

         15  walked us downstairs into the police cars.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And you were

         17  handcuffed?

         18                 MS. FRASER: Yes. And there was kids

         19  up against the windows trying to see what was

         20  happening.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Supposedly from

         22  the best of your knowledge you were arrested for

         23  writing on the desks in school?

         24                 MS. FRASER: Yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay, go ahead.
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          2                 MS. FRASER: So, after that we were

          3  taken to the police precinct. Our parents were asked

          4  if they had any transportation for us. And they told

          5  them if they didn't have a way to get there, they

          6  would like take us in the police car. And then we

          7  got out of the car. They didn't walk us. My mom

          8  walked me. So, they just told us to go into the

          9  precincts, go up to the desk and tell what happened.

         10                 So, my mom walked me in in handcuffs

         11  still.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Your mom walked

         13  you into the precinct?

         14                 MS. FRASER: Yes. Out of the squad

         15  car, and still with handcuffs, and they separated

         16  the parents from the kids, the kids were put in the

         17  waiting room and the parents put in -- oh, no,

         18  sorry. The kids were put in the holding room, the

         19  parents were put in the waiting room.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         21                 MS. FRASER: And in there we were

         22  handcuffed to a pole for three hours with them

         23  asking us questions, and they took pictures of us,

         24  and as often police officers were walking by, they

         25  called us names. They called us like stupid for
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          2  getting arrested. When they were kids they wouldn't

          3  have gotten caught.

          4                 So, after that my mom picked me up.

          5  She signed me out. And she asked them if I had been

          6  there the whole time and she said yes, and then she

          7  signed me out and we left.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: What did they

          9  actually charge you with? Are you aware of what they

         10  charged you with?

         11                 MS. FRASER: No. They told us that

         12  they were sending us to court and they would tell us

         13  the charges there.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Really?

         15                 MS. FRASER: Yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. Let me

         17  hear from your mom.

         18                 Did you want to say something, Mom?

         19  And you are Chelsea Fraser's mother and your name is

         20  Diane Silva; is that correct?

         21                 MS. SILVA: Yes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. Did you

         23  want to say something in addition to what your

         24  daughter said? What did they arrest your daughter

         25  for?
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          2                 MS. SILVA: They didn't tell me.

          3  Actually, they didn't tell me until we got to the

          4  Family Court Division Juvenile Center -- Juvenile

          5  Division Center.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: You mean, the

          7  day that your daughter was arrested, was she

          8  arrested?

          9                 MS. SILVA: Yes, she was.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And she was

         11  taken to the precinct; is that correct?

         12                 MS. SILVA: Yes, that is correct.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And your

         14  daughter said that they took her picture?

         15                 MS. SILVA: Yes, they did. A Polaroid.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Did they

         17  fingerprint her also?

         18                 MS. SILVA: No, they didn't.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: So they took a

         20  Polaroid photograph of her. And did you ask why was

         21  she arrested?

         22                 MS. SILVA: Yes. And the officer that

         23  was attending the children, there was three and her,

         24  she told me that I would find out when I got to

         25  Family Court.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And when was

          3  that? That was the same day?

          4                 MS. SILVA: We went to Family Court on

          5  Tuesday, April 3rd.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And when was

          7  your daughter arrested?

          8                 MS. SILVA: March 30th.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: So, at the time

         10  of the arrest, or a day or two later, you didn't

         11  know what the charge against your daughter was?

         12                 MS. SILVA: Well, I found out

         13  actually, I found out after I did an interview with

         14  CBS News, and actually the news found out what my

         15  daughter was charged for. I didn't know until I

         16  heard it on the news.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And was that

         18  true, what they said to you whatever your daughter

         19  was charged with, was that what she was charged

         20  with?

         21                 What was she charged?

         22                 MS. SILVA: She was charged with

         23  criminal mischief and vandalism, I believe. But it

         24  changes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: What do you mean
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          2  it changes?

          3                 MR. MARIA: I can tell you because I

          4  have the pleadings in front of me. She was charged

          5  with a misdemeanor, criminal mischief in the fourth

          6  degree, penal law 145.00, and count two, a

          7  misdemeanor, making graffiti. And it was based upon

          8  one statement from a custodian in the school who

          9  said on March 28th, "I observed the word 'okay',

         10  o-k-a-y, written on a desk in room 411 located at

         11  the above address."

         12                 So, those were the charges, and

         13  that's what it was based upon.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Ms. Silva or to

         15  your daughter, Ms. Fraser, how many students were

         16  arrested for writing on the desk, if you know?

         17                 MS. SILVA: I'm not sure, but with my

         18  daughter, three other boys.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Three other

         20  boys.

         21                 MS. SILVA: Yes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Now, in the

         23  school, public school, when my kids went to school,

         24  PSIS 187 in Washington Heights, if someone was

         25  caught writing graffiti on the wall, they were
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          2  punished. They were punished and they had to scrub

          3  walls after school in order to be punished because

          4  they were caught doing something inappropriate,

          5  writing graffiti on the wall.

          6                 MS. SILVA: Absolutely. I agree with

          7  that discipline.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: But I've never

          9  heard --

         10                 MR. MARIA: Just for the record, in

         11  this particular case, she not only had to go to

         12  school, got two days of detention and scrubbed the

         13  desk, in addition she had the criminal charges

         14  pressed against her, which required Family Court

         15  intervention and finally we got the charges

         16  dismissed on an ACD.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: On an ACD,

         18  conditional discharge.

         19                 MR. MARIA: Yes. Until December of

         20  this year, and then it will be dismissed. And we

         21  also had to pay restitution for $45 in the Family

         22  Court for the desktop.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Now, I heard --

         24                 MR. MARIA: And there was other

         25  writing on the desktop, not just her "okay." There
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          2  was a lot of other writing.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Right. I heard

          4  DOE officials said when it comes to non-criminal

          5  matters, that they are responsible for the school,

          6  but once a crime occurs, and my colleagues were

          7  questioning at what point in time does a crime

          8  occur, when you're talking about someone brings a

          9  gun in the school or a knife in the school, you

         10  know, versus, you know, having a fight and an

         11  altercation in the school, I don't really consider

         12  that a crime, and he said it depends on whether or

         13  not someone is injured, or injured could be a

         14  bruised shoulder, a bloody nose, a bloody mouth, but

         15  there was lack of clarity as to when a crime is

         16  committed, because they basically said that once a

         17  crime is committed, the School Safety Agents and

         18  Police Department, they basically have control of

         19  the environment.

         20                 Did the principal at all say to

         21  arrest the student, arrest your daughter?

         22                 MS. SILVA: The principal? I never saw

         23  the principal. I saw the principal walk in, she

         24  asked who we were, and then she asked what we were

         25  doing there. And she walked out of the room. That's
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          2  as much as I saw of the principal.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: So basically

          4  your daughter was either in the guidance counselor's

          5  office or assistant principal's office or in the

          6  precinct locked up to a pole or with handcuffs for

          7  over three hours, all day, concerning an incident of

          8  writing "okay" on a desk.

          9                 MS. SILVA: That is correct, sir.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Which I would

         11  think that most everyone would say that's an

         12  administrative matter and not an NYPD matter.

         13                 MS. SILVA: I agree with you.

         14                 Any questions from my colleagues?

         15                 My colleague Simcha Felder or

         16  Brooklyn.

         17                 MR. MARIA: Just to add one more

         18  comment, there was a letter sent to this family on

         19  April 12th of 2007, requesting a principal's meeting

         20  for March 30th, 2007.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Wait a minute.

         22  There was a letter sent to the family dated April

         23  4th --

         24                 MR. MARIA: April 12th.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: 12th,
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          2  requesting?

          3                 MR. MARIA: A meeting with the mom.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Come to the

          5  principal's office to meet with her on March 30th.

          6                 MR. MARIA: March 30th.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Which is like

          8  two weeks prior.

          9                 MR. MARIA: Right. In other words, the

         10  letter was sent two weeks after the alleged meeting.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And dated two

         12  weeks after.

         13                 MR. MARIA: And postmarked also.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Did they respond

         15  to that in any matter, shape or form? I'm talking

         16  about the Department of Education.

         17                 MR. MARIA: Diane -- no, they didn't.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Because I would

         19  be embarrassed, you know, if I sent a letter two

         20  weeks later saying come to a meeting two weeks

         21  earlier when it's postmarked two weeks later.

         22                 MR. MARIA: And there was also some

         23  letters sent to the Chancellor that were never

         24  answered in this case. Long before I was involved in

         25  this.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Never answered?

          3                 MS. SILVA: Never answered.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: My colleague

          5  Simcha Felder of Brooklyn.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Thank you very

          7  much, Mr. Chairman.

          8                 I don't think anyone would deny the

          9  need for security or some form of security in the

         10  schools, but as is evident from some of the

         11  witnesses that have come this afternoon, especially

         12  the last witness, based on the story that you told,

         13  I probably would still be in jail, after some of the

         14  things that I did in school for many, many

         15  lifetimes, over and over. I just don't get it. And

         16  when the Chair said he was embarrassed, I think

         17  that's the right word. I don't understand.

         18                 And even if the school made a

         19  mistake, which is possible, if somebody made a

         20  mistake, but after all this time, if at some point

         21  shortly thereafter they would have said, well, you

         22  know, there were four students, three had records of

         23  let's say things that were done that were of a

         24  greater nature than what you've described, and you

         25  got caught into it, fine. But I don't understand it.
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          2  I really don't understand what's going on, and I

          3  just -- you know, I'm looking at you, I have -- I

          4  should say, I always say I when it's good, I say I,

          5  when it's bad I say we. I bring my wife into the

          6  picture. But I was going to say, one of our children

          7  is 14 years old, and I'm looking at you and I'm

          8  thinking to myself that I am positive that my 14

          9  year old is doing a lot more mischief than you are.

         10  I hope so, because I hope she takes after me. But,

         11  you know, "okay" on the desk just doesn't go with

         12  me, I don't get it. And I feel in a way sad and

         13  angry at the same time about what you've gone

         14  through, and I think my colleagues would feel the

         15  same. And I'm hoping that with some help, that

         16  you'll get some justice, because once you will get

         17  justice, I hope you will feel better about the very

         18  misfortunate incident.

         19                 MS. SILVA: I just want to add that my

         20  daughter is not a discipline problem. Never has

         21  been. She has been president of her class, she has

         22  been captain of the volleyball team, she is CPR

         23  certified, she is not on the streets. She goes to

         24  camp every summer. She is a great all-around kid.

         25  And for this to happen to her, is just -- I just
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          2  need to understand. This has no common sense, this

          3  has no direction, and this is a complete

          4  misappropriation of knowledge.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Council Member

          7  Lew Fidler of Brooklyn has some questions.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Thanks. And

          9  I'll direct this to any one of the three of you who

         10  would know the answer, because the Chairman alluded

         11  to it, but I'm kind of curious as to anyone who

         12  knows who made the decision to file a criminal

         13  charge, as opposed to go through the ordinary

         14  disciplinary process. Was this a decision made at

         15  the request of the school by the principal, or was

         16  this, you know, wholly in the hands of school

         17  safety?

         18                 MS. SILVA: This was made by the

         19  principal.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: So this was

         21  not --

         22                 MR. MARIA: I think that's right. The

         23  paperwork in the Family Court had most affidavits

         24  from the janitors and people like that. I'm sure

         25  they didn't bring it, so it has originated out of
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          2  the principal's office, would be my imagination.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: So, this

          4  wouldn't be an example of School Safety Officers out

          5  of control. This would be the decision of the

          6  principal in New Uttrecht.

          7                 Now --

          8                 MS. SILVA: It wasn't New Uttrecht, it

          9  was Dyker Heights High School.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I'm sorry.

         11  Dyker Heights Junior High School. I don't mean to

         12  impugn New Uttrecht.

         13                 I seem to remember reading about this

         14  in the paper, and I don't believe everything that I

         15  read in the paper, but had there been a significant

         16  graffiti problem in that school prior to this

         17  incident?

         18                 MS. SILVA: I had never heard

         19  anything. My daughter didn't come home with

         20  anything. So, I'm not really sure and I probably

         21  can't answer that question.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Well, I'll ask

         23  your daughter. Are you familiar, was there a lot of

         24  graffiti in the school prior to this?

         25                 MS. FRASER: The only graffiti that I
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          2  knew about was graffiti on the desks. And that

          3  wasn't something serious, unless like -- I got in

          4  trouble because I got caught. That's what they told

          5  me. But really there was no graffiti on the walls or

          6  anything like that. It was a pretty clean school, I

          7  guess.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: So before this

          9  happened, you don't have any recollection of any

         10  students being disciplined for, in the manner that

         11  the Chairman referred to that you said was

         12  appropriate, being disciplined in the school for

         13  graffiti offenses?

         14                 MS. FRASER: My friend told me after

         15  all of this to try to make me feel better, that he

         16  got arrested too, but it wasn't a desk thing, he

         17  wrote on the wall. But I don't think it was in the

         18  school, I think it was like near school grounds. I

         19  think that's why he got arrested.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: He was

         21  arrested by the New York Police Department for

         22  graffiti outside the school. But you're not familiar

         23  with any efforts that are being made in the school

         24  prior to this incident to stop graffiti?

         25                 MS. FRASER: No.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Because my

          3  recollection, and obviously without having DOE here,

          4  and I find myself in a very unusual position of, you

          5  know, defending them for a moment, because I haven't

          6  done that at the Education Committee in about two

          7  years; my recollection was that there was a

          8  significant graffiti problem in this school that

          9  they had been trying to address and that while there

         10  is no question that this all sounds way over the

         11  top, that they were trying to send a message to end,

         12  you know, the graffiti and the disrespect for the

         13  school property that was going on in the school. And

         14  obviously, you know, this sounds all terribly,

         15  terribly unfair hearing this from your perspective,

         16  but I think there is also a certain amount of

         17  sympathy I have for, you know, I'm not a graffiti

         18  fan, and you know, you can say I just wrote "okay"

         19  on the desk, but that is defacing someone's property

         20  and graffiti is against the law. And I'm not saying

         21  you should have been arrested, but I think we also

         22  have to put this into some reasonable context that

         23  if the consistent discipline, if there was the

         24  consistent effort to discipline and the ordinary

         25  fashion were not working, what's left? So, you know,
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          2  maybe you never did it before and you got caught the

          3  first time and certainly the way they handled the

          4  arrest is almost obscene, but I understand the

          5  problem and there is another perspective here that

          6  really needs to be laid out on the table.

          7                 MR. MARIA: Sir, I'd just like to add

          8  a couple of little points here.

          9                 First of all, to have the charge of

         10  graffiti is not merely writing on a desk. The

         11  statute goes further than that, and you have to be a

         12  member of a gang or something along those lines.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: That's

         14  absolutely not true.

         15                 MR. MARIA: To be charged with the

         16  misdemeanor level, which she was.

         17                 But aside from that, they took a

         18  statement from this girl on March 30th, 2007 with no

         19  one present, whereby she admitted that she wrote on

         20  the desk, she said that she has never been in

         21  trouble before with graffiti, and I don't plan to do

         22  it in the future. She said I wrote on the desk, I

         23  don't have a tag, I don't have anything like that.

         24  She wrote that all in a statement without being

         25  represented by the Board of Education in their
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          2  system, and then that was turned over to the

          3  prosecutor. That's unconstitutional.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Counselor, as

          5  I indicated, the conduct of the arrest, and

          6  certainly the second point that you were making is

          7  absolutely valid. It is outrageous. It shouldn't

          8  have happened that way. But your first point is

          9  incorrect. And quite frankly, if in order to be

         10  charged with a misdemeanor for graffiti you have to

         11  be a gang member, then I got a piece of legislation

         12  to introduce, because quite frankly, I'm a little

         13  tired of graffiti in this City. I think many of my

         14  colleagues are and we've introduced and passed a

         15  great number of pieces of legislation. Graffiti is

         16  vandalism. And if it happens on my property, I'm

         17  pretty annoyed about it. So, I believe your

         18  statement of the law is incorrect.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, we're not

         20  going to decide that here. I guess I want to

         21  actually know what actually the law says, and I'm

         22  not going to debate that issue here and now.

         23                 But let me just say, counsel, you're

         24  here representing your clients, and I have a

         25  question: Have you or the family filed any action
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          2  against the City of New York?

          3                 MR. MARIA: Yes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: You have.

          5                 MR. MARIA: We filed a Notice of Claim

          6  and there has been a 50 H hearing conducted.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: So, in essence,

          8  because of what happened now we have a lawsuit

          9  against the City of New York; is that correct?

         10                 MR. MARIA: That is correct.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         12                 Well, let me thank you for coming in

         13  and giving testimony as to what happened to you,

         14  young lady, and your mother, here, on her behalf,

         15  and the counsel, for representing them, and good

         16  luck on your litigation.

         17                 MR. MARIA: Thank you very much.

         18                 MS. SILVA: Thank you.

         19                 MS. FRASER: Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Next we're going

         21  to hear from Udi Ofer from the New York Civil

         22  Liberties Union. Donna Lieberman from the NYCLU. Ant

         23  Eisenberg (sic) from the NYCLU. And Andre Segura

         24  from the National Office of ACLU. Art. Art

         25  Eisenberg. Okay. Looked like Ant to me.
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          2                 Hello, Art. Art, you're definitely

          3  not an Ant.

          4                 Okay, you will decide who goes first.

          5  Just pull the mic. up nice and close. You've got

          6  three minutes, then you get the one additional

          7  minute, okay? So, don't read your testimony, please.

          8  And you may be able to get additional time in on the

          9  questions and responses.

         10                 Okay.

         11                 MS. LIEBERMAN: Okay, I'm Donna

         12  Lieberman, Executive Director of the New York Civil

         13  Liberties Union. I just want to thank you for

         14  holding this hearing and putting in so much time and

         15  energy and asking the hard questions and demanding

         16  the answers.

         17                 This is the first time that we've had

         18  the NYPD and the DOE together in the same room at

         19  the same time, and it's been extremely revealing.

         20                 Yesterday's incident with the arrest

         21  of the principal in the East Village is sadly not an

         22  aberration. We've seen other principals arrested for

         23  interfering with School Safety Agents, charging into

         24  a classroom, trying to arrest kids for cursing, and

         25  a real problem was brought to light here, which is
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          2  that while the DOE and the Police Department tell us

          3  that principals run the school, principals run the

          4  school; it is actually not at all clear that

          5  principals run the school. When it comes to school

          6  safety, it's not an aberration, it's not surprising

          7  that there is a lot of confusion. Because in fact

          8  the School Safety Agents are supervised by the

          9  Police Department. They are under no circumstances,

         10  answerable to the principal. They are charged with

         11  enforcing school discipline, and look what happens.

         12                 We have seen kids arrested for being

         13  late to class, in the hall without a late pass.

         14  We've seen kids arrested for wearing a hat, refusing

         15  to take it off. We've seen kids arrested for

         16  cursing. This has nothing to do with the safety and

         17  security of our schools and it has everything to do

         18  with exercising muscle in an inappropriate way for

         19  the educational environment of the schools.

         20                 The DOE tells us the principals run

         21  the schools, and that they really run them in the

         22  empowerment zones, but empowerment zone or not, it's

         23  clear that they don't. And there is nothing in the

         24  old MOU, which apparently doesn't exist anymore, and

         25  congratulations for finally eliciting that
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          2  information during the course of this hearing that

          3  says that principals control school discipline. It's

          4  really unfortunate.

          5                 I want to pass this on to Udi Ofer to

          6  talk about the recommendations the NYCLU has made

          7  for changes to ensure that school safety is carried

          8  out in a way that is consistent with the education

          9  mission.

         10                 MR. OFER: Thank you, Donna. And I

         11  want to thank the three committees for convening

         12  this hearing. I thought that the morning session was

         13  incredibly informative, and some straight answers

         14  were given to questions that Council Member Jackson,

         15  for example, has been asking the DOE and the NYPD

         16  for about two years.

         17                 Now, having said that, there were a

         18  lot of questions that were evaded and there is a lot

         19  of follow-up that needs to happen.

         20                 But we have, the Student Safety

         21  Coalition, which is composed of many organizations

         22  who have testified already today and will testify

         23  later on today, has really come together to try to

         24  think of what can City Council do to improve the

         25  problem of the over-policing of the City schools,
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          2  and we have numerous recommendations.

          3                 Number one, the authority over school

          4  safety must be returned to educators, and it should

          5  not be in the hands of the police alone. I was happy

          6  to hear Council Member Vallone actually earlier this

          7  morning seemed to support this idea that school

          8  safety should be in the hands of the educators, and

          9  there are ways for the City Council to be involved

         10  in making this happen.

         11                 Number two, there is no effective

         12  mechanism right now to oversee police practices in

         13  the schools, and to hold School Safety Agents

         14  accountable for their actions. Therefore, we have a

         15  few proposals in how the City Council can take steps

         16  to create greater accountability and transparency in

         17  police practices.

         18                 The first thing that the Council can

         19  do in terms of legislation is to hold abusive School

         20  Safety Agents accountable for their actions by

         21  expanding the jurisdiction of the Civilian Complaint

         22  Review Board to receive complaints regarding abusive

         23  school safety agents.

         24                 New Yorkers right now have the

         25  authority to go to the CCRB, file a complaint
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          2  against abusive complaint activities that happen on

          3  the streets. New Yorkers do not have the right right

          4  now to file a complaint against abusive police

          5  activities in the schools.

          6                 That in consistency has to be fixed

          7  and the City Council can do this.

          8                 Next, we ask that the City Council

          9  pass legislation to acquire quarterly reporting by

         10  the Department of Education and the NYPD on school

         11  safety matters.

         12                 I know that in 2005, Council Member

         13  Vallone spearheaded legislation that required

         14  reporting by the NYPD. Not all of it has been

         15  fulfilled, but we actually think that it can be

         16  taken one step further, and actually include further

         17  reporting requirements, not only on the NYPD, by the

         18  DOE.

         19                 For example, it is very difficult to

         20  find out how many non-criminal incidents happen in

         21  the schools, that involve especially school safety

         22  agents. And the stories that we keep hearing from

         23  students, from teachers, from educators, is that

         24  these non-criminal incidents really rise to the

         25  level of criminal incidents because of inappropriate
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          2  behavior by police personnel.

          3                 We need to know what's happening in

          4  the schools. We need to know what are the number of

          5  incidents that happen in every school in New York

          6  City, in every public school.

          7                 Moreover, we need to know what type

          8  of police action is taken because of these

          9  incidents. So, when did, you know, wearing a

         10  baseball cap in the hallway lead to an arrest? When

         11  did, you know, an altercation around the metal

         12  detectors lead to a suspension? We need to know this

         13  information, and there's a way for the City Council

         14  to find out this information, that according to

         15  testimony delivered this morning is already being

         16  recorded in the DOE and NYPD databases, so it

         17  shouldn't be a heavy lift to require them to

         18  centralize and inform the public of this.

         19                 In addition, we want to know about

         20  the number of incidents that arise out of the use of

         21  metal detectors. NYPD already keeps this

         22  information, and we hear from students that metal

         23  detectors are flashpoints for confrontation. We want

         24  to get that information. We want to know how many

         25  suspensions happen every year, how many of them are
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          2  principal suspensions, superintendent suspensions.

          3                 And then, finally, we want all of

          4  this information broken down by race, by ethnicity,

          5  by sex, by age, by student status, whether they're a

          6  general or special ed student. Because we hear and

          7  we believe that certain communities are being

          8  disproportionately impacted by the over-policing of

          9  schools. If that's not the case, then the numbers

         10  should prove that. We need to know the numbers.

         11                 Finally, and real quick, there are

         12  successful school safety models out there. We're

         13  just not speaking here in the negative, we're not

         14  just criticizing, but there actually are proactive

         15  things that the City can do. So, we ask that the

         16  City Council commission a study to study successful

         17  school safety models, such as those in the Julia

         18  Richmond Education Complex, such as the Urban

         19  Assembly School for Careers and Sports, and I know

         20  the principal from that school is here and he wants

         21  to talk.

         22                 There are examples of schools that

         23  used to have metal detectors that have problems of

         24  violence, but then when the metal detectors were

         25  eliminated, violence actually went down. So, we ask
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          2  you to study these examples. Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

          4                 Next. Just identify yourself.

          5                 MR. EISENBERG: My name is Arthur

          6  Eisenberg. I'm the Legal Director for New York Civil

          7  Liberties Union. I would just like to take a moment

          8  to tease out two of the basic themes that emerged

          9  from yesterday's incident at East Side Community

         10  High School.

         11                 What you have, now it's clear that

         12  all of the facts are not fully developed, but it

         13  certainly appears to be the case that you have a

         14  School Safety Agent choosing to arrest a student.

         15  Put to one side the question of the propriety of

         16  that arrest, but the School Safety Agent is about to

         17  march the student out through the front of the

         18  school, and embarrass the student in front of the

         19  entire student body that is just coming to school in

         20  the morning.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: In essence I

         22  called it a "perp walk."

         23                 MR. EISENBERG: A perp walk is the

         24  description, and it is so apt a description because

         25  what it is designed to do is embarrass the student,
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          2  create an example and bolster the authority of the

          3  School Safety Agents.

          4                 It is part of their modus of operandi

          5  to bolster their authority, and it's understandable.

          6  You can understand why they would want to do that.

          7                 The principal, though, attempts to

          8  intervene and the principal says take the student

          9  out through the side. We don't want to embarrass the

         10  student. The principal is working hard, as most

         11  educators work hard, to create an environment that

         12  is supportive, to create an environment that is

         13  helpful, that is nurturing the students, but that's

         14  not the mindset that the School Safety Agents bring

         15  to the process. Their mindset is security, their

         16  mindset is to use the student as an example of what

         17  happens when a student misbehaves, and so you have

         18  this dichotomy of interests and of mindsets which

         19  needs to be reconciled. And I think if you look at

         20  our report, that's one of the principle themes that

         21  emerges, and our solution is better training, but

         22  our solution is also that the School Safety Agents

         23  have to be under the authority of the principals at

         24  the school. That's the second principal that

         25  emerges. The principal intervenes to try to prevent
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          2  the School Safety Agents from embarrassing the

          3  student, and the principal then gets arrested

          4  because the School Safety Agent says you have no

          5  authority over me.

          6                 And the second theme, which doesn't

          7  make any sense even as a matter of good governance,

          8  as a matter of sound management, is that the

          9  principal is responsible for everything that takes

         10  place in the school except for this very important

         11  component - school safety. And those two themes I

         12  think emerge quite importantly from yesterday's

         13  incident, and they are spelled out in more detail in

         14  our report.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Chelsea, did you

         17  leave something? Come and get it. Chelsea was

         18  looking like she left something. Her pocketbook.

         19                 Okay, who is next?

         20                 MR. SEGURA: My name is Andre Segura,

         21  and I'm an attorney with the Rachel Justice Program,

         22  the National Office of the ACLU.

         23                 I just want to briefly touch on a lot

         24  of things that have been said already, but provide a

         25  national perspective on the alarming trend of
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          2  criminalizing our schools and incarcerating our

          3  youth, what we call the "school to prison pipeline."

          4                 This has become one of the largest

          5  threats of civil rights today. Under this banner of

          6  zero tolerance, schools are pushing students out of

          7  the classroom and into the criminal justice system

          8  by, in large part, employing these large police

          9  forces to patrol hallways.

         10                 And as we found out today, this isn't

         11  a problem just confined to small towns or the rural

         12  deep south, as in Jena, Louisiana, which we've heard

         13  a lot about recently, this is a nationwide problem,

         14  and New York, unfortunately, is no exception.

         15                 New York, like the rest of the

         16  country, suffers from this problem of prioritizing,

         17  incarcerating our youth and criminalizing schools to

         18  their education.

         19                 You even heard Assistant Chief

         20  Secreto today boast about how every year they're

         21  adding more and more SSAs, on top of the 5,200 SSAs

         22  that currently exist. Today children are far more

         23  likely to be arrested than they were a year ago, a

         24  generation ago. And many of these arrests, as we've

         25  heard today, continue to be for disruptive behavior
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          2  and disobedient conduct, acts which if committed by

          3  an adult would not be considered a crime.

          4                 You have to ask yourself, and you've

          5  asked this question, how many middle school

          6  playgrounds are free from disobedient conduct, and

          7  how many schools of children have never been

          8  disruptive? All these children do not belong in

          9  jail, do not belong arrested, and do not belong in

         10  the criminal justice system. And beyond what we've

         11  heard today, there are numerous examples from across

         12  the country. A five-year-old girl arrested in

         13  Florida for simply having a temper tantrum in class.

         14  Just last week a student arrested in California and

         15  physically injured in a school cafeteria. An

         16  autistic child arrested in Massachusetts for

         17  throwing her eraser at her teacher. And you've heard

         18  today that this is also occurring in New York City.

         19  But we do not know the full extent of what's

         20  happening in our schools because of the lack of

         21  transparency and the lack of accountability in the

         22  way that New York City uses police and SSAs in its

         23  schools.

         24                 As the prison population skyrocketed

         25  in the US, we also saw an increase in school
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          2  suspensions. Since 1974, the amount has nearly

          3  doubled from 1.7 million to 3.1 million each year.

          4  But the notion that our youth are simply becoming

          5  more violent and the schools are out of control have

          6  been exaggerated in the media. A 2,000 congressional

          7  bipartisan work group found that schools are among

          8  the safest places for our children to be.

          9                 It's not really that our youth are

         10  becoming more violent and out of control, it's that

         11  society has become less lenient of even the most

         12  minor misconduct.

         13                 And as you've also heard today,

         14  children of color are far more likely to bear the

         15  brunt of these policies.

         16                 In 2003, black children made up only

         17  16 percent of the nation's juvenile population, but

         18  accounted for 45 percent of juvenile arrests. And

         19  nationally minority students are disciplined in

         20  schools at a rate of two to three times that of

         21  other children.

         22                 And on top of that, if I have an

         23  extra minute, on top of that minority students with

         24  disabilities are particularly vulnerable. Black

         25  students with disabilities are four times more
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          2  likely to end up in correctional facilities.

          3                 And do these racial disparities exist

          4  here in New York City? We believe so, and we have

          5  some data that strongly indicate that the same is

          6  occurring here.

          7                 But, again, I reiterate that we are

          8  unable to effectively assess this situation, without

          9  the accountability and proper reporting that we need

         10  to fully assess the situation here.

         11                 So, in conclusion, I just want to say

         12  over-disciplining of our youth is bad policy.

         13  Students across the nation, as well as here, are

         14  reporting that schools are taking on a prison-like

         15  atmosphere. And when children are being pushed out,

         16  where do they end up? They end up without adult

         17  supervision, without a positive role model, often

         18  out on the streets, and far more likely to end up in

         19  more trouble.

         20                 Our nation is currently in a drop out

         21  crisis, only half of black, Latino and

         22  Native-American students are graduating on time. We

         23  believe the time is now for New York City to be on

         24  the forefront of this, to challenge these policies,

         25  to lead the effort in reversing the effects of
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          2  criminalizing our schools. And we believe that New

          3  York City students deserve better.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, let me

          5  thank you all for coming in, and especially Donna

          6  and Udi. And Art, you're the Legal Director, is that

          7  correct? Because you are the ones that have been

          8  instrumental in bringing about this hearing today.

          9  So, let me just say on behalf of all of my

         10  colleagues and the general population of the City of

         11  New York, thank you for being advocates on behalf of

         12  the people of New York City.

         13                 But let me ask a couple of questions.

         14  Donna, I believe you, an maybe Udi, were sitting

         15  here through all of the testimony at this morning,

         16  and I want to turn to Mr. Floyd, the president of

         17  Teamsters Local 237, that represents all of the

         18  School Safety Agents. You heard his testimony, I

         19  have a couple of notes, and he said that his union,

         20  all of the SSAs were not consulted before you

         21  released this report on criminalizing the classroom.

         22  And you've heard me say that whether or not they

         23  reached out to you after the fact, in order to have

         24  a dialogue; is that true? And if it is true, or if

         25  it's not true, you know, do you feel that even now,
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          2  and after you've issued this report, that a dialogue

          3  should take place?

          4                 MS. LIEBERMAN: Well, I'm glad you

          5  asked that question. We didn't reach out to the

          6  union, but we did reach out to School Safety Agents.

          7  In fact, on page, I think it's 26 of our report, we

          8  talk about a model of school safety, the Julia

          9  Richmond Educational Complex, which really turned

         10  around the school educationally and safety-wise.

         11  They eliminated metal detectors and sharply reduced

         12  the number of School Safety Agents in the schools,

         13  and it's in part because of the educational

         14  leadership and the relationship with school safety,

         15  and it's part because the head of school safety

         16  there has done an amazing job, has been an

         17  incredible collaborator with the educational

         18  leadership. So, we don't condemn and we haven't

         19  ignored all School Safety Agents, not by a long

         20  shot.

         21                 And I did approach the head of the

         22  union after his testimony today, and I said let's

         23  talk. We may disagree about a lot of stuff, but of

         24  course we want to talk. We think there are some

         25  rogue school safety agents, just like there are some
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          2  rogue cops, and they need to be dealt with and held

          3  accountable. They give a bad name to the good guys.

          4                 But we also think that there are some

          5  really serious problems in the policies that are

          6  being imposed upon the School Safety Agents from

          7  above, from the head of the Police Department, and

          8  the head of the DOE, and the most central problem is

          9  that their boss is the Police Department, and that

         10  there is no clear line of authority that ensures

         11  that principals do in fact run the schools, that

         12  they're responsible for discipline, they're

         13  responsible for everything that goes on. The only

         14  time a School Safety Officer ought to be in charge

         15  is when there is imminent danger of violence. That's

         16  the only time.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I'm glad to hear

         18  that you approached him after he testified. Because

         19  I do believe, as I indicated, there needs to be a

         20  meeting, even if you agree to disagree on stuff. But

         21  I'm sure there are other matters that you will

         22  agree. Like you said, and he said, that they only

         23  carry out. They have not been involved in coming up

         24  with policy and procedures at NYPD or DOE. His

         25  school safety agents and them as a union are only
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          2  following, you know, what the rules and regulations

          3  are.

          4                 And he said, as you know, that there

          5  is confusion and conflict because of, you know,

          6  between the principal of the school and the NYPD.

          7  And you heard him testify, they seem like they're

          8  caught in the middle of some of this stuff.

          9                 MS. LIEBERMAN: I look forward to the

         10  dialogue. You know, historically unions have played,

         11  you know, a much larger role than simply

         12  representing the workers, you know, as they do what

         13  they're told. The Legal Aid Lawyers Union was

         14  instrumental in ensuring quality of representation

         15  for indigent defendants, you know, for the last 30

         16  years. They took care of their members in terms of

         17  following the rules but they also played an enormous

         18  public policy role and I'm hoping that this dialogue

         19  will help the School Safety Union play a similar

         20  role to protect its members, but also to protect the

         21  kids and do what's right for education.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Now, you heard

         23  the testimony about my questioning of the Assistant

         24  Chief Secreto, and about the whole issue of scanning

         25  female students with respects to metal-wired bras,
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          2  and you heard what their response was and also asked

          3  that question of President Floyd of Local 237.

          4                 Does the New York Civil Liberties

          5  Union have a different opinion about whether or not

          6  these metal detectors will pick up those devices,

          7  such as the metals in the females' bras, and what

          8  occurs after that?

          9                 MS. LIEBERMAN: Well, we know that the

         10  metal detectors can be set at various sensitivity

         11  levels, and that in our meetings with both DOE and

         12  the Police Department, at least the top leadership

         13  was unaware of what settings were used, and on what

         14  basis the settings were calibrated.

         15                 We have received complaints from

         16  students that indeed the metal on the underwire bras

         17  made the alarms go off, and so, we, in fact, we

         18  think it's a problem.

         19                 We believe that the machines can be

         20  set so that they don't pick up the underwire bras,

         21  and that they are sometimes set that way, and

         22  sometimes set at the highest sensitivity level. It

         23  varies from one school to the next, and there is no

         24  method to the madness, and there is no oversight of

         25  what's happening. So, it is a problem and I think it
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          2  needs to be addressed.

          3                 MR. OFER: Let me jump in for a

          4  second.

          5                 I think that there is another point

          6  that needs to be made in this. We have asked the

          7  NYPD and the DOE for their regulations on what

          8  should be the settings of the metal detectors. And

          9  they have repeatedly said they'll get it to us, and

         10  they have repeatedly not given it to us. And that is

         11  part of a theme that we have seen for the last

         12  probably two and a half years.

         13                 More than two years ago, the New York

         14  Civil Liberties Union filed a FOIL request with the

         15  NYPD asking for the number of complaints they had

         16  received against School Safety Agents. We were told

         17  that we were going to get that information in a few

         18  months. This is in 2005. To date we still haven't

         19  received that information from the NYPD.

         20                 A few months ago, possibly on a whim,

         21  I'm not sure how, Commissioner Kelly decides to send

         22  you, Council Member Jackson, a letter actually

         23  giving you that information. Even though we have

         24  asked for it in a formal legal process through a

         25  FOIL request for that information and were not given
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          2  that information, he gave it to you and said there

          3  were close to 2,700 complaints against School Safety

          4  Agents since 2002. This is, even though if you ask

          5  the typical student or parent what's the process to

          6  file a complaint against the School Safety Agent, I

          7  guarantee you that they will say they don't know.

          8  So, the fact that close to 2,700 students and

          9  parents somehow manage their way through the system

         10  to file a complaint is incredible, it means that the

         11  number is actually much higher.

         12                 But what does it show? It shows that

         13  there is almost no transparency in the system. It

         14  also shows that the one hand is not talking to the

         15  other hand.

         16                 You got a letter, Council Member

         17  Jackson, from the Department of Education saying the

         18  students can file a complaint with the Civilian

         19  Complaint Review Board. Then you get a letter from

         20  the Police Commissioner saying, no, they can't file

         21  it with the Civilian Complaint Review Board. They

         22  don't know what's going on, and it's the same thing

         23  with these metal detector settings, they tell us

         24  that there are regulations out there, they tell us

         25  that there is a standard setting, but yet they have
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          2  refused to give us that information.

          3                 MS. LIEBERMAN: And what's worse,

          4  there is no indication that anybody is paying

          5  attention to the systemic problems in the DOE or the

          6  Police Department. They're crunching numbers about

          7  crime rates. That's significant. But nobody is

          8  paying attention to what kind of complaints they're

          9  getting, what's happening to them, who is being

         10  affected. They're not even paying attention to what

         11  the impact of their policies is on class time. They

         12  set up these metal detectors, and if you ask the

         13  Department of Education how much class time has been

         14  lost by virtue of the metal detectors, they don't

         15  know, they haven't asked, and it seems like they

         16  don't care.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, there is a

         18  lot of unresolved questions that you have and that

         19  we have that is going to demand a lot of follow-up

         20  and hopefully we will get some more answers in order

         21  to bring additional clarity and transparency and

         22  accountability.

         23                 But let me first thank you all for

         24  coming in and giving testimony. Clearly we have a

         25  lot of witnesses to get to in order to hear what
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          2  they have to say, and I don't want to stay here all

          3  night. I do thank you again for being advocates on

          4  behalf of students and parents and what have you and

          5  for pushing us in order to move forward on this

          6  hearing today.

          7                 MS. LIEBERMAN: Okay. And I want to

          8  thank you as well, and also commend you on the

          9  report that was submitted in conjunction with this

         10  hearing. It was thorough, it was excellent, it was

         11  thoughtful an the recommendations were right on.

         12  Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, all the

         14  staff involved, the Counsels to all three committees

         15  and the Policy Analysts and all involved in making

         16  sure that, you know, we do a good job on behalf of

         17  the Council of the City of New York, so we thank

         18  them and we thank you.

         19                 Next we will hear from David

         20  Bloomfield. He is a parent and a member of the

         21  Citywide Coalition of High Schools. And Asadullah

         22  Muhammad, Correctional Association. Is he here?

         23  Asadullah Muhammad. And Tom Roderick, Morningside

         24  Center for Teaching and Social Responsibility. And

         25  Stephanie Nilva, Day One. Is Day One here?
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          2                 Okay, so please come forward. Please

          3  make room for each other when you speak.

          4                 David, you can begin. And everyone

          5  introduce yourself before you give your testimony

          6  and your affiliation with your organization. So,

          7  David, you may begin right away. Three minutes,

          8  please, if you don't mind.

          9                 MR. BLOOMFIELD: David Bloomfield.

         10  Brooklyn College, and Citywide Council on High

         11  Schools.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Right. Give your

         13  testimony.

         14                 MR. BLOOMFIELD: Thank you for this

         15  opportunity.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Pull your mic up

         17  closer, David. I'm a little hard of hearing.

         18                 MR. BLOOMFIELD: All right. Thank you

         19  for this opportunity. My name is David Bloomfield. I

         20  am the father of two New York City public high

         21  school students. I have been elected as a parent

         22  representative for Citywide Council on High Schools,

         23  since its inception in 2004, last year serving as

         24  its president. In my day job I am a professor and

         25  head of the Master's Degree Program and Educational
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          2  Leadership at Brooklyn College, and I am the author

          3  of the recently published book, American Public

          4  Education Law, as well as numerous articles on

          5  education law and policy.

          6                 Last year the Citywide Council on

          7  High Schools held a hearing on School Safety. In

          8  researching the topic and through testimony, it

          9  became clear that indeed our schools are too often

         10  policed in a manner that sends the wrong message to

         11  our youth about the role of security personnel in a

         12  free society.

         13                 Too often police and School Safety

         14  Agents are belligerent to students and parents,

         15  earning resentment rather than respect. Police

         16  priorities of command and control substitute for

         17  teaching our children the social priorities of

         18  consent and consideration.

         19                 The parents on our Council were

         20  surprisingly united in this view across racial,

         21  ethnic, gender and geographic lines. It is not that

         22  we are against order in our children's schools, or

         23  that we view security personnel as enemies, rather

         24  it is the palpable sense that these staff members

         25  are trained to view our kids and even parents as the
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          2  enemy. The Tweed and the Police Department view us

          3  as a potential mob to be stopped before we can

          4  create disorder. Any infraction is subject to

          5  overwhelming force and punishment. This is not good

          6  for kids or the school's educational mission.

          7                 I would add that there is clear

          8  institutional racism in play when students' minor

          9  infractions result in suspensions, arrests and

         10  criminal records.

         11                 So, are we stuck in a never ending

         12  cycle of increased police presence in our schools?

         13  Does the Mayor have the courage to really let

         14  principals lead rather than imposing an external

         15  force answerable to non-educators? The answers are

         16  not to do away with security in our schools, but to

         17  better integrate security with other school

         18  functions. I recommend accepting the policy

         19  recommendations of New York Civil Liberties Union in

         20  its report "Criminalizing The Classroom."

         21                 One final note on data. The

         22  Department of Education and Police Department will

         23  probably try to minimalize and marginalize parent

         24  complaints by calling them isolated incidents and

         25  merely anecdotal. But these reports are all we have.
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          2  DOE data are notoriously unreliable, the recent

          3  parent survey was unscientific and unreliable.

          4  Incidents between cops and kids are not apt to be

          5  reported, and if so, from the officer's perspective.

          6                 In short, if they say there is no

          7  problem, don't believe them. So, hear our plea,

          8  balance the need for school order with the need for

          9  respect. Please establish these recommendations to

         10  restore that balance. Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         12                 Mr. Muhammad.

         13                 MR. MUHAMMAD: Good afternoon. My name

         14  is Asadullah Muhammad. I apologize for not

         15  submitting written testimony. I was inspired to come

         16  up here once I heard the DOE and the NYPD.

         17                 It seems as if we're living in a

         18  police state and schools are being affected by

         19  post-9/11 and the fear that we have to always be

         20  safe and it was disturbing hearing the Department of

         21  Ed up here and not once talking about, you know,

         22  really teaching students or the education, quality

         23  of the education that students are receiving. And it

         24  just showed that they have a comfortable

         25  relationship, and you know, the coziness of it is
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          2  contributing to the school to prison pipeline in a

          3  major way, and students are definitely feeling

          4  criminalized from going to school, and most of these

          5  schools, if we look at where these schools are

          6  located, and the population, the student population

          7  in these schools, you know it's a significant

          8  difference than schools in white communities. So,

          9  the situation is clearly racist, and I think that

         10  that needs, the stats and our data needs to come out

         11  on the racial make-up of the students that are

         12  getting arrested.

         13                 As I was looking up at the ceiling in

         14  shock and bewilderment of the testimony that was

         15  happening earlier, I read that, you know, this is "a

         16  government of the people, by the people, for the

         17  people," and it seems as if students are not

         18  considered people. Students have not been -- I'm

         19  glad that students are going to testify and we'll be

         20  able to hear from them, too bad the DOE and NYPD

         21  will not be present in the room to listen, but

         22  students' voice really needs to be heard because if

         23  we are saying that it's about the children, for the

         24  children, but students do not want to go to school

         25  because they are under attack and under
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          2  surveillance, then the students, their future goals

          3  and the educational path will not be traveled.

          4                 The NYPD said there are some cases

          5  where boys will be boys, and we're witnessing in our

          6  schools that cops will be cops, and the same way

          7  that young people's attitudes towards police are on

          8  the streets because of the harassment that they

          9  experience just for living in the neighborhood that

         10  they're living in, or the color of their skin,

         11  they're experiencing that same harassment in school,

         12  and I think that that, you know, the training that

         13  School Safety Agents and Police Officers have in

         14  dealing with students, really needs to be improved

         15  and needs to be community led, because although it's

         16  been continually expressed that they are experts in

         17  crime, they are not experts in youth development and

         18  they're not experts in education. And schools are

         19  institutions of education. Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you. Tom

         21  Roderick. Tom, would you press the button, please?

         22                 MR. RODERICK: Got it.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Let me see if I

         24  can hear you now.

         25                 MR. RODERICK: Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Much better.

          3                 MR. RODERICK: I am Tom Roderick from

          4  Morningside Center for Teaching Social

          5  Responsibility. We used to be called Educators for

          6  Social Responsibility in the Metropolitan Area.

          7                 For the past 23 years, Morningside

          8  Center has supported hundreds of New York City

          9  schools in running effective conflict resolution

         10  programs.

         11                 Last year our programs reached 23,000

         12  students and 102 New York City elementary middle and

         13  high schools. As you know, the DOE recently

         14  published the results of their new learning

         15  environment survey. Although the survey results

         16  included some encouraging news, the student surveys

         17  revealed some serious problems we need to address.

         18                 When asked how often students are

         19  threatened or bullied at school, 29 percent of the

         20  students surveyed said all of the time or most of

         21  the time. And an additional 47 percent said some of

         22  the time.

         23                 When asked how often there was

         24  conflict in their school based on race, culture,

         25  religion, and sexual orientation, gender or
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          2  disabilities, 25 percent said most of the time or

          3  all of the time, and an additional 35 percent said

          4  some of the time.

          5                 Fifty-six percent of the students

          6  either disagreed or strongly disagreed with the

          7  statement "most students in my school treat each

          8  other with respect."

          9                 Obviously the police can't even begin

         10  to address these kinds of issues. The best they can

         11  do is to keep the lid on when a particularly

         12  dangerous situation develops, and there's been a lot

         13  of evidence in the testimony today that too often

         14  they make things worse.

         15                 Schools are educational institutions

         16  and educational strategies are best suited to

         17  address the root causes of student misbehavior.

         18                 Fortunately, a growing body of

         19  research shows that there are effective educational

         20  approaches. By teaching children social and

         21  emotional skills, which can create a safe and

         22  positive environment in our schools. Even better, we

         23  don't have to choose between promoting social and

         24  emotional learning and improving children's academic

         25  performance. In fact, the research indicates that
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          2  they go hand-in-hand.

          3                 Social and emotional learning

          4  programs aren't just for children deemed at risk or

          5  in special need. A school that effectively promotes

          6  social and emotional learning considers every aspect

          7  of its operation from the classroom, to the

          8  hallways, to the playground. It involves all

          9  students and adults as partners in creating a

         10  positive learning environment, and all students

         11  receive instruction to develop the capacity to

         12  understand and manage feelings, relate well to

         13  others, make good decisions, deal well with conflict

         14  and other life challenges, and take responsibility

         15  for improving their community. The approach needs to

         16  be systematic and school-wide.

         17                 The example of the Julia Richmond

         18  Education Complex has been mentioned as an example.

         19  Another example is Public School 24, in Sunset Park,

         20  Brooklyn. In that school you have the teachers

         21  providing regular instruction to the students, you

         22  have peer mediators, for the younger children you

         23  have peace helpers and peace corners, all the

         24  children and the parents are working together to

         25  make it a positive learning environment.
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          2                 And the school was rated exemplary in

          3  closing the academic achievement gap. So, it's

          4  paying off in terms of the academics as well.

          5                 What are some doable next steps for

          6  promoting social emotional learning in our schools?

          7  Up to now it's been a very patchwork kind of

          8  situation. The Department of Ed hasn't been too

          9  committed to this kind of work in the schools. So,

         10  just three quick things: One is the New York State

         11  Regents should adopt statewide standards in social

         12  emotional learning and ensure that schools have the

         13  resources to implement them. At the City level we

         14  need to hold schools accountable for developing

         15  students social and emotional capacities, and,

         16  finally, the Department of Ed needs to inform

         17  principals, parents, students, other school staff,

         18  of the research-based programs and planning models

         19  that could help them improve their implementation of

         20  social emotional learning.

         21                 In short, we need to ensure that all

         22  schools have the tools they need to educate both the

         23  heart and the mind.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.
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          2                 Ms. Nilva. That's your last name,

          3  right?

          4                 MS. NILVA: Yes, it is.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: All right.

          6                 MS. NILVA: Good evening. And I want

          7  to thank the Committees for holding this very

          8  important hearing on school safety.

          9                 Day One supports the creation of a

         10  DOE policy that would include protocols and

         11  structure of accountability related to violence

         12  occurring in students --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. Before you

         14  begin, what is Day One?

         15                 MS. NILVA: Day One is an organization

         16  that focuses solely on the issue of dating abuse

         17  among youth.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Say it again?

         19                 MS. NILVA: We focus solely on the

         20  issue of dating abuse and domestic violence among

         21  young people.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Dating abuse and

         23  the domestic violence. Okay.

         24                 MS. NILVA: Yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Pull your mic.
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          2  up a little closer. I'm sorry, you can start the

          3  testimony again.

          4                 MS. NILVA: Okay.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I just need to

          6  know what Day One was.

          7                 MS. NILVA: Day One supports the

          8  creation of a DOE policy that would address

          9  comprehensive policy on violence in schools,

         10  including protocols and a structure of

         11  accountability.

         12                 Administrators, teachers and school

         13  safety personnel need to have clear guidelines that

         14  would direct them how to respond to incidents of

         15  violence. And more importantly, they need the

         16  training to guide them in how to evaluate behaviors

         17  among students, respond appropriately and pursue the

         18  proper resources.

         19                 We agree with the statements that

         20  have been made by the providers and the families

         21  that came earlier today who talked about the fact

         22  that NYPD is not the appropriate first response for

         23  violent incidents in schools. It is a critical issue

         24  that a policy be hashed that addresses all the

         25  various types of violence in schools. Because Day
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          2  One is the only organization focused solely on

          3  dating abuse in domestic violence, we're here to

          4  talk about that specific narrow issue and how that

          5  would play a part in a policy addressing violence

          6  and training for academic professionals and safety

          7  personnel in schools.

          8                 It's important to address the fact

          9  that dating abuse and sexual assault are occurring

         10  in schools at alarming rates. These are very

         11  uncomfortable things for people to talk about. So

         12  that's why it doesn't get addressed in the context

         13  of overall violence in schools. And yet, the rate of

         14  dating abuse and domestic violence among youth is

         15  the same as it is among adults, between a quarter

         16  and a third of youth in schools are experiencing

         17  physical or sexual assault or emotional abuse, and

         18  stalking in a dating relationship.

         19                 We have to acknowledge that while

         20  teachers are trained extensively on the issues of

         21  parent child abuse, they are not trained at all

         22  about issues of dating abuse which could affect

         23  between three- and four-hundred thousand youth in

         24  school.

         25                 Day One has educated in over more
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          2  than 200 schools, upwards of over 14,000 youth an

          3  professionals, how to manage conflict, identifying

          4  dating abuse, determine mandated reporting

          5  obligations and interact appropriately with

          6  students.

          7                 We teach youth and professionals

          8  about the law, about where legal resources are

          9  available and what their rights and responsibilities

         10  are under the law.

         11                 Day One also offers legal

         12  representation and guidance to young people who are

         13  affected by relationship abuse, and as a law-based

         14  organization, Day One is particularly disturbed that

         15  the DOE lacks a protocol that would enable them to

         16  enforce or comply with orders of protection that

         17  exist among students.

         18                 If there were violent incidents in

         19  the school, Order of Protections are often issued on

         20  behalf of students and the DOE literally has no

         21  protocol to acknowledge this, and, yet, every time

         22  we train a group of professionals in schools, we ask

         23  them, are there any Orders of Protection among your

         24  students? And they say yes, and they have no idea

         25  what the protocol is to observe them.
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          2                 With a move towards smaller schools,

          3  most schools cannot ensure that a safe distance

          4  exists between a victim and a perpetrator in a

          5  school, they can't rearrange a locker or arrange

          6  different entrance locations or departure times.

          7  Even when an Order of Protection is issued and in

          8  place schools do not require the abuser to transfer

          9  away but offer what's called a safety transfer to

         10  the victim, effectively revictimizing the subject of

         11  abuse by removing him or her from the supportive

         12  environment and leaving the perpetrator in place.

         13                 We hear from teachers consistently

         14  that transferring an abuser, a violent student, even

         15  with an Order of Protection, away from the school is

         16  near impossible.

         17                 Day One is very concerned that it

         18  will take the death or serious injury of a student

         19  in our public schools and the accompanying lawsuit

         20  before this risk is taking seriously.

         21                 We hope that action can be taken on

         22  establishing a policy to address violence in the

         23  schools, and that specialized providers, many of the

         24  ones that have appeared here today like Day One,

         25  will be consulted to offer their expertise on
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          2  interpersonal violence among youth.

          3                 Day One has been working with other

          4  organizations on drafting such a policy that would

          5  include dating abuse and sexual assault specifically

          6  in the school regs, which is not currently named.

          7  And that would be a critical policy of any overall

          8  violence policy that the DOE should pass. A policy

          9  like that would include the acknowledgment and

         10  definition of teen dating abuse, and of violence of

         11  all kinds, and a stand taken against it. It would

         12  include annually culturally competent trainings for

         13  professionals in schools. It would include trainings

         14  for youth about safe and healthy relationships,

         15  designated resources in every school that were

         16  trained on the issue of domestic violence and dating

         17  abuse.

         18                 It would also institute a protocol to

         19  address reports of relationship violence and observe

         20  confidentiality whenever possible for students.

         21                 It would ensure accountability for

         22  perpetrators and then monitor the implementation of

         23  any policy.

         24                 We thank you, again, for holding this

         25  important hearing and we encourage the Department of
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          2  Education, through the City Council, to pass a

          3  policy on violence that demonstrates the importance

          4  of the ongoing safety in relationships among youth.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Let me thank all

          7  of you for coming in and representing all of your

          8  organizations on this very important issue. And if

          9  you were here earlier during the testimony, you know

         10  that we collectively have a lot of work to do to

         11  ensure that our children are safe and sound in

         12  school, that there is accountability at every level,

         13  that not only staff but students are educated into

         14  peer mediation, how to diffuse a situation,

         15  intervention services. You know, just because

         16  someone is in the position of power and authority,

         17  you don't have to necessarily exert that. Sometimes

         18  you have to take a step back because of frustrations

         19  in the school by students, what have you and so

         20  forth. Let me thank you all for coming in. And we

         21  look forward to working with you.

         22                 Next we're going to hear from Marisol

         23  Zacarias, Urban Youth Collaborative; Zakiyah Ansari,

         24  a parent of several students. Raquib Alam, Desis

         25  Rising Up and Moving, Urban Youth Collaborative.
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          2  Juan Antigua, Urban Youth Collaborative.

          3                 And Denise Melendez, Future of

          4  Tomorrow and Urban Youth Collaborative, and

          5  Alejandro Ramos, Future of Tomorrow and Urban Youth.

          6                 Young men, can you all move down this

          7  way, please? If you don't mind, move all the way

          8  down three seats. And the other witnesses, please

          9  take the front seats, and so we can just rotate a

         10  little bit, if you don't mind.

         11                 Okay? Thank you very much, everyone,

         12  for your cooperation.

         13                 Marisol? Where is Marisol? You're

         14  first.

         15                 MS. ZACARIAS: My name is Marisol

         16  Zacarias.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Marisol, you've

         18  got to sit down and you've got to get a mic.

         19                 MS. ZACARIAS: I'm Coordinator of the

         20  Urban Youth Collaborative, and I'm here playing a

         21  supportive role. So, I'm going to go ahead and give

         22  the mic. to the parent of the youth leaders.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. All right,

         24  so have a seat there. Have a chair, okay? Then who

         25  is going to go first. Zakiyah, I'm sorry. A parent
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          2  who was a member of the middle school task force and

          3  very active as a parent activist. Zakiyah, welcome.

          4                 MS. ANSARI: Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Pull that mic.

          6  up so I can hear you loud and clear. We all can hear

          7  you.

          8                 MS. ANSARI: I just want to say, thank

          9  you for having this testimony at this hearing today

         10  also, but just to make mention and just a

         11  suggestion, I know as a parent when we come and we

         12  hear Council meetings, we're always the last ones to

         13  speak, and just going forth, when you have youth,

         14  they're still young adults and they still have to

         15  sit in these seats, that maybe we could interchange

         16  adults with youth, adults with youth, and therefore

         17  they don't feel like they're the last ones to speak.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: You know one

         19  thing? That's exactly what we're doing, because

         20  they're not the last. They have adults coming after

         21  them.

         22                 MS. ANSARI: Okay. All right.

         23                 So, my name is Zakiyah Ansari, and

         24  I'm the mother of eight children. I reside in

         25  Brooklyn New York, and, again, I would first like to
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          2  acknowledge and say thank you to the Council for

          3  having these hearings on school safety.

          4                 I am here today to stand with the

          5  youth of the Urban Youth Collaborative, and to me it

          6  seems fitting that parents should support their

          7  children whenever possible.

          8                 We as parents and adults have a

          9  responsibility to listen to and support our youth,

         10  and whenever there is a way that I can use my voice

         11  to help make their voice louder, then that's what I

         12  will do.

         13                 When it comes to school safety, who

         14  better to know what is happening in schools then the

         15  students who we are supposed to be protecting? I sit

         16  here before you today as a parent extremely involved

         17  in my children's lives and advocates for all

         18  children. I have a child in a school with metal

         19  detectors and I have had children in schools without

         20  metal detectors, and there is, trust me, a huge

         21  difference in the tone of the schools with metal

         22  detectors and those without.

         23                 I, myself, have seen some of the

         24  issues that cause unnecessary tension in the

         25  schools. One example is the attitudes of some of the
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          2  Safety Agents in the school towards the students.

          3                 I've witnessed Safety Agents making

          4  rude comments towards students, which can be

          5  transmitted to students as I don't respect you or

          6  how you feel. I don't know about you, but for me,

          7  respect is a two-way street and you have to earn

          8  respect to get respect. And the lack of respect of

          9  Safety Agents for students is a big concern for me.

         10                 In addition, when students have

         11  problems with Safety Agents, they need to have a

         12  complaint process in place, and feel comfortable

         13  about making that complaint against the Safety

         14  Agent, without fear of retaliation, which often many

         15  parents have that same issue and concern.

         16                 For so many years there has been this

         17  message of children should be seen and not heard,

         18  but this being a new era and time, children have the

         19  right to speak up and they have a whole lot to say.

         20                 Even more importantly, they have a

         21  student safety act to address these very issues.

         22                 So, I ask that not only does the

         23  Council listen to this group of amazing intelligent,

         24  brave, relentless and most socially conscious group

         25  of young adults that I know, but also hear them, you
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          2  know, really hear them as they share their stories

          3  and their solutions. Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you,

          5  Marisol. Any students, in the order in which you

          6  please.

          7                 Pull the mic. up so we can hear you

          8  loud and clear. Identify yourself and what school.

          9                 MR. ANTIGUA: Okay. So my name is Juan

         10  Antigua. I am sharing this testimony on the behalf

         11  of Miguel Hernandez, a student at Dewitt Clinton

         12  High School in the Bronx.

         13                 First I want to say thank you,

         14  Councilman Jackson, because I love hearing you speak

         15  out there, and being an activist for, so now I'll

         16  begin.

         17                 Every day I have to wake up earlier

         18  than usual and stand on line longer than usual to

         19  get to class later than usual because of the metal

         20  detectors and the way they are being used.

         21                 The same dynamics sometimes happen

         22  when fights break out. The students argue for longer

         23  than usual, cops get there later than usual and

         24  students get sent to precincts earlier than usual.

         25  Who is getting blamed for all of these issues? Youth
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          2  are usually blamed. Like being in a school which is

          3  more than 100 percent over capacity that has NYPD

          4  officers with guns and is an under-resource

          5  community and is our fault.

          6                 The fact of the matter is that youth

          7  do not get to make any decisions about safety

          8  policies in their schools, so we are the ones that

          9  have to deal with it and are blamed for the violence

         10  in our schools. We are often told that we are

         11  uncontrollable, that we need to behave ourselves

         12  because we act like animals. I say that it is time

         13  that the DOE, the City Council and every other

         14  stakeholder step up and take responsibility.

         15                 The following are some solutions to

         16  these problems.

         17                 If we had a clear complaint process

         18  set up in our schools with the Board of Youth and

         19  other community residents, then at least when an

         20  issue occurs, we could complain about it and take

         21  action. If school aides were trained to de-escalate

         22  problems and engage youth in a non-threatening way,

         23  then at least we wouldn't have to be disciplined by

         24  the same people who arrest us and suspend us and

         25  make us feel down in general. We need NYPD and the
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          2  DOE to report on the incidents that happen in

          3  school. If we had this statistical information, we,

          4  as youth, who experience those incidents, would be

          5  able to help think about solutions. However, if we

          6  don't know what is happening in our schools, how can

          7  we do something about it? And we have so many School

          8  Safety Agents, armed police and metal detectors, how

          9  can we ever get to the proactive solutions to these

         10  problems? In order to get to that, I believe that we

         11  need to include youth voices, in whatever the

         12  decision-making process that is going to happen

         13  after today.

         14                 So, thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Juan, what

         16  school do you attend?

         17                 MR. ANTIGUA: I attend Dewitt Clinton

         18  High School.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Dewitt Clinton

         20  High School.

         21                 Who is next?

         22                 MR. RAMOS: Hello.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Move closer and

         24  speak loud and clear in the mic. Pull that mic. up

         25  to you. You're not afraid of the mic, are you?
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          2                 MR. RAMOS: No, I'm not.

          3                 Okay, my name is Alejandro Ramos. I

          4  am 15 years old. I am part of Future of Tomorrow and

          5  the Urban Youth Collaborative. I prefer not to say

          6  what school I go to, because, you know, I don't want

          7  to get into any kind of trouble in school.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Do you feel

          9  you'll get in trouble?

         10                 MR. RAMOS: Yes, I do.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: You do?

         12                 MR. RAMOS: Yes.

         13                 It has happened to a friend of mine.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: What kind of

         15  trouble? Suspended or retaliation?

         16                 MR. RAMOS: Yes, retaliation.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: That's the way

         18  you feel?

         19                 MR. RAMOS: Yes.

         20                 Recently I was going to the

         21  lunchroom. I got my food, sat down and I began to

         22  eat. A Safety Agent came up to me and asked to see

         23  my ID, because I had to swipe my ID before getting

         24  into lunch. So, he asked to see my ID, and I asked

         25  why, because normally when they ask to see your ID,
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          2  it means that you're in trouble. So, instead of

          3  causing any trouble, I showed him my ID, and he

          4  asked me to follow him to the elevator. At this

          5  point I was embarrassed and I felt disrespected,

          6  because I was in front of my friends and other

          7  Safety Agents.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I'm sorry, you

          9  say you were eating lunch?

         10                 MR. RAMOS: Yes, I was eating lunch.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: You had your

         12  lunch?

         13                 MR. RAMOS: I had my lunch already and

         14  I was eating it, and I had to stop eating because

         15  they wanted me to follow him to the elevator.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         17                 MR. RAMOS: So, when we got to the

         18  elevator, the Safety Agent started cursing at me.

         19  And he did this by using the "F" word a lot and

         20  disrespecting the students that went to the school.

         21  So, I felt like I couldn't do anything. I felt

         22  defenseless, because there wasn't anything I could

         23  say or do to persuade him to know that I didn't do

         24  anything wrong.

         25                 So, we got to the dean's office, he
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          2  finally told me and the dean why I was going to the

          3  office. He said that I had given my program to a

          4  student that also went to the school so that they

          5  could get into lunch. I told them both that, no, I

          6  didn't do that. But they didn't believe me. So, I

          7  asked to call my father and they refused to let me

          8  call him. And after about 15 minutes of waiting, the

          9  dean came up to me and told me to go to class. I

         10  told him I didn't have my ID. So, they sent me down

         11  to the SSA that took it from me, so I went about the

         12  school like ten minutes looking for my ID and nobody

         13  wanted to give it to me and tell me where it was.

         14  So, I was frustrated. And the dean wrote me a pass

         15  so I can go and get a new one.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: So you went back

         17  to the dean's office?

         18                 MR. RAMOS: Right. I went back to the

         19  dean's office and he wrote me a pass so I could get

         20  a new ID. So, when I got to class I was already like

         21  15 minutes late to class. And things like this, they

         22  can be solved, like we don't have to -- the students

         23  don't have to be punished for these things. These

         24  things can be worked out and spoken through.

         25                 So, we want conflict mediation
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          2  training so that this way the SSAs could be trained

          3  to take care of students, and we want, the most

          4  important thing is that the students need a voice in

          5  the school, and that's something that we don't have

          6  in the school, so that's something that needs to

          7  change. Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And before the

          9  next witness gives testimony, is that a high school

         10  you're referring to?

         11                 MR. RAMOS: Yes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         13                 Next, please.

         14                 MS. MELENDEZ: Hi. My name is Denise

         15  Melendez. I am 16. And I am part of FOT, Future of

         16  Tomorrow and part of the Urban Youth Collaborative.

         17  I also rather not say which school I attend, for

         18  safety reasons.

         19                 I want to tell you about a problem

         20  that I had with a School Safety Agent at my school,

         21  which I was trying to go to class and the late bell

         22  still hasn't rang yet, so I'm walking to class and

         23  the Safety Agent stopped me and my friend, and asked

         24  us for ID for no reason while there were still other

         25  kids going to class besides me.
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          2                 So, we gave her our IDs and we asked

          3  her why. She never replied and we kept asking her

          4  why, so she just stayed shut. So the late bell rang.

          5  And then once the late bell rang, then she had the

          6  chance, and then she wrote us up. After the late

          7  bell rang she wrote us up and we were like, why, we

          8  wasn't even late? So, she held us there waiting

          9  until the late bell rang, then wrote us up.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Wrote you up for

         11  what, being late?

         12                 MS. MELENDEZ: For being late.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         14                 MS. MELENDEZ: Which she had us in the

         15  hallway, so we wasn't late.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Go ahead.

         17                 MS. MELENDEZ: And she took us

         18  downstairs to the dean's office. I mean, she took us

         19  downstairs to the holding room because, I don't

         20  know, she said we was late, so she took us

         21  downstairs to the holding room, and we told the dean

         22  like what happened, and the dean was like this

         23  wasn't the first time that this SSA has done this to

         24  the youth. So, I missed my class that day and I had

         25  a test, and I asked the dean if I could go to class
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          2  and he was like, no, you can't, you have to wait

          3  like til your class ends. So, I felt bad. And I was

          4  embarrassed, because she was screaming at us in

          5  front of all the kids in the hallways and

          6  everything.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Who was

          8  screaming at you?

          9                 MS. MELENDEZ: The SSA. She was

         10  screaming at us, you all stay here. And we were

         11  like, but why? But why? And she just kept screaming

         12  at us. So, me and my friend, we felt like really

         13  embarrassed, why is she keeping us here for no

         14  reason? She didn't tell us until we got downstairs

         15  and then she told us. But she didn't say, all she

         16  said was because you all were late. But she was

         17  holding us there so we weren't late.

         18                 So, I felt this could have been done

         19  like in a different manner, like she could handle it

         20  way differently than taking our IDs and holding us

         21  there, and we didn't even do nothing.

         22                 And if there was a complaint process,

         23  this would not keep happening to students. If

         24  someone would have already written a complaint about

         25  the SSA, and this would have never happened again.
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          2                 And I feel that if there was a clear

          3  way that you can complain about this problem, with

          4  the SSA, then no one needs to go to this again. And

          5  the Student Safety Act, the Student Safety Act

          6  Coalition has developed a bill that would allow for

          7  students to complain without parental consent. This

          8  gives students the need and the voice.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         10  Raquib Alam. Did I pronounce it correctly?

         11                 MR. ALAM: It's Raquib.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Raquib. Okay. My

         13  pleasure.

         14                 Go ahead.

         15                 MR. ALAM: Good afternoon, everyone.

         16  My name is Raquib Alam, and I am a Youth Leader at

         17  DRUM, Desis Rising Up and Moving, and also Urban

         18  Youth Collaborative. I'm also a recent graduate from

         19  William Cullen Bryant High School in Queens. Today I

         20  want to talk to you about an incident that happened

         21  to me during the summer of 2006 and some ways that

         22  you can improve school safety in New York City.

         23                 I was going to school, and when I got

         24  out of the subway station I was shocked to see a lot

         25  of police on the school block. As I walked towards
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          2  the school, I saw cop cars going around the block

          3  and picking up students. I thought that something

          4  had happened and I got scared. When I got in front

          5  of the school there were several cops, and SSA is

          6  telling us to take off everything that we had, such

          7  as belts, wallets, anything that we had in our

          8  pockets and any electronic devices that we may have

          9  and put it in our bags.

         10                 I then realized that it was a

         11  surprise scanning with the roving metal detectors.

         12                 The line was stretched out, the line

         13  in front of the door was stretched out around the

         14  block. Once we got inside, we were told to put our

         15  bags through the scanning machine. Then everyone had

         16  to go through the metal detectors, and many students

         17  had to do it twice because it was beeping.

         18                 When I went through, they told me to

         19  take off my shoes because I was beeping every time I

         20  went through. Then they sent me to go through a

         21  secondary scanning, where I was told to hold my

         22  hands out and then I was scanned with the wand.

         23  While I was being scanned, the cop yelled at me

         24  saying, "Didn't we tell you to take off everything?"

         25  When I said, "Yes," he yelled, "Then why are you
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          2  here?" And I felt really disrespected and many other

          3  students felt disrespected, too, because the cops

          4  and the SSAs were ordering the students around and

          5  yelling. It was really chaotic.

          6                 Students' property was also being

          7  taken away which created many arguments and the cops

          8  and the SSAs didn't really make things easier,

          9  because they just argued with the students. There

         10  were some parents who came to visit that also had to

         11  go through the scanners and you could tell that they

         12  didn't like it also.

         13                 When I got to class almost half the

         14  period was over and we had to take a test. The

         15  bigger problem was that I felt like I was in prison

         16  and many other students felt the same way. It really

         17  affected our learning environment, because not only

         18  did we miss part of our class, but also set a bad

         19  tone to the rest of the day because students felt

         20  really upset.

         21                 Now I want to talk about solutions.

         22  You can see from my experience that SSAs and cops do

         23  not know how to treat students. We need to be

         24  treated with respect. Right now the NYPD trains SSAs

         25  and I don't think the NYPD knows how to deal with
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          2  young people, and if they are the only ones training

          3  SSAs, that really does not make any sense.

          4                 We need to have SSA training that

          5  involves students that is why we ask you to add SSA

          6  training section that involves student

          7  participation. SSAs need to interact and treat

          8  students with respect, and they need to understand

          9  youth in order to create an environment where

         10  students feel safe and secure. Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, let me

         12  thank you all for coming in. I do have a lot of

         13  questions, but unfortunately time is too short for

         14  me to ask all of the questions that I have of you

         15  relating to specific incidents, you know, that

         16  occurred. But, you know, like I would ask you, young

         17  man, you know, when the SSA approached you, he never

         18  told you what he was approaching you about, just

         19  follow him. And so basically you had to follow him.

         20  Were you talking back to him? Were you rude? Or were

         21  you disrespectful?

         22                 I mean, because obviously I guess if

         23  SSAs were here giving testimony, I guess they may

         24  say to us, well, the students are rude and

         25  disrespectful to us. Would you agree with that
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          2  general statement, if I said that?

          3                 MR. RAMOS: If the students were rude

          4  and disrespectful, then, yeah, you can believe that.

          5  But when this SSA approached me, all I did was I got

          6  my food and I sat down and I began to eat. He asked

          7  to see my ID. He saw who I was and he asked me to

          8  follow him. At no given time he told me why he was

          9  taking me.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Did you ask him

         11  why?

         12                 MR. RAMOS: Right, I did. But he

         13  didn't answer me. He just said, just follow me.

         14  Follow me. So, when we got to the dean's office,

         15  that's when I found out why I was --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Where was your

         17  food at?

         18                 MR. RAMOS: He actually gave it to

         19  other people on the table.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: So, in essence,

         21  you didn't finish your lunch.

         22                 MR. RAMOS: No, I didn't. I didn't get

         23  to eat lunch.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Then you said

         25  you went to go look for him when the dean said, go
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          2  and see if you can get your school pass, your school

          3  ID; is that correct?

          4                 MR. RAMOS: Right.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And, so, you

          6  went looking for the SSA?

          7                 MR. RAMOS: Right.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Did you find the

          9  SSA?

         10                 MR. RAMOS: Yes, I did. He told me he

         11  didn't have it, that the dean had it. So, I went

         12  back to the dean.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: He told you the

         14  dean had it.

         15                 MR. RAMOS: The dean had it.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: But you just

         17  left the dean.

         18                 MR. RAMOS: Right. Right.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Did you tell him

         20  I just left the dean and the dean doesn't have it?

         21                 MR. RAMOS: I told him that the SSA

         22  told me the dean had it, you guys had it. She said,

         23  no, we don't have it. He still has it. So, I went

         24  back down to him. I told him. He didn't say

         25  anything. He didn't say anything to me. So, I went
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          2  back to the dean. They wrote me a pass and I got a

          3  new ID.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: The school

          5  issued a new ID.

          6                 MR. RAMOS: They gave me a new ID.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: So, what

          8  happened to your old ID?

          9                 MR. RAMOS: I guess he still has it.

         10  Somebody has it.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I'm just trying

         12  to see clarity. So what was the reason why he

         13  brought you upstairs? Because he alleges that you

         14  allegedly gave your program card to another student

         15  to get into the lunch cafeteria.

         16                 MR. RAMOS: Right. Right.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: So, that was the

         18  allegation against you?

         19                 MR. RAMOS: Right.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And did you do

         21  that?

         22                 MR. RAMOS: No, I did not.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And basically I

         24  assume that he either saw you do that, or somebody

         25  told him you did that. One or the other?
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          2                 MR. RAMOS: I guess.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And in essence

          4  you missed half your class?

          5                 MR. RAMOS: Right. I missed lunch and

          6  I was late to my next class.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And you said at

          8  the elevator, you said that the SSA cursed at you?

          9                 MR. RAMOS: He was cursing. Repeatedly

         10  at me, yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: For what?

         12                 MR. RAMOS: I don't know, he was

         13  disrespecting me and the kids. He was talking about

         14  the kids. Talking bad about the kids.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. And did

         16  you report that to your parents?

         17                 MR. RAMOS: Yes, I did.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Did they file a

         19  complaint?

         20                 MR. RAMOS: No, they couldn't.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: What do you mean

         22  they couldn't?

         23                 MR. RAMOS: They didn't know where to

         24  file a complaint in school, because the SSA, he

         25  denied, so...

                                                            369

          1  EDUCATION, PUBLIC SAFETY AND JUVENILE JUSTICE

          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And young lady,

          3  I'm sorry, you said that you, in your situation --

          4  what was your situation again, Denise?

          5                 MS. MELENDEZ: Oh, the late bell

          6  hadn't been ringing and she just took the IDs.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: So, as a result

          8  of after the 9:00 or whatever, the bell rang, then

          9  she took you downstairs to process you for being --

         10                 MS. MELENDEZ: Then she started

         11  writing our name down in her little book.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Meaning that you

         13  were late?

         14                 MS. MELENDEZ: Yes. Once that late

         15  bell rang, she just wrote it.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And the normal

         17  procedure you go down to, sort of like a late room,

         18  sort of like?

         19                 MS. MELENDEZ: Yes. The holding room,

         20  and they leave you there for the whole period.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Is it called a

         22  "holding room?"

         23                 MS. MELENDEZ: Yes, that's what they

         24  call it.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: So, when you're

                                                            370

          1  EDUCATION, PUBLIC SAFETY AND JUVENILE JUSTICE

          2  late, you go to a holding room?

          3                 MS. MELENDEZ: Yes. When the SSA pick

          4  you up.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And what do you

          6  do in the holding room?

          7                 MS. MELENDEZ: Nothing. You just sit

          8  there and wait for your classes, for the bell to

          9  ring to go to your next one.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: So even if

         11  you're one minute late, two minutes late, you go to

         12  a holding room for the whole period, instead of them

         13  writing your name down with your ID, then giving a

         14  pass, a pass and going to your class. So, if you're

         15  stopped in the hallway by a staffperson or a School

         16  Safety Agent, and they say where are you going, I

         17  was late, I've got my pass here, I'm going to my

         18  class; you have to sit there for the entire period?

         19                 MS. MELENDEZ: You have to sit there

         20  for the entire period.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. Well, this

         22  leaves a lot to be desired. And I have a lot of

         23  other questions, but I cannot ask them, because we

         24  have a lot of witnesses. But let me thank you all

         25  for coming in and giving testimony on behalf of
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          2  yourselves and on behalf of the other people you

          3  represent, who are the Urban Youth Collaborative,

          4  and Future of Tomorrow.

          5                 And Zakiyah, let me thank you for

          6  coming in as a parent activist on behalf of your

          7  eight children and other children in New York City.

          8                 Next we'll hear from Nelson Mar,

          9  Legal Services for New York; and Tara Foster. It

         10  doesn't say what organization you're affiliated

         11  with. Also Legal Services of New York, from Queens;

         12  is that correct?

         13                 MS. FOSTER: Yes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         15                 So, with that, let me turn to Nelson

         16  or to you, Tara, whoever wants to go first.

         17                 He yields to you.

         18                 MR. MAR: Yes.

         19                 MS. FOSTER: Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Press the

         21  button, please.

         22                 MS. FOSTER: Good evening. I'm Tara

         23  Foster. I work for Queens Legal Services in the

         24  Education Rights Project where I assist parents and

         25  students with a variety of legal issues regarding
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          2  education, including special education, discipline,

          3  all types of issues that come up.

          4                 And you know, my testimony will

          5  really be very brief tonight, because I have heard

          6  so much great testimony, particularly from the youth

          7  today. And I really want to start by just applauding

          8  those people that came forward, because the stories

          9  that these children are telling are the stories that

         10  I hear over and over and over again. And I heard a

         11  lot of questions, Councilman Jackson, where you seem

         12  to be asking in suspended disbelief that this type

         13  of stuff really is happening. So, I'm not going to

         14  provide you with examples like I was originally

         15  going to do, I'm just going to move on to say that

         16  what I, the crux of my testimony now is that I

         17  really think that we need to reevaluate how we look

         18  at behavior in general in the schools. From what

         19  we're hearing from these students, simply increasing

         20  police and security agent presence in the school is

         21  not fostering a nurturing environment, and in many

         22  cases is actually damaging fragile relations between

         23  students and the adults who are really there to be

         24  protecting and educating them.

         25                 So, I think that many of the things
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          2  that were brought up by NESRI, by the Legal Aid

          3  Society, are all extremely important. We need to

          4  really, really, really stop knee-jerk high-level

          5  suspensions, knee-jerk arrests and taking punitive

          6  action and we need to think very, very, very hard

          7  about root causes of behavior and we need to start

          8  to use in a much broader way, these type of

          9  preventive techniques.

         10                 To the extent that we need police

         11  security in the schools, we need to educate them in

         12  de-escalation techniques, sensitivity to children

         13  and youth. We also need to work with school staff to

         14  bring back more of the peer mediation that used to

         15  be used quite broadly in the schools in the past,

         16  and seems to be really dying out now, and we need to

         17  be using behavior intervention strategies, not just

         18  for students with disabilities, because there are

         19  so, so many of these students who are either accused

         20  of misconduct or have perhaps engaged in some

         21  low-level misconduct, have disabilities. But we

         22  should use those for all children.

         23                 And, so, I just want to encourage you

         24  to do that, look at the root causes, get together

         25  panels, get psychologists, get advocates, get youth
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          2  involved. And I thank you very much for your time

          3  this evening.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, thank you

          5  for coming in and giving your testimony on behalf of

          6  the Legal Services of New York and Queens,

          7  representing many of the youth that you see and

          8  represent I guess in the administrative end or

          9  criminal proceeding.

         10                 MS. FOSTER: I handle student

         11  discipline proceedings. I do no criminal work. All

         12  my work is civil.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Civil.

         14                 MS. FOSTER: Some special education

         15  work, some student discipline proceedings. I do not

         16  handle the criminal aspect, but I do hear of these

         17  stories from students.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay, thank you.

         19                 Nelson Mar.

         20                 MR. MAR: Good evening, Council Member

         21  Jackson.

         22                 Ladies and gentlemen, members of the

         23  City Council, thank you for affording me the

         24  opportunity today to share with you some of my

         25  thoughts and concerns regarding the vital issue of
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          2  school safety in the New York City Public Schools.

          3                 I'm a senior staff attorney at LSNY

          4  Bronx Program of Legal Services for New York City.

          5                 As many of you know, Legal Services

          6  for New York City is a federally funded provider of

          7  free civil legal services to low-income residents of

          8  New York City.

          9                 My office serves residents of the

         10  County of the Bronx, and we are but one of a handful

         11  of agencies that provide direct representation for

         12  parents and students in public school disciplinary

         13  hearings. And as a result of that, we see a lot of

         14  these cases where I would say School Safety Agents

         15  have gone wild.

         16                 As we have seen in many of our

         17  suspension hearings, the Department of Education's

         18  discipline policies have not achieved the desired

         19  results. At the heart of Department of Education's

         20  disciplinary policy is a zero tolerance policy, and

         21  the use of School Safety Agents and the police to

         22  enforce that policy.

         23                 Let me say clearly that I am not

         24  against, nor do I propose the removal of School

         25  Safety Agents or police from the schools. Instead,
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          2  I'm here to propose that the Department of Education

          3  must stop criminalizing our schools and by changing

          4  their zero tolerance policy.

          5                 The immediate step that the

          6  Department must take is to end that blanket zero

          7  tolerance policy, and place SSAs under the authority

          8  of the educators, namely the principal.

          9                 SSAs are important to ensure safety

         10  in our schools, but the zero tolerance policy,

         11  coupled with their police training, and the police

         12  mentality creates an us versus them situation.

         13  Students are seen as perps and not as children, who

         14  may be making immature decisions and SSAs are

         15  trained to use the force of the penal system to make

         16  students comply and I think that that is the

         17  fundamental problem that we see here and that's why

         18  we have so many problems that we do with School

         19  Safety Agents.

         20                 It is clear from my experience in the

         21  research that I just shared with you all, that the

         22  DOE has to change this approach to discipline. A

         23  zero tolerance policy is counterproductive and

         24  ineffective.

         25                 I just wanted to give a couple of
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          2  examples of a couple of cases that I had this most

          3  recent school year. They both involved middle school

          4  students. One was 15 years old, still in the eighth

          5  grade. That says a lot already in and of itself. She

          6  was returning to school from a doctor's appointment,

          7  and she walked into a difficult situation in the

          8  school. There was some food fight going on in the

          9  lunch room. The school called in a roving School

         10  Safety Agent response force. They came in. They

         11  tried to restore order. She walked into the middle

         12  of it. She didn't seem to move quickly enough for

         13  one of the School Safety Agents, that Safety Agent

         14  then escalated the matter, eventually placing her

         15  hands on my client, an a fight ensued. You know, she

         16  was trying to protect herself.

         17                 They brought charges against her. She

         18  spent a weekend in Spofford. Two of her classmates

         19  who came in who tried to actually break up the fight

         20  were arrested as well, and placed in Spofford for

         21  the weekend as well.

         22                 Safe to say, with our representation

         23  the school suspension charges were dismissed, in

         24  addition the Family Court charges were dismissed as

         25  well, because the School Safety Agent could not keep
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          2  her testimony straight on the witness stand.

          3                 Also, I noticed that in this

          4  morning's testimony, the Department trumpeted that

          5  they have electronic surveillance in their schools.

          6  In this incident there was a camera at this location

          7  where the incident occurred. Surprisingly enough the

          8  actual incident was not provided to the parent. They

          9  gave us a tape of the incident but five minutes

         10  after when the incident allegedly started. So, all

         11  you see on the tape is the aftermath of the

         12  incident, and they claim that the prior five minutes

         13  were erased and disappeared.

         14                 So, I would question some of the

         15  presentations that the Department of Education has

         16  made about this issue, because I've seen a lot of

         17  times that there are tricks played. You know, this

         18  electronic surveillance, at times at suspension

         19  hearings they don't offer the parent an opportunity

         20  to view it before they actually go to the hearing.

         21  They see it right before the testimony. It's not

         22  productive. It's not fair. It violates the parents'

         23  due process rights.

         24                 In addition, there was another

         25  example where another middle school student, she
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          2  actually wound up having her arm broken by the

          3  School Safety Agent, when she tried to actually help

          4  the school officials remove an MP3 player from her

          5  brother. She saw that the School Safety Agent was

          6  actually roughing up her brother, and then tried to

          7  break it up. But then the School Safety Agent came,

          8  wrestled her to the ground. Not too dissimilar from

          9  what was mentioned about a recent incident out in

         10  California, they twisted her arm back and they broke

         11  her wrist.

         12                 Again, this is an example where the

         13  zero tolerance policies sort of imposes this

         14  mentality that, you know, we have to execute the law

         15  to the letter of the law. If this child has an MP3

         16  player, you know, we must remove it immediately.

         17  There is no thought involved in terms of contacting

         18  the parent, because the child said, the brother said

         19  that I would have given it to another school staff

         20  person, I just wasn't going to give it to that

         21  School Safety Agent. You know, I would have given it

         22  to my dad if they called my dad. And the father

         23  testified at our suspension hearing that, you know,

         24  if they called me in I would have been there

         25  immediately and I would have gotten the MP3 player
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          2  out of his hands. And again, the charges in that

          3  case were dismissed, as well.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Do you know if

          5  the -- has been any complaints been filed with the

          6  Department of Education or the School Safety

          7  Officer? Or do you know if any civil action has been

          8  filed?

          9                 MR. MAR: Well, I know that the

         10  parents in both cases have sought legal

         11  representation on those matters. Our office does not

         12  handle those types of matters. We've advised them to

         13  do so because they clearly have what we believe are

         14  actual rights.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Actual rights in

         16  essence to file a lawsuit against the City of New

         17  York?

         18                 MR. MAR: Yes.

         19                 We also believe that when they came

         20  forward initially, we tried to figure out where to

         21  go with the complaint, and we advised them to file

         22  both with the Office of Special Investigations and

         23  also with the Civilian Complaint Review Board.

         24                 However, I'm not sure if anything has

         25  ever happened with those complaints.
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          2                 But I think, you know, to summarize

          3  and to reiterate, you know, the --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I thought you

          5  were finished. I'm ready to move to the next

          6  witnesses.

          7                 MR. MAR: I'm sorry.

          8                 Just to reiterate, you know, there

          9  needs to be definitely more oversight. There needs

         10  to be accountability, and most importantly, there

         11  needs to be appropriate discipline policies in

         12  place.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, let me

         14  thank you both for coming in on behalf of your

         15  organizations, and on behalf of students that you

         16  represented. And in general for the things that you

         17  hear with respects to students concerning how

         18  they're treated by school personnel. Thank you very

         19  much.

         20                 MS. FOSTER: Thank you.

         21                 MR. MAR: Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Next we'll hear

         23  from Steven DeJesus from Urban Assembly for Careers

         24  in Sports; Felice Lepore, who is the principal of

         25  Urban Assembly School for Careers in Sports High
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          2  School.

          3                 Welcome to both of you. And any one

          4  of you can begin. Just identify yourself before you

          5  begin your testimony.

          6                 MR. LEPORE: Hello. My name is Felice

          7  Lepore. I'm the principal at the Urban Assembly

          8  School for Careers in Sports. Before I give

          9  testimony on this issue, I want to thank the City

         10  Council for your continued support of the Small

         11  School Movement. The funding that I received over

         12  the past two years has continued to allow me to push

         13  forward the mission and vision of my school. So, I

         14  want to thank you guys for that.

         15                 So, we became a school officially in

         16  September of 2002. We're housed inside of the South

         17  Bronx High School Campus. At that point in time

         18  South Bronx High School was going to be phased out,

         19  so our school, as well as Mott Haven Village Prep,

         20  as well as New Explorers High School were the three

         21  schools that began integrating ninth grade students,

         22  and over the three years, we actually began to phase

         23  the other schools out.

         24                 I'm proud to say in that process, we

         25  are the only high school in New York City that
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          2  actually took in the senior class of South Bronx.

          3  They actually were our first graduates from our

          4  school. Of the 99 students that participated in that

          5  year, 97 went on to receive a high school diploma.

          6                 We have, you know, the policy in our

          7  school -- and we're proud. We don't have metal

          8  detectors. We've had pressure from parents, I've had

          9  pressure from some of my staff, I've had pressure

         10  from some of my students to bring in metal

         11  detectors, but for the six years I've been a

         12  principal of this school, to my colleagues' credits

         13  as well, we've completely stopped that from it

         14  actually happening.

         15                 You know, I go on record and I talk

         16  about running a flat-line organization. I'm the

         17  principal, but at the same time, when you run a

         18  flat-line organization, everybody works in terms of

         19  safety.

         20                 Flat-line? I have a title. I was in

         21  the military. I'm the principal, I'm the captain.

         22  But in my school, it doesn't matter. My word is no

         23  greater than Steven's, or any other staff member

         24  that works inside of my school when it comes to

         25  safety.

                                                            384

          1  EDUCATION, PUBLIC SAFETY AND JUVENILE JUSTICE

          2                 We have a policy where we have hired

          3  universal school aids. Steven actually works for my

          4  school, but there are nine school aids in the

          5  building that may fall on a particular school's

          6  table of organization, and within their budget, but

          7  actually they work for the entire campus.

          8                 We have six School Safety Agents, a

          9  Sergeant, as well as five SSA Agents, and we also

         10  have a police officer assigned from the 40th

         11  Precinct, Officer Colon. And we have monthly

         12  meetings, our safety meetings, where all three

         13  principals, school aids, paras, as well as SSA

         14  agents, as well as the police officer and deans come

         15  and we put issues on the table.

         16                 It's taken some time to build an

         17  atmosphere and an environment where everybody

         18  understands that I am the principal of the school,

         19  all incidences, no matter what the incident is, is

         20  going to come to me first. Then at that point in

         21  time, school aids like Steven, who have been trained

         22  in peer mediation, will then take the next step.

         23                 When we finally do call the SSA

         24  agents in, or even the police officer, it's usually

         25  in a mediation-type role. To their credit, they do a
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          2  fantastic job of mediating with our students.

          3                 I can only deliver a message from the

          4  Department of Education. When the police officer

          5  comes in and talks to a kid, not about arresting

          6  that child, but telling them what New York State Law

          7  means, what it means once you turn 16 years of age,

          8  and the difference between a 16 year old and a 15

          9  year old, in terms of being processed through the

         10  system, that's a very powerful message, but it's

         11  done in a way of respect for that child, respect for

         12  the school. When we have major events and we have

         13  them throughout the year, the SSAs, as well as the

         14  officer, are invited. They play on the staff versus

         15  student basketball game. They come to our

         16  professional development sessions, and we have

         17  special food and things like that delivered. They're

         18  always welcome inside of there. We all go on a

         19  first-name basis, so myself, including agents in the

         20  building, some of them go by their nicknames,

         21  actually. I know one of the SSA agents, they call

         22  him "Mumbles," but Stanley Gibson is a helluva guy.

         23  So, that's what I mean by running a flat-line

         24  organization. We may all have titles, but when it

         25  comes to the safety of the kids, and I'm a father of
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          2  three girls that attend New York City public

          3  schools, safety is a number one priority. You ask

          4  100 parents, 98 of them will tell you, the safety of

          5  their child is far more important than the degrees

          6  and everything else that the teachers and staff may

          7  have there.

          8                 So, with that being said, I want to

          9  turn over the floor to Steven DeJesus.

         10                 MR. DeJESUS: My name is Steven

         11  DeJesus. I work at the Urban Assembly for Careers in

         12  Sports. I'm a school aid there. I'm a school aid

         13  that's helped turn around some of the negativities

         14  that people have with the South Bronx, in the school

         15  system in the South Bronx and the kids.

         16                 I'd just like to talk about the

         17  positive aspect, because we could sit here all day

         18  and talk about the negative and have a whole

         19  chalkboard full of negative stuff, and never have a

         20  full chalkboard full of positive stuff. And the

         21  reason we don't use metal detectors, because we have

         22  gotten everybody involved, from parents, from kids

         23  in the neighborhood, where, you know, I'm always

         24  visible in the morning, I'm outside when kids are

         25  coming into school, I'm always visible outside when
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          2  kids are leaving the school, as well as my

          3  colleagues in the building, as other school aids.

          4  I'm always available when a kid needs to talk to

          5  somebody, because in reality, you know, it's life

          6  and there's a lot of kids there that don't have a

          7  father, don't have a mother, and they just need

          8  somebody to talk to, need somebody to listen, and

          9  say a word to them that's positive and that can keep

         10  them going throughout their day. Because you don't

         11  know what happens when they come off the train

         12  station, when they're getting dressed to come to

         13  school, so I try to be there and play that positive,

         14  you know, role model for them where we can open up.

         15                 Our school is open to the parents.

         16  There is no appointments needed. You can come in,

         17  you can sit in the classroom. We like for the

         18  parents to come, not only when the student is doing

         19  bad, you know, come when you're student is doing

         20  good, and sit in the classroom and see your son or

         21  daughter strive for excellence in the classroom.

         22                 So, I believe that's why our school

         23  has been a little successful, you know, because

         24  we're not perfect. You know, we have our days. We

         25  have our moments, but we have our days that when it
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          2  gets hectic, it's really light for us. Because the

          3  main thing here with school safety with staff is

          4  communication. You know, all the titles and

          5  everything, doesn't mean nothing to me, because if

          6  you can't communicate, then there's nothing going to

          7  get done. So, you have to communicate with each

          8  other, and that's the best thing that we got in our

          9  building, is communication between students, staff,

         10  school safety, the deans, you know. It's not perfect

         11  all the time. I'm not going to sit here and try to

         12  paint a perfect school, but we try to do our best.

         13  And the best thing about not having metal detectors

         14  in the school, that metal detector cannot look the

         15  kid in the eye and know what's going on. I can. I

         16  can look at the kid and tell, you're having a rough

         17  morning, right? You want to talk? Go to class, we'll

         18  talk later, you know? And as Mr. Felice said,

         19  everybody, flat-line organization, you might get to

         20  there is a discipline problem in the class, I don't

         21  call School Safety. I go to the classroom, I talk to

         22  the teacher and then I bring the student out to the

         23  hallway. I talk to the student and I get them back

         24  in the classroom and we go from there.

         25                 If there is something where a parent
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          2  needs to be involved, you know what? Instead of

          3  getting school safety or the principal, I'll make

          4  the call to the parent. I'll reach out. I have a

          5  great, you know, standing with most of my parents

          6  where they know me by my first name. They have my

          7  cell phone, and I call them. You know, I let them

          8  know what's going on. Our teachers give progress

          9  reports to the parents of the students, and I

         10  believe that if we can open the lines of

         11  communication in schools with everybody involved,

         12  then we can do a better job. And I thank you for

         13  this opportunity to speak.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Now, let me ask,

         15  is this an intermediate school or a high school?

         16                 MR. LEPORE: We're a high school.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And how many

         18  students in the school?

         19                 MR. LEPORE: Currently have 326

         20  students, nine through 12.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: But you're part

         22  of a larger campus; is that correct?

         23                 MR. LEPORE: Inside the campus there

         24  is approximately 1,000 students.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And there's
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          2  what, three small schools there?

          3                 MR. LEPORE: Three small schools. Each

          4  have approximately 330 to 340 kids.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And so you

          6  indicated that you have a Sergeant and a team of

          7  about six or seven, something like that --

          8                 MR. LEPORE: Yes, five or six SSA

          9  agents, as well as a Sergeant.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: How many male?

         11  How many female?

         12                 MR. LEPORE: We have two male, the

         13  Sergeant is a male, Mr. Gibson is a male, and the

         14  other four or five agents are all females.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Now, do you have

         16  at your school, school safety meetings every month?

         17                 MR. LEPORE: Those are monthly

         18  meetings that Sergeant Wright, as well as one of the

         19  females that comes to take minutes for him, Officer

         20  Colon from the 40th Precinct, the three principals,

         21  the supervisor, school aids, the two deans are

         22  present for -- we've set the agenda that day as an

         23  on-need basis, and everything sort of gets brought

         24  up at that moment.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Is that at your
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          2  school or for the campus?

          3                 MR. LEPORE: No, that happens for the

          4  campus on the fifth floor.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. And how

          6  long has that been occurring?

          7                 MR. LEPORE: That's been happening for

          8  six years.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And are students

         10  on that School Safety Committee?

         11                 MR. LEPORE: Students meet with the

         12  School Safety Agents individually on a monthly

         13  basis, as well as the nutritional staff, where

         14  they're able, the student councils for the three

         15  schools are able to work with those agents where

         16  myself and other adults are not needed or need to be

         17  present.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         19                 Well, it seems as though that you

         20  have a formula that's working.

         21                 MR. LEPORE: You know, as Steven said,

         22  some days are better than others, but for the most

         23  part, and the one thing I'm proud of, I don't ever

         24  have to worry about the safety of my kids when my

         25  colleagues' kids come down to their floor and vice
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          2  versa. We don't have metal detectors, we have

          3  invisible walls. Kids respect their area and their

          4  autonomy in the building and vice-versa. When

          5  incidents do occur, even among schools, that is the

          6  number one priority. The principals drop what they

          7  have to do. We get into that mediation and by the

          8  end of the day the kids have been mediated.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Did your school

         10  or the campus have metal detectors at a previous

         11  time?

         12                 MR. LEPORE: I do not know whether

         13  South Bronx High School had metal detectors, but

         14  when we came into the building in '02, there was

         15  never metal detectors there.

         16                 MR. DeJESUS: They had it when I was

         17  young, and I was supposed to go to that school, but

         18  I didn't go to the school because of the metal

         19  detectors.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. Well, let

         21  me thank you both for coming in and giving testimony

         22  on behalf of your school and the campus in which

         23  your school is located. Clearly from what you've

         24  expressed, it appears as though you have a situation

         25  which I guess should be mirrored in a lot of other
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          2  places. From my understanding, your situation is not

          3  the typical situation.

          4                 MR. LEPORE: It is probably not the

          5  proto-typical situation.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: But maybe it

          7  should become where it seems as though that you have

          8  a collaborative working relationship between other

          9  principals and all of the school safety agents and

         10  their supervisors, and including the NYPD, and that

         11  there is sharing and communicating and intervention

         12  in order to resolve conflict.

         13                 MR. LEPORE: And we welcome any

         14  members of the City Council, if you want to come in

         15  and visit the school and speak with our kids, speak

         16  with the Agents. Don't take our word for it. Come in

         17  there, see what it's like. No matter what kid you

         18  want to talk to, you could pull them to the side and

         19  speak to them.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And where is

         21  your campus school located?

         22                 MR. LEPORE: It's located on St. Ann's

         23  Avenue, between Westchester Avenue and 156th Street.

         24  Right by the hub of Third Avenue there and 149th

         25  Street.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, thank you

          3  very much, both of you.

          4                 MR. LEPORE: Thank you. And thank you

          5  for you guys support.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

          7                 Next we will hear from Antonio

          8  Winston, representing City something. Antonio, are

          9  you here? Okay. Betsy Combier, Parentadvocates.org.

         10  Rick Brown, Council for Unity, Robert Desena,

         11  Council for Unity, and Kyle Harmon, Council for

         12  Unity.

         13                 So, Betsy, you are first.

         14                 MS. COMBIER: Thank you, Mr. Jackson.

         15                 I have two points I want to make

         16  really quickly. I have no written testimony. But my

         17  first point is that for the last several years I

         18  have been an advocate working for free out there

         19  with all of the schools and students out there, and

         20  what bothers me so much is this reactive, negative

         21  learning environment that we're more or less going

         22  along with, and I ask, beg, request, let's get a

         23  mascot out there. Let's get a campaign going where

         24  we say zero tolerance for harshness, injustice,

         25  criminal wrongdoing, to our children. Let's not
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          2  tolerate that. Let's celebrate the positives. The

          3  man that just spoke, that was a wonderful example.

          4  He should be made a hero of this. The City Council

          5  should go ahead with creating a media event of

          6  positive examples in the schools to offset the

          7  seemingly 100 percent negative view that we have of,

          8  and I hate to say this, schools that have minority

          9  children in them. Let's stop doing that. Let's stop

         10  going along with that, please.

         11                 My second point is, I just want to

         12  quickly go through one incident. I've done 90

         13  suspension hearings, because I was asked as an

         14  advocate from parents who don't know where to turn,

         15  they have no money, they can't hire a lawyer. I say,

         16  yes, the minute I get a call, I say, yes, I'll be

         17  there, what time? I know exactly the process. Not

         18  one hearing officer wants to see an IEP. They refuse

         19  to. They say it's not part of the suspension

         20  hearing. So, I always introduce it at the last part.

         21                 Anyway, picture this: Sheepshead Bay

         22  High School in Brooklyn. Two African-American girls,

         23  ninth grade, 15 year olds. One is petit, she is a

         24  dancer, standing outside the program office waiting

         25  to go in to get her program changed. They were
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          2  talking, you know, laughing a little bit, a big

          3  hulking white man comes flying out of the office,

          4  grabs one of the girls by her shirt, and there's a

          5  video in the hallway. Starts pushing her back toward

          6  the stairwell to get her out of the eye of the

          7  camera. Ripping her shirt open, he starts beating

          8  her chest, leaving her with massive bruises. Her

          9  shirt is hanging off, and he notices that he isn't

         10  able to get her into the stairway because her friend

         11  is trying to keep him from, you know, hitting her

         12  anymore. He turns, grabs both their bags, which had

         13  been dropped to the floor, runs into the office with

         14  the bags. The girls run after him, so they're out of

         15  the camera.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Wait a minute.

         17  Who is this individual? What position of authority?

         18                 MS. COMBIER: He worked in the office

         19  as a school aid.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. Go ahead,

         21  continue.

         22                 MS. COMBIER: So, they go into the

         23  office, he keeps beating up this girl. Her friend

         24  tries to help her. He literally lifts her up,

         25  because she's a petit dancer, and throws her against
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          2  a desk, permanently injuring her hip. Both girls

          3  went to the hospital. There are hospital records. He

          4  went to the police immediately, had them both

          5  arrested for harming him, even though he had no

          6  injuries whatsoever. They went to the hospital, and

          7  the girl that was thrown against the desk was

          8  arrested, and both were brought up on suspension

          9  charges of beating him up. They both lost their

         10  suspension hearings because the video was brought

         11  in, and as Mr. Mar mentioned earlier, the claim of

         12  the Board of Ed was that he wasn't pushing the girl

         13  into the stairway, even though you could see him.

         14  But it was a misinterpretation.

         15                 Both girls were suspended for a year

         16  out of their schools. I got one of them into a

         17  Catholic school, luckily. The other girl spent a

         18  year in the suspension of the thing.

         19                 I decided to look into this man. I

         20  found at the Brooklyn Police Station a file on this

         21  man for aggravated harassment three times. He had

         22  been arrested. He had a file this big (indicating).

         23  And I'm asking that we really take care of our

         24  children by researching what the Board of Ed is not

         25  telling us. But let's be more proactive - campaign.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, thank you.

          3  Clearly we have to take action where action needs to

          4  be taken. And that example that you gave is

          5  terrible. The videotape, as you said, was

          6  interpreted I guess not the way --

          7                 MS. COMBIER: Yes, the Board of Ed

          8  said it didn't show what it was showing. And you

          9  could see him pushing the girl into the stairway.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Do you have a

         11  copy of that? I would love to see that video?

         12                 MS. COMBIER: Actually, I know

         13  somebody that does, yes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. So, if you

         15  can get it to Counsel, I would appreciate it. Okay,

         16  thank you.

         17                 Council for Unity. You can decide who

         18  goes first.

         19                 MR. DeSENA: I'll go first. Hello. We

         20  want to graciously thank the City Council for

         21  inviting us here. You've heard some pretty strong

         22  testimony, and I'm sure you're going to leave here

         23  with a lot of concern. We come here with a message

         24  of hope, and with incredible solutions to the

         25  problems that we're facing here. What I propose to
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          2  do is to give you an overview of the Council for

          3  Unity and what it does. In fact, one of your own

          4  colleagues was one of our original members, Domenic

          5  Recchia. And then we're going to take a look at the

          6  nature of the problem and solutions that need to

          7  occur, and you're going to be having hearings like

          8  this every year, because we are in a system that

          9  makes it impossible for children to represent

         10  themselves.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Just what is

         12  your name for the record, please?

         13                 MR. DeSENA: Oh. My name is Robert J.

         14  DeSena. I am the Founder and President of Council

         15  for Unity.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Continue,

         17  please.

         18                 MR. DeSENA: The Council was born out

         19  of racial violence about 32 years ago, in John Dewey

         20  High School in Brooklyn. It's original members were

         21  gang members and racists. In the process of working

         22  together, we ended up creating a model that now, 32

         23  years later, is all across this country, is in all

         24  five boroughs of the New York City public school

         25  system, is in Europe and is in Africa. The outcomes
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          2  that this program generates are unrivaled.

          3                 The Council has a very innovative

          4  approach to dealing with school safety. One, we have

          5  designed a model that competes with the law of

          6  gangs. Gangs meet the deepest needs of kids and our

          7  school systems don't. Gangs promise family, gangs

          8  promise safety, gangs promise status, gangs promise

          9  power, adrenaline, drugs, and a lot of other things

         10  I don't want to mention. That's what you're

         11  competing with, and our classrooms are not designed

         12  to compete with that. Until you develop a model that

         13  is more attractive to kids than gangs, you're going

         14  to lose. And in the 32 years that we've been in this

         15  business, we are in the belly of the beast. Two of

         16  my colleagues here are former gang members and drug

         17  dealers who were reclaimed by this program.

         18                 Until you can compete with that, the

         19  situations that exist in our communities are going

         20  to continue, and this is what we're facing here, the

         21  conditions that create gangs, the conditions that

         22  promote violence occur in the community.

         23                 Our schools and law enforcement do

         24  not have the resources to go into the community to

         25  change those conditions. So, basically what we're
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          2  looking at here in going in the past and going

          3  forward in the future, is a reaction to these

          4  problems, rather than being able to prevent them.

          5                 So, our model is designed to empower

          6  kids, to create relationships in the building with

          7  adults, School Safety Officers, police officers,

          8  administrators, school aids, and that's what our

          9  model does. As I've said, we've been around for 32

         10  years, and what we've basically allowed to happen in

         11  the system is that the Council for unity is a cause

         12  for credit. So, what that means simply is that the

         13  kids now have a class where they can advocate for

         14  themselves, where they can form relationships with

         15  adults to get the changes in their schools that need

         16  to occur.

         17                 If our school system was a human

         18  body, it would be in intensive care. Because when

         19  you look at the system as it's been set up,

         20  everything is fragmented. The kids are the clients

         21  and they are disenfranchised. We're preaching about

         22  democracy, and kids never get a chance to experience

         23  it because they're never allowed to organize to

         24  represent themselves. If they're the clients, we

         25  have failed them miserably, because we're deaf, dumb
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          2  and blind.

          3                 So, what our model has done as, I

          4  hope as a symbol of hope, is to create synergy and

          5  partnerships in schools. Principals that take our

          6  schools, our model, are bound to empower kids.

          7  They're bound to allow kids to play a role in

          8  policy-making. They're bound to have kids working

          9  with deans, working with School Safety Officers, so

         10  that the safety that comes out of this is common.

         11                 Our model creates school safety

         12  plans, but here is the unique aspect of this. The

         13  Council looks at everybody who is affected by

         14  climate in the school as a client. And we invite

         15  each of these elements in the school to put forth

         16  the changes that they want to see. And the plans

         17  that come out of that have everybody's fingerprints

         18  on it, and then we create permanent networks that

         19  take ownership of the problems that the school

         20  itself wants to see. It doesn't exist. The solution

         21  is to keep this going forward.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I'm sorry, you

         23  have to wrap up.

         24                 Okay, well, let me thank you as the

         25  Founder and Director, and we're going to hear from I
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          2  guess the two other individuals --

          3                 MR. DeSENA: Yes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: -- that were

          5  part of it and now are I guess role models for other

          6  students.

          7                 MR. DeSENA: Absolutely.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. So, we

          9  have -- who is going to go first?

         10                 MR. HARMON: I'm Kyle Harmon.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay, welcome.

         12  Welcome, Kyle.

         13                 MR. HARMON: Thanks. My name is Kyle

         14  Harmon, and I'm the youngest site coordinator and

         15  program coordinator in the Council for Unity and I'm

         16  also a former member of the Council.

         17                 To make a long story short, like most

         18  of the youth that we deal with, I grew up in a

         19  single-parent household. My belief when I was

         20  growing up was that if I died tomorrow, my mother's

         21  life would be a whole lot easier, because she'd have

         22  one less mouth to feed and one less body to put

         23  clothes on. And strangely enough, when I'd go to

         24  work every day, because we work in schools, I'm

         25  mostly in high schools, these are the views and
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          2  opinions of the students that I come across.

          3                 A very close friend of mine who was

          4  not a gang-banger was murdered by Bloods on a

          5  neighborhood block that we hung out on, and shortly

          6  after that, I decided to turn Crip with two goals in

          7  mind: one was that I was going to get revenge for my

          8  loss; and two, was that hopefully somebody would

          9  take me off of this earth and my sister wouldn't

         10  have to worry about having an older brother that

         11  looked up to her instead of himself.

         12                 Christopher Columbus High School had

         13  pretty much every gang that you guys have heard of

         14  to this date, from Latin Kings to Bloods to Crips,

         15  Nieta Zulu Nation, ABI, which is Arbanian Boys

         16  Incorporated, we had the Bones, which were all of

         17  the Dominican students in the school that came

         18  before the DDP, which is out now, and Council for

         19  Unity, as in 1975, when it first initiated, brought

         20  all of these different groups and gang members

         21  together. Now, an idea of the climate of the school,

         22  we had wars with School Safety Agents on the third

         23  floor in the school, we had battles outside with

         24  other students, with police officers in the

         25  neighborhood. Inside the schools there were always
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          2  weapons within the school, even though there were

          3  metal detectors. Students were cut inside, in the

          4  lunch room by females, by males. Students would

          5  jump, there were shootings outside of the school,

          6  there were kidnappings, there were rapes, a student

          7  was pushed out of the second-floor window, there

          8  were so many incidents that happened in that school,

          9  that what we learned in the Council for Unity class,

         10  that they weren't because of any other issue than a

         11  miscommunication.

         12                 Inside the Council for Unity class,

         13  it's not just made up of all these leaders from

         14  different gangs or the worst in the worst of the

         15  school, it's also A plus students. And after you get

         16  past the student aspect, you have your School Safety

         17  Agents, you have your principal, you have guidance

         18  counselors, PTA, you have every adult in that

         19  building sitting on a board that would meet once a

         20  month that's involved in an annual plan that the

         21  students create for the school. So, a safety

         22  mechanism is initiated by the class that involves

         23  and includes everyone so those individuals that are

         24  left out or may get into individual disputes with

         25  students in the school over miscommunications are
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          2  now brought in to a plane where everyone is equal

          3  and equivalent.

          4                 As a student, I wasn't the best

          5  student. I got into a lot of fights. My grades

          6  weren't where they should be, and I really found

          7  Council but cutting school to go on a trip, and

          8  instead of throwing me out or telling me like most

          9  adults told me in school that I wasn't going to live

         10  to see 21 or that I might as well drop out because

         11  I'm not going to make it, they embraced me. And they

         12  introduced me to other adults in the program who

         13  weren't far from my age or who had experiences very

         14  equal to mine, and those individuals told me that I

         15  had a real life second chance.

         16                 Currently I work in, mainly in the

         17  Bronx. I'm in Grace Dodge High School, I'm also in

         18  Bronx Health Sciences, which is a mini school inside

         19  of Truman High School, and I'm also working in

         20  Queens in Forest Hills High School.

         21                 I want to mention briefly Bronx

         22  Health Sciences. Bronx Health Sciences has had zero

         23  incidents since the Council for Unity has been

         24  there. If not, maybe one or two over the past three

         25  years. They'll have their first graduating class
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          2  this year.

          3                 Truman High School is composed of

          4  gang members from that community. There are just

          5  about, the same or very close to Columbus, you have

          6  very violent gangs or very violent students in that

          7  area, in that community and in that school. Through

          8  the model we have managed to network with the other

          9  members inside of Truman High School and the

         10  students inside of Bronx Health and also Task Force

         11  Agents and School Safety Agents and deans, to create

         12  a model for Bronx Health that will allow the school

         13  to remain safe, and it has worked.

         14                 We were actually chosen by ABC

         15  because of that situation to film the school, the

         16  Dragonslayer model that students use in class. There

         17  is a lot of curriculum. The students actually are

         18  empowered to teach the curriculum in the school.

         19  It's not just a teacher-run class, it's actually a

         20  student-run class that students actually get a

         21  credit for. And there are a lot of opportunities for

         22  students to meet powerful officials and networking

         23  at jobs and we also, if I can just add, have a

         24  college piece. So, it's really a complete model. We

         25  go from elementary school to high school, and we
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          2  have a college piece where students can create their

          3  own Council for Unity in college.

          4                 So, the model is complete. It's safe,

          5  and students have an alternative culture to the gang

          6  cultures that are out there waiting to eat our

          7  students up.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, let me

          9  thank you for coming in and telling us about your

         10  involvement as a student and now as an advocate for

         11  Council for Unity.

         12                 MR. HARMON: Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Last but not

         14  least, Rick Brown.

         15                 MR. BROWN: Good evening. I'm going to

         16  keep it basic, brief and simple. Born and raised

         17  Flatbush Brooklyn, single-parent household, youngest

         18  of five. Got into that nightlife, or that outside

         19  life at a very young age. Council for Unity was

         20  introduced to me in about 1994. We had a riot in

         21  Erasmus Hall High School, over 500, 600 kids running

         22  around the building, people got cut, stabbed, beaten

         23  up, shot, over someone stepping on someone's

         24  sneakers and not saying sorry. Or not knowing how to

         25  apologize without looking soft and you know, like
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          2  I'm going to get beat up every day if I say sorry to

          3  this guy.

          4                 Now currently I'm working for the

          5  Council for Unity. I've been with this organization

          6  about 15 years now. Recently have just been promoted

          7  to my new title, Senior Site Coordinator. I work

          8  with Sheepshead Bay High School. Last year we had,

          9  they had a program called Twilight, which tried to

         10  integrate students back into the mainstream -

         11  students who were cutting, students who were

         12  failing, students who were not passing basic

         13  classes.

         14                 We went in there one year. Twilight

         15  is expunged now. Now it's probably just called

         16  Council for Unity. We have four classes in

         17  Sheepshead Bay High School that run, students run

         18  these classes. I have anything from Crips to Bloods

         19  to Nietas in my classroom now that are doing the

         20  work. We found that if you give a kid opportunity,

         21  he will take it. Give him a chance. Ask him what do

         22  you want to do? He'll tell you. They decorate their

         23  room. They meet with the principal. The principal,

         24  these ex-gang members meeting with principals and

         25  deans and Safety School Agents about issues that's
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          2  going on in and around the school. Across the street

          3  is the projects, predominantly Blood neighborhood.

          4  After school most days, School Safety Agents have to

          5  come outside and manually walk kids down to the

          6  corner. Now they changed it. The bus from Nostrand

          7  Avenue comes in front of the school, picks up the

          8  kids and keep it moving.

          9                 This organization, Council for Unity,

         10  you're going to hear about it again. It's not the

         11  last time you're going to hear about Council for

         12  Unity. Thirty-two years and we're still going

         13  strong, all five boroughs. We make it happen.

         14                 If you have everyone on your team,

         15  there is no one left to fight. If I have School

         16  Safety Agents, if I have police officers, deans,

         17  security guards, principals in the same room sitting

         18  with a student, you know who I am. You know, he's

         19  not bad, he's just going to a Council for Unity

         20  class. That's a Council for Unity student.

         21                 We have adults in Council for Unity.

         22  You name a profession, there is an adult in Council

         23  for Unity who came through our program and went on

         24  to become something better.

         25                 Only thing we ask is you give us an
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          2  extended hand. So, if I call you ten years from now

          3  and you is a ex-Blood member and I tell you, listen,

          4  I got a kid who was just like you when you was in

          5  school, he needs that push, that motivation, can you

          6  help him out? That's what Council for Unity does.

          7  Basic and simple. Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, let me

          9  thank you all for coming in. Even though you're the

         10  last panel, we heard about you earlier from the

         11  president of Teamsters Local 237, Mr. Floyd, who

         12  spoke very, very highly of your organization, and

         13  that many of his members volunteer with Council for

         14  Unity.

         15                 I have your packet of material. I

         16  would like to know more. I will read about it and I

         17  would like to make some site visits because

         18  obviously as an organization, you are making a

         19  difference and changing lives and bringing people

         20  together from a positive point of view, and that's

         21  what we need more of.

         22                 So, let me thank you, the Founder,

         23  and thank both of you as Site Coordinator and Senior

         24  Site Coordinator, but as former members that were

         25  involved, in high school and now are I guess role

                                                            412

          1  EDUCATION, PUBLIC SAFETY AND JUVENILE JUSTICE

          2  models for some of these young people in high school

          3  to follow. Because as you indicated, we need more

          4  positive role models for our young people to aspire

          5  to.

          6                 So, let me thank you. I will be

          7  working with you, reaching out to you, and I'd like

          8  to make some site visits to some locations

          9  throughout the City. So, thank you very much.

         10                 MR. DeSENA: Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: With that, let

         12  me just thank everyone involved in preparation for

         13  this hearing today, the staff, it could not happen

         14  without them, and the cooperation of all of the

         15  parties involved, including all of the Council

         16  members that were here today. There is a lot to be

         17  done on this subject area, obviously there is going

         18  to be a lot of follow-up, hopefully by the

         19  Department of Education and New York City Police

         20  Department, along with us here at the City Council.

         21  And with that, it is 7:05 p.m., this hearing is

         22  adjourned.

         23                 (Hearing concluded at 7:05 p.m.)

         24
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